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BHARTIYA RAIL BIJLEE COMPANY LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
Dear Members,

Your Directors are pleased to present 12 Annual Report on the business and operations of
the Company along with Audited Financial Statements and Independent Auditors’ Report
thereon for year ended on 31% March 2019.

PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY

Your Company is setting up 1000 MW (4X250 MW) Thermal Power Project at Nabinagar in
Aurangabad district of Bihar to meet the traction and non-traction electric power requirement
of Railways.

Unit#3 was declared commercial on 26.02.2019.

Construction Activities under progress:

COD of U#4 have been targeted in Mar'20. Construction activities of Unit#4 are going on in full
swing. Total land acquired is 1410.58 acres out of total requirement of 1526.82 acres for the
project.

Ash Utilisation:

610088.10 MT of ash was generated during the financial year 2018-19, out of which fly ash
generated was 427061.70 MT. ash utilized was 209969.20 MT which was 34.41% of total ash
generated. The ash was issued to cement industry.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The financial highlights of the Company for the year ended on 318 March 2018 and 31% March
2019 are as under:-

Z Lakh
Particulars [ FY 2018-19 | FY 2017-18
_ Balance Sheet
Paid-up Share Capital 216153.26 216153.25
Total Assets 872253.85 841891.68
Non-Current Assets 796295.63 747632.85
Current Assets 75958.22 58485.27
Total Liabilities (other 635739.84 618572.07
than paid-up capital)
Non-Current Liabilities 538414.48 534689.97
Current Liabilities 97320.75 83882.10
Non-Current 537441.48 497993.21
Borrowings
Current Borrowings
Statement of Profit and Loss
Total Sales | 116972.74 | 69740.98
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Total Revenue 121001.80 69983.81
Total Expenses 119831.61 67461.40
Profitt (Loss) Before 1170.19 2522.41
Tax (PBT)

Profit/ (Loss} After Tax 887.53 2721.20
(PAT)

Transfer to reserve
{Amount in ¥ Lakhs)

For the year ended For the year ended
31-03-2019 31-03-2018
CSR Reserve

Opening Balance 6.39 -
Transfer during the 28.88 6.39
year

Closing Balance 35.27 6.39

Retained Earnings

Opening Balance ' 7159.83 4445.02
Transfer during the 858.65 2714.81
year

Ciosing Balance 8018.48 7159.83

Fly Ash utilization reserve fund

Opening Balance - -
Transfer during the 147.87 -
year

Closing Balance 147.87 -

INFORMATION PURSUANT TO STATUTORY AND OTHER REQUIREMENTS

Information required to be furnished as per the Companies Act, 2013 and other regulations are
as under:

(1) CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNING & OUTGO

(i)Your company has installed following equipments for pollution control & conservation of
energy.

Electrostatic Precipitator, Chimney, Cooling Towers, Ash handling equipments, Ash Dyke, Ash
water recirculation system, Effluent treatment plant, Dust extraction & suppression system, fire
detection system, DM plant waste treatment system, Sewerage treatment plant & disposal,
Environmental Lab equipment etc.

(i) The steps taken by the company for utilizing alternate sources of energy: Provision of Solar
lights in plants as well as Project Affected Villages
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(iii) The capital investment on energy conservation equipments: Approx. 350 Crore INR has
been earmarked for the above mentioned equipments.

During the period under review, there was no earning in the foreign exchange. Further, there
was no outgo in foreign exchange during the year

(2) The following information is provided in the Corporate Governance Report which
forms part of the Annual Report as Annex-li:

a. Number of Meetings of the Board held during the year and attendance of Directors in
the Board Meeting.

b. Constitution of the Audit Committee, number of Meetings held during the year and
attendance of the Members in the Audit Committee.

¢. Constitution of Corporate Social Responsibility Committee, number of Meetings held
during the year, if any and attendance of Members in the Meeting.

d. Constitution of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, number of Meetings held
during the year, if any and attendance of Members in the Meeting.

(3) Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

During the three immediately preceding financial years, the Company had average profit of ¥
1474.07 Lakhs. As such, the Company had transferred ¥ 35 Lakh to Corporate Social
Responsibitity (CSR) Reserve during 2018-19, out of which ¥ 32,96,532/- remain unspent
during the year.

(4) During the year the Company undertook the activities under Resettlement & Rehabilitation
Plan as a responsible corporate citizen in and around plant, details of which are covered under
the Management Discussion and Analysis Report attached as Annex-| to this Report.

(5) Statutory Auditors

The Comptroller & Auditor General of India through letter dated 27.07.2018 had appointed M/s
Chamaria & Co., Chartered Accountants as Statutory Auditors of the Company for the financial
year 2018-19. Thé Statutory Auditors of the Company for the financial year 2019-20 are yet to
be appointed by the Comptroller & Auditor General of India.

(6) Management comments on Statutory Auditors’ Report

The Statutory Auditors of the Company have given an unqualified report on the accounts of
the Company for the financial year 2018-19.

The Statutory Auditors have drawn emphasis of matter, through its Report dated 21.05.2019,
which is as under:

(i The conveyance of 130.606707 acres of freehold land valued at 41 ,47,60,274.84is
still pending for registration since long although validity period of agreement for sale
of land has expired.

{ii) Confirmation of some of the balances and / or statement of accounts in respect of
Other advance Capex (GL Code-1034106), Initial advance(s) construction (GL
code- 1034100), Advances contractors -O & M (GL Code-1101300), Railway claim
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recoverable (GL Code-1100837), Advance against material (O&M) (GL Code
1101300) and Other Claims (GL Code- 1100822) etc. were not available. In view
of above, authenticity of such balances remained unverified.

- (iii) The confirmation of balances appearing under head construction stores lying with
the contractors could not be verified in absence of joint verification statements in
this regard.

(7) Review of accounts by Comptroller & Auditor General of India

The Comptroller & Auditor General of India (C&AG), through letter dated 15.07.2019, has given
‘Nil' comments on the financial statements of your Company for the year ended on 31.03.2019.
As advised by the C&AG, the contents of letter dated 15.07.2019 are being placed with the
report of the Statutory Auditors elsewhere in the Annual Report.

(8) Cost Audit

As prescribed under the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, the Cost
Accounting records are maintained by the Company.

M/s Niran & Co., Cost Accountants, had been appointed as Cost Auditors under Section 148(3)
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 14 of the Companies (Audit & Auditors) Rules,
2014 for the financial year 2018-19.

The Cost Audit Report for your Company for the Financial Year ended on 31 .03.2018 was filed
with the Central Government on 09.10.2018.

The Cost Audit Report for the financial year ended March 31, 2019 shall be filed within the
prescribed time period under the Companies (Cost Records & Audit) Rules, 2014.

(9) Your Company, being subsidiary of NTPC, is covered under the Enterprise Risk Framework
established by NTPC (Holding Co.). Details about risks with the Company are covered in the
Management Discussion & Analysis Report which forms part of this Report and placed at
Annex-1.

(10) Extract of Annual Return
Extract of Annual Return of the Company is annexed herewith as Annex- Il to this Report.
(11) Performance Evaluation of the Directors and the Board

Section 178 (2) of the Companies Act, 2013 provides that the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee shall, inter-alia, shall specify the manner for effective evaluation of performance of
Board, its committees and individual directors to be carried out either by the Board, by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee or by an independent external agency and review
its implementation and compliance

As per Section 134(3) (p) read with Rule 8 (4) of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014, every
listed company and every other public company having a paid up share capital of twenty five
crore rupees or more calculated at the end of the preceding financial year shall include, in the
report by its Board of directors, a statement indicating the manner in which formal annual
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evaluation has been made by the Board of its own performance and that of its committees and
individual directors.

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), through Notification dated 5th June 2015, has exempted
Government Companies from the provisions of Section 178 (2) and Section 134 (3) (p). The
aforesaid circular of MCA further exempted listed Govt. Companies from provisions of which
requires mentioning the manner of formal evaluation of its own performance by the Board and
that of its Committees and Individual Director in Board’s Report, if directors are evaluated by
the Ministry or Department of the Central Government which is administratively in charge of
the company, or, as the case may be, the State Government as per its own evaluation
methodology. ‘

Now, MCA, through Notification dated 05.07.2017, has amended Schedule [V to the
Companies Act, 2013 with respect to performance evaluation of directors of the Government
Companies that in case of matters of performance evaluation are specified by the concerned
Ministries or Departments of the Central Government or as the case may be, the State
Governments and such requirements are complied with by the Government companies, such
provisions of Schedule IV are exempt for the Government Companies.

As per the Articles of Association of BRBCL, all the Directors are nominated by NTPC and
Ministry of Railways (MOR). The Directors nominated by NTPC or MOR are being evaluated
under a well laid down procedure for evaluation of Functional Directors & CMD as well as of
Government Directors by Administrative/ respective Ministry/ Department. Also, the
performance of the Board of the Government Companies is evaluated during the performance
evaluation of the MOU signed with the Holding Company i.e. NTPC Limited.

(12) Secretarial Audit

The Board has appointed M/s Deepak Dhir & Associates, Company Secretaries, to conduct
Secretarial Audit for the financial year 2018-19. The Secretarial Audit Report for the financial
year ended March 31, 2019 is annexed herewith marked as Annex- V to this Report. The
Secretarial Auditor has given unqualified Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year 2018-
19.

(13) Particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties

During the period under review, all transactions with related parties were at arm's length and
suitable disclosure has been provided in annual accounts. Approval has been taken from the
Audit Committee where the transaction with related party falls under the purview of the
Companies Act, 2013. Ali related party transactions were in the ordinary course of business
and were negotiated on an arm's length basis. They were intended to further the Company's
interests.

Accordingly, the disclosure of Related Party Transactions as required under Section 134(3)(h)
of the Companies Act, 2013 in Form AQC-2 is not applicable.

(14) Significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals

impacting the going concern status and company’s operations in future: NIL. Contingent
Liabilities are detailed in Note — 40 of Notes to Accounts to Financial Statements for the FY
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2018-19. The details of disputed statutory dues pending before appropriate authorities is
detailed in Annexure to Independent Auditors’ Report.

(15) Adequacy of internal financial controls with reference to the financial reporting: The
Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial reporting.
During the year, such controls were tested and no reportable material weakness in the design
or operation were observed.

(16) Particulars of Employees:

As per provisions of Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rule 5 of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, every
company is required to disclose details of employees receiving remuneration exceeding limits
as prescribed from time to time in the Directors’ Report.

However, as per notification dated 5" June 2015 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs,
Government Companies are exempted from complying with provisions of Section 197 of the
Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, such particulars have not been included as part of Directors’
Report.

(17) Issue of Shares in the Financial Year:

During the year under review, no issue of shares was made.

{(18) No disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the foliowing items as there were no
transactions on these items during the year under review:

1. Issue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise.

2. Issue of shares (including sweat equity shares) to employees of the Company under any
schemes.

(19) Establishment of vigil mechanism/ whistle blower policy:

Your Company has established Whistle Blower Policy as required under Section 177 (9) of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies {Meeting of Board and its Powers)
Rules, 2014.

(20) There were no frauds reported by auditors under section 143(12) of the Companies Act,
2013.

(21) The Company has not granted any oans, given any guarantee or made any investments
under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the year.

(22) The Company has not accepted any deposits during the year.
(23) The Company has no subsidiary or joint venture.
(24) No Presidential Directive was issued by the Government during the year under review.

{25) The Company has not declared any dividend during the year.
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(26) BRBCL has constituted the internal Complaints Committee under the provisions of Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. No
case of sexual harassment was received during the FY 2018-19.

(27) Procurement from MSEs:

The Government of India has notified a Public Procurement Policy for Micro and Small
Enterprises (MSEs), Order 2012. In terms of the said policy, the total contract placed on and
procurement made from MSEs (including MSEs owned by SC/ST entrepreneurs) during the
year 2018-19 was * 260668890* which was 18.46 % of total procurement & contracts against
target of 20% of total procurement made by the Company.

*{1 excludes Primary fuel, Secondary fuel, Steel & Cement, the Project procurement including R&M packages and
procurement from OEM, OES & PAC sources.

(28) The Company has complied with the applicable Secretarial Standards.

The particutars of annexures forming part of this report are as under:

Particulars Annexure
Management Discussion & Analysis |
Report on Corporate Governance Il
Extract of Annual Return il
Annual Report on CSR v
Secretarial Audit Report in Form MR-3 v

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

As required under Section 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013, your Directors confirm that:

1. in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had
been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

2. the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year 2018-
19 and of the profit of the company for that period;

3. the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for
safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and
other irregularitiss;

4. the Directors had prepared the Annual Accounts on a going concern basis; and

5. the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of
all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
During the year under review, the following changes took place in Directors position:
1) Shri Shalabh Goel, Executive Director (EEM), Railway -Board was nominated as
Director on the Board of BRBCL by the Ministry of Railways in place of Shri Sudhir
Garg. The Board appointed him as the Director of the Company w.e.f. 22.02.2018. He
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ceased to be the Director of the BRBCL consequent upon withdrawal of his nomination
by Ministry of Railways on 15.06.2018.

2) Shri Rajesh Kumar Jain, Executive Director (Development, Railway Board was
nominated as Director on the Board of BRBCL by the Ministry of Railways. The Board
appointed him as the Director of the Company w.e.f. 16.07.2018.

3) Shri S. Narendra, Regional Executive Director (East-l), NTPC was nominated as
Director on the Board by NTPC. He was appointed as Director w.e.f 23.05.2018.

No change occurred in the position of Key Managerial Personnel of the Company:

The Board wishes to place on record its deep appreciation for the valuable services rendered
by Shri Shalabh Goel during his association with the Company.

As per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Shri S. Narendra, Director shall retire by
rotation at the ensuing Annuai General Meeting and being eligible, offers himself for re-
appointment.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your Directors acknowledge with deep sense of appreciation for the co-operation extended by
Ministry of Power and Ministry of Railways.

Your Directors also convey their gratitude to the Holding Company i.e. NTPC Ltd., Power
Finance Corporation Limited, Rural Electrification Corporation Limited, auditors, bankers,
contractors, vendors and consultants of the Company.

We wish to place on record our appreciation for the untiring efforts and contributions by the
employees at all levels to ensure that the Company continues to grow and excel.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

(A.K. Gupta)
Chairman
{DIN: 07269906)
PLACE: New Delhi
DATE: 30.07.2019
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Annex-1 to the Directors’ Report of BRBCL

ECONOMIC AND SECTOR OUTLOOK

As per the report on Annual National Income 2018-19, released by National Statistical

Office of Ministry of Statistics and Programme Implementation {MoSPI) on 31 May 2019,

the growth rate of Gross Domestic Product (GDP) at constant (2011-12) prices has been

provisionally estimated to be 6.8% as against 7.2% for the previous year (2017-18). For
the year 2019-20, World Bank has projected a 7.5% GDP growth rate.

Quarterly growth rate analysis depicts that during Q1. 2018-19 (April-June) GDP growth
rate peaked at 8.0%, but it has moved in a downward trend with growth rate of 7.0%,
6.6% and 5.8% during Q2, 2018-19 [July-Sep}, @3, 2018-1¢ (Oct-Dec) and Q4, 2018-19
{Jan-Mar) respectively,

Indices of Industrial Production ({IIP}. as reported by MoSPI on 10 May 2019, reveal that
the cumulative growth in Mining, Manufacturing and Electricity sectors during April-
March 2018-19 over the corresponding period of 2017-18 has been 2.9%, 3.5% and 5.2%
respectively.

During the year 2018-19, the growth in power sector has been possible due to major
reforms focussed on enabling the sector to adapt to the disruptions such as flexibility in
thermal power generation, environment protection and capacity addition in RE & Hydro
and cross border trading of power etc,

INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENTS

Power sector is a Key enabler for India’s economic growth. The sector with its three pillars
of generation, transmission and distribution is crucial to India’s infrastructure and
economic growth. The achievements and various issues/challenges faced by the Power
Sector are discussed in the ensuing paragraphs.

Snap Shot 2018-19

» Gross annual generation of the country (excluding import from Bhutan) increased by
5.2% from 1,308 BUs in the previous year to 1,376 BUs in the current year (including
renewables). Generation from renewable sources increased by about 24% from 102
BUs to 127 BUs, while generation from conventional sources increased by 4% from
1,206 BUs to 1,249 BUs.

» Generation capacity of 3,479 MW (excluding renewables) was added during financial
year 2018-19 compared to 5,892 MW added during the previous year.

~ Renewable energy capacity of 8,619 MW added during the year. Renewable energy
capacity has increased by about 12.5% from 69,022 MW as at 31 March 2018 to
77,642 MW as at 31 March 2019.

» 22,437Ckms of tranismission lines added during the year as compared to 23,119 Ckms
in the previous year.

» 72,705 MVA of transformation capacity added during the year as against 86,193 MVA
in the previous year. :

» PLF of coal & lignite based stations increased to 61.1% in financial year 2018-19 from
60.7% in financial year 2017-18.

» During the financial year 2018-19, while the energy deficit decreased marginally from
0.7% to 0.6%, the peak power deficit decreased from 2.0% to 0.8% as compared to that
in the previous year.

(Sottrce: Central Electricity Authority)
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Existing Installed Capacity

The total installed capacity in the country as on 31 March 2019 was 3,56,100 MW
(including renewables) with Private Sector contributing 46.2% of the installed capacity

followed by State Sector with 29.5% share and Central Sector with 24.3% share.

Total Capacity (MW) % share
Private 1,64,428 46.2
State 1,05,076 29.5
Central 86,5906 24.3
Total - 3,686,100 100.0

Source-wiseinstalled capacity in the country as on 31 March 2019 is as under:

Total Capacity (MW) % share
Thermal 2,268,279 63.6
Nuclear 6,780 1.9
Hydro 45,329 12.7
RES {Renewables) 77,642 21.8
Total 3,856,100 100.0

{Source: Central Electricity Authority-Installed Capacity report}

Capacity Utilization and Generation

Sector wise PLF in % (Thermal - Coal & Lignite)

Sector 2018-19 2017-18
State 58.0 56.9
Central 72.6 72.3
Private-IPP 54.8 55.1
Private-Utilities 61.3 60.4
All India 61.1 60.7

{Source: Central Electricity Authority)

PLF of coal & lignite based power stations has increased marginally from 60.7% to 61.1%
on Y-O-Y basis. PLF of Central Generating Thermal Stations has also increased
marginally.

In the emerging scenario of high variable renewable energy infusion into the grid,
supplying power with reliability has gained prominence over PLF. In this context, it is
crucial that the thermal capacities are able to supply fast respernse balancing power and
maintain adequate reserve capacity.

Generation :

The total conventional power available in the country during the financial year 2018-19
was 1.249 BUs as compared to 1,206 BUs during previous year, registering a growth of
3.6%. (Generation figures pertain to capacity monitored by CEA).

Sector-wise and fuel-wise break-up of generation for the year 2018-19 is detailed as
under:
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In BUs
Bhutan

Sector Thermal Hydro Nuclear Import Total
Central 368 15153 38 -- 461
State 335 66 -- -- 401
Private 369 14 - -- 383
Bhutan

Import B B N 4 4
Total 1072 135 38 4 1249

{Source: Central Electricity Authority)

As far as thermal generation is concerned, based on the monitored capacity by CEA. the
generation contribution of central sector is 36.9% with installed capacity share of 24.3%,
state sector contributes 32.1% of generation with installed capacity share of 29.5% and
private sector contributes 30.6% of generation with installed capacity share of 46.2%.
Central sector utilities have performed better as compared to those of state and private
sector utilities.

Consumption

The per capita consumption of power in India was 1,149 units in financial year 2017-18
(provisional) (Source: Central Electricity Authority), which is almost one-third of the global
average (3,052 units).

(Source: IEA Key World Energy Statistics 2017).

Major end users of power are broadly classified into industrial, agricultural, domestic and
commercial consumers. Their shares of electricity consumption were approximately 40%,
18%. 24% and 9%, respectively. During the same period, Traction & Railways and others
represented about 9% of power consumption.

(Source: Ministry of Statistics and Programme Implementation- Energy Statistics 2018).

With ambitious target of providing free electricity connections to all households in rural
areas and poor families in urban areas by Dec. 2018, the Government of India launched
Pradhan Mantri Sahaj Bijli Har Ghar Yojana {SAUBHAGYA) in September 2017. As
indicated in the Saubhagya Dashboard, 99.99% households have been electrified and
only 18,734 households in Chhattisgarh remains to be electrified.

{Source: Saubhagya dashboard)

Other key initiatives taken by Government of India include Integrated Power Development
Scheme (for providing 24x7 power supply in the urban areas) and Deen Dayal Upadhyaya
Gram Jyoti Yojana (agricultural feeders segregation, strengthening of sub-transmission
& distribution infrastructure in rural areas and rural electrification). 100% village
electrification has been achieved,

Transmission

The transmission network (at voltages of 220 kV and above) in the country has grown at
an average rate of ~6% CAGR since the end of 12t Plan in terms of circuit kilometres
added.

The total inter-regional transmission capacity of country has increased from 75,050 MW

at the end of 12% plan to 99.050 MW as on 31 March 2019. During the financial year
2018-19, 12,600 MW inter-regional capacity was added,
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This augmentation of the national grid will help promote competition and enable merit
crder dispatch of generation leading to lower cost of power for consumers. This is also .
essential for supporting higher injection of renewables inio the grid for transfer of power
from RE-rich states to other states. This large-scale integration of renewable energy
along-with other factors such as increasing power generation capacity and reforms in fuel
sector is slated to increase the demand for transmission capacity significantly in the
coming years.

Distribution

Distribution is the key link to realize the Government of India’s vision of supplying reliable
24x7 Power for All. For this, the distribution companies need to be healthy to be able to
discharge their functions & responsibilities efficiently.

To improve the distribution segment’s performance, Government of India launched a

comprehensive power sector reform scheme, Ujwal Discom Assurance Yojana (UDAY) on

5 November 2015 for operational and financial tumaround of Discoms. The Average Cost

of Supply (ACS) and Average Revenue Realised (ARR) gap has reduced from % 0.59 per

kWh in 2016 to T 0.24 per kWh by May 2019 and AT&C have also reduced to 18.37%.

The proposed amendments in Tariff Policy include several distribution related changes to

address the sustainability issues of distribution sector, such as:

» Time-based service level agreements for service to end-consumers and penalties for
non-technical outages.

# Discoms to assure adequate tie-up of capacities to enable them to meet their power
requirements. :

~ Subsidy to be given by way of Direct Benefit Transfer directly into consumer accounts
and cross subsidy charges for open access are to be brought within 20% of the average
cost of supply,

# Electricity supply to be made pre-paid with 100% metering of consumers.

» Regulations by appropriate commissions to make open access information
transparent, applications handling time-bound and CSS payable for maximum period
of 1 year.

Power Trading

In India, power is transacted largely through long-term Power Purchase Agreements (PPA)
entered into between Generating companies and the Distribution utilities. A small portion
is transacted through various short-term mechanisms like bilateral transactions through
licensees, Day-ahead transactions through power exchanges and real time balancing
market mechanism {l.e. Deviation Settlement Mechanism).

In the year 2018-19, around 88% of power generated in the Countiry was transacted
through the long-term PPA route and about 12% of the power was transacted through
short-term trading mechanisms. Short-term electricity transaction in the current
financial year increased to 145 BU, as' compared to 128 BU in the previous year,
registering about 14% growth.

{Source: Ceniral Electricity Regulatory Commission}

Key Initiatives/Reforms & Regulatory Changes in Power Sector

1. Flexibility in Generation and Scheduling of Thermal Power Stations:
Government of India through its various policy interventions has been trying to
enhance flexibility in thermal power generation in order to enable growth in
RE.Subsequent to introduction of ‘Flexibility in utilization of domestic coal for
reducing the cost of power generation’ in 2016-17, two more policies - (i) ‘Flexibility
in generation & scheduling of thermal power stations to reduce emissions' by
partially replacing thermal power with cheaper renewable power and (ii} ‘Flexibility
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in generation and scheduling of thermal power stations to reduce the cost of power
to the consumer’ through National Merit Order, have been introduced in 2018-19.
These policies will help in reducing cost of power.

Renewable Purchase Obligation (RPO) targets: Ministry of Power in consultation
with MNRE has notified trajectory to achieve 21% RPO target by the financial year
2021-22, comprising of 10.5% Solar and 10.5% Non-Solar renewables. SERCs may
consider to notify RPO for their respective states in line with notification by MOP. To
achieve the RPO trajectory, country will need te enhance its renewable assets.

Hydro as renewable power: To promote hydropower in the country, large hydro
projects having capacity more than 25 MW have also been declared as Renewable
Energy Source and similar to RPO targets, HPO (Hydro Power Obligations) targets
would also be notified by MOP.

Gol has in-principle agreed to provide budgetary support for flood moderation,
enabling infrastructures like road and bridges.

Regulatory certainty regarding new environment norms:Gol has directed CERC
for providing regulatory certainty to thermal power plants regarding recovery of cost
involved in meeting new envirenment norms, CERC in its Tariff Regulations, 2019
has provisioned for supplementary tariff towards implementation of revised emission
standards.

Changes proposed in Electricity Act: Gol has initiated the process to amend the
Electricity Act with the objectivessuch asensuring availability of electricity to all
consumers, optimal utilisation of fossil & non-fossil resources, separation of
distribution & supply functions, promote smart grid, ancillary support and
decentralised distributed generation.

For ensuring power supply to all, the distribution licensee or supply licensee, are
proposed to have obligation to supply 24x7 power to their consumers and any
subsidy to any category of consumer is proposed to be implemented through Direct
Benefit Transfer.

National Wind Solar Hybrid Policy: MNRE has released National Wind Solar Hybrid
Policy to promote large grid connected wind-solar PV hybrid system for optimal and
efficient utilization of transmission infrastructure and land, reducing the variability
in renewable power generation and achieving better grid stability.

Import/Exzport (Cross Border} of Electricity:MoP has issued Guidelines for
Import/Export (Cross Border] of Electricity in the current flnancial year with
following key objectives: .

e Facilitate trade of electricity between India and neighbeuring countries;

¢ Evolve a dynamic and robust electricity infrastructure for trade of electricity;

s Promote transparency, consistency and predictability in regulatory mechanism
pertaining to trade of electricity in the country;

s Reliable grid operation and transmission of electricity for trade

All these reform initiatives and regulatory changes will open up opportunities for your
Company and across the Indian Power Sector.
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SWOT ANALYSIS
Strength/ Opportunity

The Company is backed by strong promoters i.e. Ministry of Railways and NTPC
Limited.NTPC is the consultant for the Company which is having a wide experience in
engineering and management expertise from planning to commissioning and operating
power plants. Indian Railways, being a big transport organization, consumes about 2%
of the total power generation of the country which is likely to go up with the current pace
of electrification. Presently, the peak power requirement of IR is about 4000 MW which is
being fed to the electric traction network of IR through its odd 400 traction sub stations
spread across the length and breadth of the country. Out of this requirement, Nabinagar
power plant having 1000 MW capacity will cater the need of 900 MW of Indian Railways
and 100 MW will be given to the Bihar Government. Thus BRBCL has good future
prospects of dealing with the organisation like IR having sound financial fundamentals.

The Company is able to acquire major portion of land for establishing the project.Bharat
Heavy Electricals Limited is the main plant contractor. The Company has tied up loan
with Power Finance Corporation Limited, Vijaya Bank and Canara Bank for meeting its
debt portion. The Company has coal linkage for 4X250 MW capacity.

Weakness/ Threats:

The major threat the company is facing in acquiring parts of land. Law and order situation
and project security have also been a concern for the Company.

RISKS AND CONCERN

The risk to which company is exposed and the initiatives taken by the company to
mitigate such risks are given below:

The project is delayed as there is delay in the land acquisition due to which contractors
are demanding additional compensation. This issues are being dealt as per provision of
the contract and project implementation is being expedited to minimize the time overrun.

Hazard risks are related to natural hazards arising out of accidents and natural
calamities like fire, earthquake etc.

Operational risks are associated with systems, processes & people and cover areas such
as succession planning, retaining of people at project, operational failure or interruption,
disruption in supply chain, fallure of research & development facilities and faulty
application of information technology and non-compliance of regulatory provisions.

Also, non-receipt of schedule for generation of power and non-receipt of equity in time
from Railways.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Company has robust internal systems and processes for efficient conduct of
business. The Company is complying with relevant laws and regulations. It is following
delegation of powers as is being followed in NTPC Limited. The accounts are being
prepared in accordance with the Accounting Standards issued by Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India from time to time and as per the guidelines issued from NTPC
Limited. The Company has implemented SAP in all modules. It is helping the Company a
lot in retrieving data and maintaining systematic backup.
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In order to ensure that all checks and balances are in place and all internal systems are
in order, regular and exhaustive internal audits are conducted by experienced firm of
Chartered Accountants in coordination with Internal Audit Department of NTPC Limited.
The Company has constituted an Audit Committee to oversee the financial performance
of the company. The scope of this Committee includes compliance with Internal Control
Systems.

FINANCIAL DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The financial statements are prepared on going concern basis following accrual system
of accounting and comply with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and subsequent amendments
thereto, the Companies Act, 2013, and the provisions of Electricity Act, 2003 to the extent
applicable. The Company is involved in the generation and sale of bulk power to Indian
Railways and State Power Utllities.

The accounting policies set out in Note 1 have been applied in preparing the Financial
Statements for the year ended 315t March 2019.

Non-current assets

(in Lakh)
Particulars As at 31.03.2018 [ As at 31.03.2018 % change |
Property, Plant and 6.34,891.69 3,80,007.34 67.07
equipment
Intangible Assets 28.63 1.53 1771.24
Capital work-in- 1,56,598.54 3.62,158.44 (56.76)
progress
Others 4,776.87 5,465.54 - (12.60)

Total depreciation charged on property, plant and equipment upto 31.03.2019 was ¥
40,282.63 Lakh. The Gross carrying amount of fully depreciated property, plant and
equipment that are still in use as at 31.03.2019 is ¥ 1,451.81 Lakh as against ¥ 1,134.39
Lakh as at 31.03.2018.

Current assets

(in Lakh)
Particulars As at 31.03.2019 | As at 31.03.2018 % change |
Inventories 3,086.51 2,882.91 7.06
Trade Receivables 24,937.68 20,701.71 20.46
Cash and cash 13.674.62 11,895.42 14.96
eguivalents
Bank Balances other 8,273.17 100.00 8173.17
than cash and cash
equivalents
Other Financial 15,957.00 8,771.01 81.93
Assets
Others 10,029.23 14,134.22 (29.04)

Inventories include coal, fuel oil, stores and spares, chemicals & consumables, steel,
loose tools, etc.

Balance with banks includes deposits with original maturity upto three months [
9,277.82 Lakh) and deposits with original maturity of more than three months and
maturing within one year (¥ 8,013.81 Lakh).

The Company has to recover freight charges from Railways and Nabinagar Power
Generating Company Limited.
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{in Lakh)
Particulars As at 31.03.2019 | As at 31.03.2018 % Change |
Borrowings 5,37,441.48 4,97,993.21 7.92
Secured Term 1,49,875.00 - 100
Loan from Bank
Secured Loan 3,95,428.87 5,05,356.16 (21.75)
from others
Other financial 973.00 1,201.25 (19.00)
liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities - 35,495.51 (100)

The Company had an initial term loan facility of ¥ 3,74,675.00 Lakh (PFC: Z 2,24,800.00
Lakh and REC: ¥ 1,49,875.00). The repayment schedule is for a period of 15 years,
beginning after 6 months from COD of the station, in 60 quarterly instalments.

During the year, entire term loan from REC of 2 1,49,875.00 Lakh has been transferred
to Vijaya Bank. The term loan is repayable in 60 equal quarterly installments with effect
from 30.09.2019. The Company has pald prepayment charges of ¥ 5,305.58 Lakh.

The Company has 2nd term loan agreement of ¥ 25,325.00 Lakh from PFC. The repaymént
schedule of loan is 15 years, beginning after 6 months from COD of the station, in 60
quarterly instalments.

The Company has also taken 3 term loan from PFC with repayment schedule of 15 years
beginning after 6 months from COD of the station in 60 quarterly instalments.

There ha\?e been no defaults in repayment of the loan or interest thereon as at the end of
the year.

Current Liabilities
(in Lakh)
Particulars As at As at 31.03.2018 % Change
31.03.2019
Trade Payables 9656.08 5416.80 78.26
Other financial 70,630.69 66,362.17 6.43
liabilities
Other current 89.71 241.27 (62.82)
liabilities
Provisions 16,944.27 11,861.86 42.85

Other financial liabilities include Payment due for capital expenditure (for micro and
small enterprises and other than micro and small enterprises), Interest accrued but not
due on borrowings, payment to be made to Contractors, NTPC Ltd, Employees and others.
Regulatory deferral account credit balances on account of exchange differences for the
year ended 31.03.2019 is ¥ 4.61 Lakh.

Revenue
{in Lakh)
Particulars As at | As at 31.03.2018 % change
31.03.2019
Energy sales 1,16,972.74 69,7390.02 67.73
Sale of fly ash 154.81 - 100
Interest from - 1.06 (100)
customers
Other income 4.029.06 242.83 1559,21
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Company's revenues arise from sale energy and other income. Revenue from other income
comprises interest from banks, employees, contractors, sale of scrap and other
miscellaneous income. The majority of the Company's operations in India are regulated
under the Electricity Act, 2003. Accordingly, the CERC determines the tariff for the
Company's power plants based on the norms prescribed in the tariff regulations as
applicable from time to time.

Energy sales are net of rebate to beneficlaries amounting to ¥ 342.17 Lakh as at
31.03.2019 as against T 165.72 Lakh as at 31.03.2018.

It is pertinent to that the complete amount of sale of fly ash is transferred to fly ash
utilisation reserve fund.

Expenses
(in Lakh)

Particulars As at 31.03.2019 | As at 31.03.2018 % change |
Fuel 52,233.39 18,088.49 188.77
Employee benefits 5,813.10 4,583.14 26.84
expense
Finance costs 31,790.60 23,231.84 32.84
Depreciation and 20,238.31 14,827.80 36.49
amortization
expense
Other expenses 9,756.21 8,030.13 61.79

Expenditure on fuel constituted 43% of the total expenditure of the Company during the
financial year ended 31.03.2019. The rise in fuel costs are due to increase in Energy sales
of the Company for the year ended 31.03.2019.

Profits

The Company has made Net Profit after Tax of ¥ 887.563 Lakh.

HUMAN RESOURCE

Presently, the Company has total strength of 252 employees (including 13 Non-
Executives and excluding 39 Diploma Trainees), All employees, excluding 39 DTs
trainees, have been deputed from the Holding Company i.e, NTPC Limited. As a social
responsible and social consclous organization, the Company has deployed 34 3C
employees, 13 ST employees and 57 OBC(NCL) & 7 OBCI(CL) employees out of total
strength of 252 employees deputed from NTPC.

The Company is paying Performance Related Pay to its employees in order to boost their
morale and also extending the facility of retention of family anywhere in India. Quarters
have been hired at Dalmianagar also as a Temporary Township untili Permanent
Township at the site becomes ready to accommodate all the employees. Further to this,
various welfare measures including cultural activities for employees and their family
members are also undertaken for boosting employee’s morale.

f'urther to this, we have Executive club and Ladies club which takes care of sports and
cultural activities.

The employee benefits expense (salaries & wages, contribution to provident & other funds
and staff welfare expenses) was ¥5813.10 lakh for the financial year 2018-19. An amount
of ¥ 769.97 lakh was included in employee benefits expense towards provident fund,
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pension, gratuity, post-retirement medical benefits facilities and other terminal benefits
and ¥ 554.01 lakh was payable to NTPC Limited towards leave and other benefits.
Similarly. an amount of ¥2.01 lakh was included in employee benefits expense towards
provident fund, pension, gratulty, post-retirement medical benefits facilitles and other
terminal benefits and ¥ Nil lakh was payable to Ministry of Railways towards leave and
other benefits.

REHABILITATION AND RESETTLEMENT ACTIVITIES

Your Company has taken up number of steps towards rehabilitation and resettlement
like restoration of Pond in Khaira village, construction of culvert in Dhundua village,
installation of 26 nos. hand pumps for drinking water in PAP villages, ¥ 91 lakhs spent
on construction of ITI building and ¥ 1,40,000/- spend towards ITI scholarship to wards
of PAPs.

OUTLOOK

The company’s outlook is very bright. It will generate sufficient revenue for the growth
and development of the company as well as of the nearby community at large once the
plant becomes operational.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Statements in the Management Discussion and Analysis, describing objectives,
projections and estimates, are forward-looking statements and progressive, within the
meaning of applicable security laws and regulations. Actual results may vary from those
expressed or implied, depending upon economic condition, Government policies and
other incidental/ related factors.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

(A.E. Gupta)
Chairman
(DIN: 072699086)
Place: New Delhi
Dated: 30.07.2019
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Annexure-11 to the Dirvectors’ Report of BRBCL

Report on Corporate Governance

Company’s Philosophy on Code of Governance

Bhartiya Rail Bijlee Company Limited (BRBCL) has made a strong commitment to ensure trust
in the Company and to enhance shareholders’ value through effective decision-making and
improved communication between the management, the Board of Directors (the “Board”} and
the shareholders. Corporate Governance philosophy of BRBCL is as under:

“Enhancement of stakeholders’ value through pursuit of excellence, efficiency of operations,
quest for growth and continuous innovation.”

The Company’s framework for Corporate Governance is intended to decrease business risk,
maximise value and utilise the Company’s resources in an efficient, sustainable manner for the
benefit of shareholders, employees and society at large.

The Company believes that sound Corporate Governance is vital to enhance and retain
stakeholder trust. Good Governance is one of the essential pillars for building an efficient and
sustainable environment and to ensure that the affairs of the Company are being managed in a
way which ensure accountability, transparency and responsibility in all its transactions in the
widest sense and meeting its stakeholder’s aspirations and societal expectations.
Implementation of good governance indicates not only the compliance of the laws and
regulations of the land but also indicates the values, practices and culture of the organisation.

Your Company adheres to the Guidelines on Corporate Governance for Central Public Sector
Enterprises issued by the Department of Public Enterprises, Government of India to the extent

such compliances are within the ambit of the Company.

Board of Directors

At BRBCL, the Board fulfils the following four major roles viz. overseeing the risk profile of
Company, monitoring the integrity of business and control mechanisms, ensuring the expert
management and maximising the interests of its stakeholders. The responsibilities of Board of
Directors are well defined and every director is familiarised on the functioning of the
Company. The Board has always made decisions that are independent of management.

The Board of Directors is the apex body constituted by shareholders for overseeing the
Company’s overall functioning. Over the years, the Board has always endeavoured to fulfil
corporate responsibility towards our stakeholders. The Board has necessary authority and
processes to review and evaluate our operations when required. Further, the Board makes
decisions that are independent of the Management.

i. Composition of the Board

The Company is managed by the strong Board who are well acquainted about their
duties and responsibilities. As per the Articles, the company shall have a minimum of 4
Directors and not more than 15 Directors, Directors are to be nominated by both parties
i.e. NTPC and Ministry of Railways in accordance with their equity shareholding. The
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respective parties shall determine the period for which their respective
nominees shall hold office.

The Chairman of the Board shall always be a Director nominated by NTPC.

il. Independent Directors

DPE Guidelines on Corporate Governance for CPSEs requires the Company to
appoint two Independent Directors on the Board. However, Ministry of Corporate
Affairs, through Notification dated 05.07.2017, has exempted the public unlisted
wholly-owned subsidiary Companies from appointing Independent Directors.

We understand that the above DPE Guidelines are under revision to align it with
the Companies Act, 2013.

iii. Woman Directors

As per the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has appointed
one Woman Director on its Board. :

iv. Board Meetings

As on 31.03.2019, there were 4 (four) Directors on the Board as under:

S. No.| Name of Director Designation Date of Appointment

1. Shri A K. Gupta Chairman (nominated | Chairman w.e.f. 18.11.2017
by NTPC)

2. Shri RK. Jain Director (nominated by | Director w.e.f. 16.07.2018
Ministry of Railways)

3. Shri S. Narendra Director (nominated by | Director w.e.f. 23.05.2018
NTPC) '

4. Smt. Sangeeta Bhatia | Director (nominated by | Director w.e.f. 10.07.2014
NTPC)

During the year, four Meetings of the Board were held on 23.05.2018, 17.09.2018,
09.01.2019 and 12.03.2019. The attendance of Directors in Board Meetings was as

under:

Date of the BOARD MEETINGS
Meeting/
Nameofthe | PIN | 23.0518& | ., 05.0 00.01.19 12.03.19
Di Adj.
1rector

Shri A. K.
Gupta

Shri Shalabh
Goel
(Nomination
withdrawn by
Ministry of
Railways

07269906 Yes Yes Yes Yes

01192117 Yes N.A. N.A. N.A.
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w.e.f.
15.06.2018)
Smt. Sangeeta
Bhatia

Shri S.
Narendra 08126188 Yes Yes Yes Yes
Rirector
Shri R. K. Jain 08180329 N.A. Yes Yes Yes

1 Board Meetings, CEQ, CFO and Company Secretary were duly present.

06889475 Yes No Yes Yes

v. Number of Shares held by the Directors as on 31.03.2019

Directors No. of shares
Shri A. K. Gupta 100
Shri S. Narendra 100
Smt. Sangeeta Bhatia 100
Shri R. K. Jain Nil

Committees of the Board

The Board committees are considered as pillars of corporate governance. Our Board has
constituted Committees to focus on specific areas and make informed decisions within the
authority delegated to each of the Committees. Each Committee of the Board is guided by its
Charter, which defines the scope, powers and composition of the Committee. All decisions and
recommendations of the Committees are placed before the Board for information and approval
respectively. Senior functional executives are also invited, as and when required, to provide
necessary information/clarification to the Committees of the Board. We have following sub-
committees of the Board as on 31.03. 2019:

A, Audit Committee
B. Nomination and Remuneration Cormmittee

C. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

A, Audit Committee

The term of reference of Audit Committee is in accordance with Section 177(4) of the
Companies Act, 2013 and DPE Guidelines on Corporate Governance for CPSEs, which
includes the following;

(i) Discussions with the Auditors about the scope of audit including observations of
auditors;

(ii) Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its
financial information to ensure that financial statement are correct, sufficient and
credible;

(iii) Noting appointment and removal of external auditors. Recommending audit fee
of external auditors and also approval for payment for any other service;

(iv) Recommending appointment and remuneration of Cost Auditors;
(v) Review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance, and
effectiveness of audit process;
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(vi) Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with
related parties; :
{vii) Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;
(viii Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary;
(ix) Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;
(x) Monitoring the end use of funds raised through public offers and related matters;
(xi) Receiving the findings of any internal investigation by the internal auditors into
matters where there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal
control systems of a nature and reporting the matter to the Board;
(xii} Consider and review the following with the management, internal Auditor and
the independent Auditor:
1. Significant findings during the year, including the status of previous audit
recommendations;
2. Any difficulties encountered during audit work including any restrictions
on the Scope of the activities or access to required information.
(xiii, Review of all financial reports including Annexure to Cost Audit; Reports, Internal
Audit reports etc;
(xiv, Review of Management Discussion and Analysis report;
(xv) Review of half-yearly and annual financial statements before submission to the
Board for approval, with particular reference to:
1. Change, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the
same;
2. Significant adjustments made in financial statements arising out of audit
findings;
3. Disclosure of any related party transactions;
4. Qualifications in audit report.
(xvi. Review of observations of Statutory Auditors and Comptroller and Auditor
General of India and
(xvii Such matters as may be referred to it by the Board of Directors, from time to time.

The constitution of the Audit Committee of the Company as on 31.03.2019 comprised 3
{three} Members as under

(i) Smt. Sangeeta Bhatia, Chairman of the Committee

(it) Shri R, K. Jain, Director

(iti} Shri S. Narendra, Director

The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Committee.

During the year, two Meetings of the Committee were held on 23.05.2018 and
17.09.2018. The attendance of Directors in these Meetings was as under:

Date of the Meeting/

Name of the Member 23.05.18 17.09.18
Smt. Sangeeta Bhatia Yes No
Shri S. Narendra

(Member w.e.f. Yes Yes
23.05.2018)

Shri Shalabh Goel Yes N.A.
Shri R. K. Jain (Member

w.e.f. 16.07.2018) N.A. Yes
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During the year, there is no instance, where the Board had not accepted any
recommendation(s} of the Audit Committee.

Your Company has ensured to remain in the regime of unqualified statement.
B. Nomination & Remuneration Committee

The term of reference of Nomination & Remuneration Committee is in accordance with
Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, which is as under:

(i)  Shall identify who may be appointed in senior management in accordance
with the criteria laid down, recommend to the board their appointment and
removal; _

(i)  Shall formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes
& recommend to the board a policy relating to the remuneration for, KMP &
other employees;

(iii)  Shall while formulating the policy, NRC ensure that:

1. Relationship of remuneration to performance is clear & meets
appropriate performance benchmarks; and

2. Remuneration to KMP and senior management involves a balance
between fixed & incentive pay reflecting short & long-term
‘performance objectives appropriate to the working of the company &
its goals.

The constitution of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company as
on 31.03.2019 was as under:

i.  Smt. Sangeeta Bhatia, Chairman of the Committee
ii.  Shri S. Narendra, Director
iii.  Shri R. K. Jain, Director

No meeting of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee was held during the year
2018-19.

C, Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

The term of reference of Corporate Social Responsibility Committee is in accordance with
Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 which is as under:

(i) To formulate & recommend to the Board, a CSR Policy which shall indicate
the activities to be undertaken by the company as specified in Schedule VII to
the Companies Act, 2013 as amended from time to time by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs, GOI;

(i) To recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the activities
referred to in clause (a) and approve the budget for CSR;

(iii) To monitor the CSR Policy of the company from time to time;

(iv)  Shall institute a transparent monitoring mechanism for implementation of the
CSR projects or programs or activities undertaken by the company;

(v}  Any other matter as may be delegated by the Board from time to time.
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The constitution of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of the Company as
on 31.03.2012 comprised 3 (three) Directors as under:

(i) Shri S. Narendra, Chairman of the Committee
(ii) Smt. Sangeeta Bhatia, Director
(iii) Shri R. K. Jain, Director

During the year 2018-19, only 1 (one) meeting of the Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee was held on 09.01.2019. The attendance of Directors in Corporate Social
Responsibility Committee Meeting was as under:

Date of the meeting/ 09.01.2019
Name of the

member

Shri 8. Narendra Yes
(Member w.ef.

23.05.2018)

Shri R. K. Jain Yes
{(Member w.efl.

16.07.2019)

Smt. Sangeeta Yes
Bhatia

Remuneration Policy/ Detail of Remuneration to Directors

Since, the Directors are nominated by NTPC and Ministry of Railways, they are
governed by the remuneration policy as applicable to their parent organisations.

Performance Related Payvment to Employees

As majority of the employees are on secondment basis from NTPC, their remuneration
is as per the rules of NTPC.

During the year, 39 Diploma Trainees are also recruited in the Company. They are
being paid stipend as per their recruitment rules.

Annual Performance Related Payment is decided by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee based on the PRP decided by NTPC for employees on

secondment basis to its subsidiaries and joint venture companies.

General Body Meetings

The attendance of Directors in Annual General Meeting held during the FY 2018-19 are
as under:

Date of the Meeting/ Name of the AGM
Director 17.09.2018
Shri A. K. Gupta, Chairman and Yes
Member
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Shri R. K. Jain, Director Yes
Shri S. Narendra, Member and Yes
Director
Shri Sangeeta Bhatia, Member and No
Director

[+

The Chairman of the Audit Committee and Nomination and Remuneration Committee could
not be present in the Annual General Meeting. Other Members of the Committees were present
to answer the queries of the shareholders.

Forthcoming AGM: Date, Time and Venue

The 12% Annual General Meeting of the Company (AGM) is scheduled on Tuesday, 30t
July 2019 at the registered office of the Company situated at NTPC Bhawan, Scope
Complex, 7, Institutional Area, Lodi Road, New Delhi-110003.

Location and Time of the last three AGMs
The location, time and details of the special resolutions passed during last three AGMs

are as follows:

For the FY '2015-16 - 2016-17 2017-18

AGM 9th 10t 11t

Date and 27.07.2016 25.08.2017 17.09.2018

Time 12:00 noon 05:30 p.m. 3:00 p.m.

Venue NTPC Bhawan, NTPC Bhawan, NTPC Bhawan,
SCOPE Complex, 7, | SCOPE Complex, 7, | SCOPE Complex, 7,
Institutional Area, Institutional Area, Institutional Area,
Ledi Road, New Lodi Road, New Lodi Road, New
Delhi-110003 Delhi-110003 Delhi-110003

Special - - -

Resolution

Passed

7. Means of Communication

The Company communicates with its shareholders through its Annual Report and
General Meefings.

8. Disclosures

a.  Every Director of the Company had disclosed his nature of interest/ concern in
the company or companies or bodies corporate, firms, or other association of
individuals as required under the Companies Act, 2013 from time to time.

b.  The Annual Financial Statements FY 2018-19 are in conformity with applicable
Accounting Standards. During the year, there have been no materially significant
Related Party Transactions that may have potential conflict with the interest of the
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Company at large. The details of “Related Party Disclosures” are being disclosed
in Notes to the accounts in the Annual Report.

c. The Company has a system in place for monitoring of various statutory and
procedural compliances. Further, a compliance certificate on applicable laws is in
place on yearly basis.

d. CEO and CFO of the Company, inter-alia, confirmed the correctness of the
financial statements, adequacy of the internal control and certified other matters
to the Board and Audit Committee, as per the requirements of Department of
Public Enterprises Guidelines.

e.  All the Board Members and Senior Management Personnel are governed by the
Code of Conduct of NTPC Limited as they are nominated/ deputed by NTPC.
The affirmation to the Code of Conduct is given by Board Members and Senior
Management Personnel at NTPC.

f.  The Company promotes ethical behaviour in all its business activities and has put
in place a mechanism for reporting illegal or unethical behaviour. The Company
has implemented Whistle Blower Policy (Vigil Mechanism) under which the
employees are free to report violations of applicable laws and regulations. No
personnel have been denied access to the Audit Committee.

g.  During the year under review, no Presidential Directive was received by your
Company. However, the Parent Company, i.e. NIPC received a Presidential
Directive for revision of pay of executives of the Company. The same was
complied for the executives of the Company who were on secondment basis from
NTPC.

9. The information regarding shareholding pattern of Promoters and Directors is given
under Extract of Annual Return which is at Annex -I1II to the Directors” Report.

10. Training of Board Members

As the Board Members are the Nominees of NTPC and Ministry of Railways, they are
being imparted training by their parent organisations. Detailed presentations were
made by senior executives/ professionals/ consultants on business-related issues at the
Board /Committee meetings as and when required.

11, Location of Plant

Nabinagar Thermal Power Project (4x250 MW), Distt. Aurangabad, Nabinagar,

Bihar.
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Place: New Delhi (Shri A. K. Gupta)
Dated: 30.07.2019 Chairman

DIN: 07269306
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Chief Executive Officer (CEQ) & Chief Financial Officer (CFQ) Certification

We, C. Sivakumar, Chief Executive Officer and Manoj Srivastava, Chief Financial Officer of
Bhartiya Rail Bijlee Company Limited, to the best of our knowledge and belief, certify that:

{a) We have reviewed financial statements, including all notes 1o the financial statements and the cash
flow statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 and to the best of our knowledge and belief:

(i) these statements do not contain any materially untrue slatement or omit any material
facl or contain statements that might be misleading;

i {ii) these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s aftairs and are
| in compliance with existing accounting standards. applicable laws and regulations,

(b) To the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during
the year, which is fraudulent, illegal or violative of the company’s various code(s) of conduct.

{c) We are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting
and we have evaluated the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Company
pertaining to financial reporting and have disclosed to the auditors and the Audit Committee,
deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and
the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

(d) We have indicated to the company’s auditors and the Audit Committee of BRBCL’s Board of

Directors:
(i) significant changes, if any, in internal control over financial reporting during the year;
{ii) significant changes, if any, in accounting pelicies during the year and the same have

been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and

{iii) instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement
therein, if any, of the management or an employee having a significant role in the
company’s internal control system over financial reporting.

oy g

{(Manoj Sifvastava) {C. Sivakumar)
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer

Place: New Delhi
Date : May {4, 2019
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DEEPAK DHIR & ASSOCIATES

Company Secretaries

G-17. Anupam Complex, Plot Nu, ¥-10, A-lock
paschim Vihar, New Dethi-1 10063

Mob, : +0(-7503304860, Ph.: (11-45319097
E-mail: csdevpukdhsradgmailoon.

e Members,
Bhartiva Rail Bijlee Company Limited

W have examined the compliance of Guidulines on Corporate Governance for Centrai
Preblic Sector Enterprise, 2010 as issued by DPE from time to time of your Company.

The compliance of guidelines on Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the
aanagement. Our examination was limited to the procedures and implementation
‘heroot, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the Guidelines on
torparate Governapcee. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on financial
statenyents of the Company.

Ia our epinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanation
siven te us by the management, we certify that the Company has complied DPE
Guidelines  on Corporate  Governance except with respect to appeintment of
ldependent Directors as required thereunder.

\Wo further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability
ol the Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has
conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Deepak Dhir & Associates
1pany Secretaries

b

CP No.: 17296
rate: 19.07.2010
Phoce: New Delhi



(33[47)

BHARTIYA RAIL BIJLEE COMPANY LIMITED

Annexure - |l to the Directors’ Repont of BRBCL
Form No. MGT-9

Extract of Annual Returh
as on financial year ended on March 31, 2019
[Pursuant ie Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013and Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration}

Rules, 2014]
I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:
i) CIN ;. U40102DL2007G 01170661
iy  Registration Date . November 22, 2007
i) MName of the Company : Bhartiya Rail Bijlee Company Limited
v}y  Category / Sub-Category of the Company :  Public Company / Gevernment Company
v}  Address of the Registered office and contact details :  NTPC Bhawan, Core 7, SCOPE Complex, 7,
Institutional Area, Lodi Road, New Delhi-110003
Ph. No.: 011-2436 0071
Fax No.: 011-24360241
E-mail: vishalgarg @ntpc.ce.in
vi)  Whether listed company Yes / No : No
vii) Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar and Transter : Not Applicable*

Agent, if any
*Beetal Financial & Computer Services Private Limited was appointed as RTA for shares of the Company in FY 2018-20
il. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:-

Sl. Name and Description of main products/Servicas | NIC code of the Product/service | % to total turnover of the
No. Company
1 Electric Power Generation by coal based thermal 35102 100%
power plants

1. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

[5.No. Name and address of the Company CIN/GLN - Eolding! ofApplicable Section
ubsidiary/ hares
Associate eld
1 NTPC Limited L40101DL1975GOI007966 Helding 74% P {46) of the
Address: NTPC Bhawan, Core 7, SCOPE Companias Act, 2013
Complex, 7, Institutional Area, Lodhi Road,
New Dalhi-110003

IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

i) Category-wise Share Holding

Category of | No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year | No. of shares held at the end of the year % Change
Shareholders during the
year
Demat| Physical Total %of |Demat| Physical Total % of
Total Total
shares shares
A. Promoters
(1} Indian
individualtHUE .
Fi} As Nominee of NTPQ, - 5800 500 0.00 - 500 500 .00
it) As Nominee of - 100 100 0.00 - 100 100 0.00

inistry of Railways

Ministry of Railways)
)State Govt.(s) - - - - - - - - -

E)Central Gowt. - 56,19,98,746 | 56,19,98,746 26.00 - 56,19,08,746 | 56,19,98,746 | 26.00 -
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ategory of

hareholders

No. of Shares held at the be_glnning of the year

No. of shares held at the and of the year

% Change
during the

year

Damat

Physical

Total

% of
Total
shares

Dernat| Physlcal

Total

% of
Total
shares

d)Bodies Corp.
NTPC Lirited

- |1,59.9533,144

1,509,95,33,144

74.00

- |1,59,9533,144

1,69,95,33,144

74.00 -

JBanks/F1
Any Other

Sub-total {A) (1):-

- 12,16,15,32,480

2,16,15,32,490

100%

2,16,15,32,490

2,16,15,32,490

K2) Foreign

INRIs- individuals
JOther-Individuals
) Bodies Corp.

) Banks / Ft

y Any Other

ub-total (A} (2):-

Total shareholding of
Fromoter
{A) = (A)(1) + A(2)

B. Public Shareholding

M.Institutions

yMutual Funds
)Banks/FI
yCentral Govt.
State Govt.{s}
Wenture Capitai
Funds
fiinsurance Companies
g)Flls

h)Foreign Venture
Capital Funds
1Qthers{specify}

Sub-total (B) (1)

2.Non-institutions

)Bodies Corp.

} Indian

iy Overseas

hindividuals

Jindividual
Shareholders holding
nominal share capital
upto? 1 lakh

i) Individuals
hareholders
olding nominal
hare  capital in
xcess of 1 lakh

c)Others{specity)

Sub-total (B) ()=

Total Public;
Shareholding
(B)=(B){(1)+(B)(2)

IC. Shares held by
Custodian  for
GDRs & ADRs

Grand Total
{A+B+C)

- |2,16,15,32,490

2,16,15,32,490

- |2,18,15,32,480

2,16,15,32,490

100% -

(ii} Shareholding

of Promoters

sl
No.

Shareholder's Name

year

Shareholding at the beginning of the

Shareholding at the end of the year

No. of Shares

% of total
Shares of
the
company| total shares

% of Shares
Pledged /

encumbered to

% of total
Shares
of the
icompan

Np. of shares

% of Shares
Pledged /

ncumbered to

total shares

% change in the|
shareholding
during the year

NTPC Limited

1,59,95,33,144

74.00 -

1,58,85,33,144 74.00

Ministry of Railways

56,19,98,746

26.00 -

56,19,98,746 | 26.00

2 [ bt

Nominees of NTPC

500

.00 -

500 0.00
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INominees of Ministry of 100 0.00 -

ailways

100

0.00

(iii)lChange in Promoters' Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

S1 | Particulars Shareholding at the beginning ot | Cumulative shareholding during the
No. the year year
No. of shares % of total | No.of shares % of total shares of
shares of the khe company
company
At the beginning of the year 2,16,15,32,480 100.00 2,16,15,32,430 100.00
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters - - - -
Shareholding during the year specifying the
reasons for increase / decrease (e.g. allotment /
transfer / honus / sweat equity etc.):
At the End of the year 2,16,15,32,490 100.00 2,16,15,32,490 100.00

{iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors,Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs)

S1 | For each of Top 10 shareholders Bhareholding at the Cumulative Shareholdin
No. beginning of the year  during the year
No. of % of total No. of % of total
shares | shares ofthe | shares | shares of the
company company
At the beginning of the year - - - -
Date wise Increase / Decrsase in Sharsholding during the ysar spacifying the - - - -
reasons for increase / decrease (e.g. allotment/ fransfer / bonus / sweat equity
efc.;: P
At the end of the year ( or on the date of separation, if separated during the - - - -
year)
(v} Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:
I8l NoFor each of the Directors and KMP harehclding at the | Cumulative
inning of the year Shareholding during
the year
No. of %oftotal No. of| % oftotal
shares | shares of the shares shares of the
company company
1. [shri A.K. Gupta .
Chairman &Nominee Shareholder of NTPC
At the beginning of the year - 100 0.00 100 0.00
Date wisa increase / decrease in Shareholding during the year specitying the Nil 0.00 Nil 0.00
reasons for increase / decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer/ bonus /sweat equity
atc):
At the End of the year 100 Q.00 100 0.00
2. Ms. Sangeeta Bhatia
Director &Nominee Sharcholder of NTPC
At the beginning of the year 100 0.0 100 0.00
Date wise ingrease / decrease in Shareholding during the year specifying the Nil 0.00 Nil 0.00
reasons for increase / decrease {e.g. allotment/ transfer/ bonus /sweat equity
etel:
At the End of the year 100 .00 100 0.00
3. | ShriS. Narendra’
Director &Nominee Shareholder of NTPC
At the beginning of the year Nil 0.00 Nil 0.00
Date wise increase / decrease in Shareholding during the year specifying the 100 0.00 100 0.00
reasons for increase / decrease (a.g. allotment / transfar/ bonus /sweat equity
etc); Shares tfransferred from Shri M.P. Sinha, Director & Nomings
shareholder of NTPC on 23.05.2018.
At the End of the year 100 0.00 100 0.00

1Appointed as Director w.e.f. 23.05.2018

V.

INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrue but not due for payment

ecured
acluding deposits

Loansinsecured Loans

Deposits Total
ndebtedness

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financlal year |

!




(2¢/v)

ured LoansUnsecured Loans Deposits [Total
xeluding deposits ndeltedness

i} Principal Amount 49,79,93,20,797 409,79,83,20,757
iij Interest due but not paid - -
i) Interest accruad but not due 73,62,94,966 73,62,94, 966
Total {i + ii + i) 50,53,56,15,763 50,53,56,15,763
Change in indebtedness during the financial year

« __ Addition 3644827450 3944827450

+  Reduction - -
Net Change
Indebtedness at the end of the financial year
iy Principal amount 53,74,41,48,247 53,74,41,48.247
i) interest due but not paid - -
fii} Interest accrued but not due 78,62,38,531 78,62,38,531
Total (i + it + i) 54,53,03,88778

54,53,03,86,778

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

5I.  JParticulars of Remuneratlon MName of Total
No. MD/WTD/Manager Amount
1. |Gross Salary - - - - - -

a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) if the Income-tax Act, 1961
b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2} Income-tax Act, 1961

¢) Profits in liou of salary under section 17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961

2. Stock Option - - - - -

3. Sweat Equity - - - - .
4, Commission - - - - n
- as % of profit
- others, specify...
S Others, please specify - R - - N
Total {A) - - - - N

Cailing as per the Act N - N N R

Remuneration {o other directors:

Bl Particulars of Remunaration Name of Directors Total
. No. Amount

1. independent Directors - - - - -
¢ Fee for attending board / committeemestings
» Commission
s (thers, please specify
Total (1) . . - - .
2. Other Non-Executive Directors - - - - -
» Fee for attending board/ committee meetings
« Commission
» {Others, pleass specify
Total {2) - . - - . -
Total (B)={1+2) - - - - -
Total Managerial Remuneration - - - - .
Overall Ceiling ag per the Act - - - - -

Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/ Manager/ WTD

Sl Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel
MNo.
CEO CFO Company Total
Secretary®
j. Gross Salary
{a) Salary as per provisions contained in 61,56,668 58,52,883 36,33,209 1,56,42,760
section 17{1} of the Income-tax
Act, 1961
{b} Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax | -~ 4,28,265 1,589,224 1,06,153 6,93,642

Act, 1961
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SL Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel
No.
CEOQ CFO Company Total
Saecretary®
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3} (.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Income-tax Act, 1961
2. Stock Option
3. Sweat Equity
4. Commission - a5 % of profit
- gthers, specify. ..
5. Othars, please specify
Total 65,84,933 80,12,107 37,39,362 1,63,36,402
ACS is posted at Delhi. Accordingly, salary is also being debited at Delhi,
Vii. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:
Type Section of thegrief description alls of Penalty /|Authority(RD/ Appeal made, if
Companles Act unishment {|NCLT / COURT) any {give details)
mpounding fees
mposed
A. COMPANY
Penalty - - - -
Punishmant - - - -
Compounding - - - -
B. DIRECTORS
Penalty - - - -
Punishment - - hd -
Compoundin - - - -
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty - - - -
Punishment - - - -
Compounding - - - -

Place: New Delhi
Dated: 30.07.2019

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

{AK. Gupia)
Chairman
(DIN: 07269906)
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Annex-1V to Directors’ Report of BRBCL

A brief outline of the company's CSR policy, including overview of projects or programs
proposed to be undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR policy and projects or
programs.

Keeping in view the size of the Company and manpower required for executing the CSR activities,
your Company has adopted the CSR policy of its holding company viz. NTPC Limited.

The CSR Policy is formulated keeping in view the requirements of the Department of Public
Enterprises and the Companies Act, 2013. The CSR policy focused on Health, Sanitation, Drinking
Water, Education, Capacity Building, Women Empowerment, Social Infrastructure Development,
support to Physically Challenged Person (PCPs), and activities contributing towards Envircnment
Sustainability and other subject matter described under Schedule VI| of the Companies Act, 2013.

The CSR Committee as on 31.03.2019 comprised Shri S. Narendra, Shri R.K. Jain and Ms. Sangeeta
Bhatia, Directors.

Average net profit (loss) of the company for last two financial years.

The average net profit {loss) of the Company for three immediately preceding financial years i.e.,
2015-16, 2016-17 and 2017-18 is ¥ 14.74 Crore.

Prescribed CSR Expenditure.

As per requirement of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company is required to spend 2% of the average
net profit of the company made during three immediately preceding financial years in CSR activities.
As the average net profit {loss) of the Company for three immediately preceding financial years was ¥
14.74 Crore, the Company is required to spend ¥ 29.48 lakh on CSR activities in the FY 2018-19.

Details of CSR spent during the financial year 2018-19:

(a) Total amount to be spent for the financial T 35.87 Lakh
year 2018-19 (for the FY 2018-19, ¥ 29.48 Lakh is to be spent and
¥ 6.39 lakh was carried forward from last years'
. unspent amount)
(b) Amount unspent, if any ¥ 35.27 Lakh
(c) Manner in which the amount spent during In the table
the financial year
() (2) (3} *) (5) {6) {7) (8)
S.No | CSR project or activity Sector in Projects or Amount Amount | Cumulative [Amount spent;
identified Which the Programs outlay |spent on the|expenditure| Direct or
Projectis |(1) Local area| {(budget) | Projects or | upto to the through
covered or other Projector | programs | reporting }implementing
(2)Specify Programs | Sub-heads: period. agency
the State and wise {1) Direct | (Amount in
the district | (Amount in | expenditure Lakh
where Lakh) on projects
projects or _ or programs-
progams was {2)
undertaken Overheads:
{Amount in
Lakh)
1 [Distribution of Tri cycle/ -
Wheel chair / Ultra 0.61 Pirect
Sound hard stick for the - [BRBCL 061
blind
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* Medical for 16 PAP villages is under award stage and the Company has planned to undertake
construction / repairing of nearby village roads, school bm!dmg repairing and facility improvement,
drinking water facilities in nearby school etc

6. Reasons for not spending two per cent of the average net profit of the last three financial years

or any part thereof.

- At present CD activities are going on in full swing in and around the plant premises.

The Company has undertaken voluntarily the work of constructicn of roads in Udwant Nagar and
Sandesh Block of Arrah District, Bihar to the tune of about ¥ 5.0 crore.

- In addition to the CD activities, numbers of Govt. sponsored projects are also being allocated by
local administration.

Our project works are going on and in consuitation with local administration & stakeholders, CSR
activities are being planned to avoid repstition of activities (launched by GOI) and will take shape
in this financial year i.e. 2019-20.

- Last year, budget allocated in the 1! week of Jan 2019 and as such remaining total balance corpus
will be spent in the present financial year 2019-20. However, as per the need and emergent
requirements of the locality, we are organizing various activities in addition to the CD activities.

- It will take some time te finalize the consoclidated CSR activities in this locality in consultation with
local villagers, VDAC and District Admn., which will be beneficial for the Project Affected areas in
and around our project. Sustainable development like livelihood training, Self Help Groups
formation are our focussed endeavour in FY 2019-20 and corpus will be allocated accordingly to
tulfil the aspiration of PAPs’ and affected people in and around our project,

- The balance activities are under award stage and will be accomplished in the present FY 2019-20.

7. A responsibility statement of the CSR Committee
The Responsibility Staterment of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee is reproduced below:

The implementation and monitoring of Corporate Social Responsibility Policy, is in compliance with
CSR objectives and policy of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

(C. Sivakumar) (A.K. Gupta)
Chief Executive Officer CHAIRMAN

Place: New Delhi
Date: 30.07.2019
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DEEPAK DHIR & ASSOCIATES

Company Secretaries

G-17, Anupam Complex, Plor N 9- 1A Bl b
Pasclhim Vihar, New Delhi- 110063

Mieoh,  +91-7503304860, Pl 81115019487
E-mail: csdeepakdbirgegimaitoom

Form No. MR.S
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH, 2019
[Pursuant to section 204{ 1} of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule

No. 9 of the Companies {Appointment and Remuneration Personnel}
Rufes, 2014}

T

T dMembers

Hhartiya Rail Bijlee Company Limited
CinCU40IN2ZNDL2007GO1E70661

NTPC Bhawan, Core - 7 Stope Complex,
T ohnstitutional Area, Lodhi Road

Nowy Delhi-110003

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory
provisions and the adherence to good vorporate practices by Bhartiya Rail Bijlee
Company Limited (hereinafter called “the Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted ina
awaniner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory
cumpiiances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Hosed o our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute beoks, forms and returas
plad aod other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by
co tumpany, s officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct o
secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the company has, during the udit
aeriod covering the financial vear ended on 315 March 2019 complied with the statutory
nrovisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and
cempifance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the repurting
mace hereinafter:

Wi have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the Company for the tinancial year ended on 315 March 2019
dreording to the provisions of:

(i The Companies Act, 2013 {the Act) and the rules made there under;

foc T ne secunives Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 PSCRA') and the rules made there under
{Nut applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);
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Bhartiva Rail Bijlee Company Limited....2

{1111 The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulutions and Bye-laws framed there under {Not
applicable to the Company during the Audit Period); '

() Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there
Lniter to the extent of Foreign Direct [Investiment, Overseas Direct investment and bxteraal
Cresmercial Borrowings {Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period}:

(v 1 Hhe following Reguiations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Bosrd of India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act'):-

J)

b1}

fuif Lo

The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011 {Not applicable to the Company during the Audit
Period);

The Securities and FExchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading
Resulations, 2015 (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period});

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (issue of Capital and Disclusure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018 {Not applicable to the Company during the
Audit Period);

The securities and Exchange Board of India [Share Based Employee Benetts)
Regulations, 2014 (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period}.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Issue and Listing of Debt Securitics)
Regulations, 2008 (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with
client (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period):

The Securities and Exchange Board of [ndia {Delisting of Equity Shares} Regulations.
2009 (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period); and

The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Buyback of Securities) Regulations,
2014 (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

ampliance processes/systems under other applicable laws to the Company are heing

v orilied on the basis of periodic certificate submitted to the Boards of Directors of e
Conpany.

W have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

R

Contda. 3

Secretarial Standards as amended trom time to time, issued by The Institute of
Cempany Secretaries of India. Generally complied with.
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h) Securities and Exchange Board ol India {Listing Obligation and Disciosure
Requirements), Regulation, 2015 (Not applicable to the Company during the
Audit Period);

uring the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act,

y
. es, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned ahove.

)
We further report that the Board of Directors of the Company of the Company is duly

cunstizuted. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during
the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Generally, adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda

i detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists
for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before
the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

All thedecisions made in the Board/Committee meetings(s) were carried out with majority
ot the Directors/Members present during the meeting though while the dissenting
birectors/member’s views, if any, are captured and recorded as part of the minutes.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company
connmensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period there were no specific events/actions
occurred which had a major bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of above
referred laws, rules, regulation, guidelines and standards,

For Deepak Dhir & Associates
sEmpany Secretaries

{ SNO 45930
CP Nop.: 17296
Date: 20.06.201¢
Pace: New Dethi

This report is to be read in conjunction with our letter of even date which is marked as
‘Annexure A’ and forms an integrai part of this report.

ot 4
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CRAY

Annexure A

The Members

M/s Bhartiya Rail Bijlee Company Limited
CIN: U40102DL2007G01170661

\'I'PC Bhawan, Core - 7 Scope Complex,

7. Institutional Area, Lodhi Road

New Dethi-110003

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

i.

[ A

6.

Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the
Company. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records,
based on our inspection of records produced betore us for audit.

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records.
The veritication was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in
secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide
a reasonable basis for our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and
Books of Accounts of the Comwmpany and our veport is not covering
observations/conments/weaknesses already pointed out by the other Auditors.

Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable Jaws, rules,
regutations, standards is the respousibility of management. Qur examination was
limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as-to future viability of the
company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has
conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Deepak Dhir & Associates
ampany Secretaries

“./

K0S No.: 45930
CP No.: 17296

Date: 2006.2019
Place: New Delhi
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BHARTIYA RAIL BLILEE COMPANY LIMITED
(A subsidiary of NTPC Limited)
Proxy Form

[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014}

CIN U40102DL2007G0OI170661

Name of the Bhartiya Rail Bijlee Company Limited

Company

Registered Office NTPC Bhawan, Core- 7, SCOPE Complex, 7
intuitional Area, Lodi Road, New Delhi

Name of the member(s)
Registered address

E-mail Id

Folio No/ Client Id

DPID
IWe, beingthemember () of ..o, shares of Bhartiva Rail Bijlee
Company Limited, hereby appoint:
1) of o havinge-mailid ........................ or failing him
2) Of i havinge-mailid ....................... or failing him
) i Of e having e-mail id ....cc.oooveiniinn

and whose signature(s) are appended below, as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a
poll) for me/us and on myfour behalf at the Eleventh Annual General Meeting of the
Company to be held on Tuesday, 30" July 2019 at 5:00 P.M. at the Registered Office
of the Company at 5™ Floor, Committee Room No. 2, NTPC Bhawan, Core-7, SCOPE
Complex, 7, Institutional Area, Lodhi Road, New Delhi-110003 and at any adjournment
thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:

S. Vote

Resolution
No. For

ORDINARY BUSINESSES

1 Adoption of Audited Financial Statement of the Company for the
financial year ended 31 March 2019 and the report of the Board of
Directors and Auditors thereon.

2 Authorization to the Board of Directors to fix the remuneration of the
Statutory Auditors for the Financial Year 2019-20,

3 | To appoint a Director in place of Shri S. Narendra (DIN: 08126188),
who retires by rotation and eligible, offers Himself for re-appointment.
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SPECIAL BUSINESSES

4- | To ratify the remuneration of Cost Auditors for the Financial Year

2018-19 and authorize the Board of Directors to fix the remuneration
for the Financial Year 2012-20.

Affix Revenue
Stamp Re.1/-
Signed this............... dayof......... 2019
Signature of shareholder
Signature of Proxy holder{s) First Second Third
NOTES:

1.

This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the
Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of
the Meeting.

The Proxy Form should be signed across the stamp as per specimen signature registered
with the Company.

Please put ‘X' in the appropriate column against the resolutions indicated in the Box. If
you |leave the ‘For' or ‘Against’ column blank against any or all the resolutions, your Proxy
will be entitled to vote in the manner as he/she thinks appropriate. '
Appointing a proxy does not prevent a member from attending the meeting in person if he
50 wishes.

In the case of joint holders, the signature of any one holder will be sufficient, but names of
all the joint holders should be stated.
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BRIEF RESUME OF THE DIRECTORS SEEKING RE- APPOINTMENT:

Name Shri 8. Narendra
Date of Birth & Age 08/04/1960

59 years
Date of Appointment 23/05/2018

Qualifications

B.E. in Mechanical Engineering

Expertise in
functional area

specific

He has overall 36 years of Power Sector experience in Operation &
Maintenance of sub-critical to Super-Critical Units in various capacities
including Green field & Brown field Projects with Boundary Management having
administrative control of Finance, Human Resource, Contract & Materials,
Engineering/Technical Services, Vigilance, Commercial etc.

As a core team member for takeover of Talcher Thermal, 460 MW {4X60 MW
+ 2X110 MW) units were successfully taken over from Govt. of Odisha and total
turnaround was done after completion of R&M in different phases with
continued remarkable position in the country level. -

Directorship held in other
companies

1. Kanti Bijlee Utpadan Nigam Limited

2. Nabinagar Power Generating Company Private Limited

Membership/
Chairmanship of
Committees across all
Public Companies held as
on 31.03.2019

Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee:
1. Bhartiya Rail Bijlee Company Limited (Member})

2. Kanti Bijlee Utpadan Nigam Limited (Member)

No. of shares held in the
Company

100

Attendance in Board
Meetings till 31.03.2019

No. of Meetings during his tenure = 4
No. of Meetings attended =4

Relationship with other
Directors and KMP

None
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To

The Members of BHARTIYA RAIL BIJLEE COMPANY LIMITED
Report on the Audit of Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Ind AS financial statements of BHARTIYA RAIL, BILEE
COMPANY LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31%t March, 2019, the
Statement of Profit and Loss (inc¢luding other comprehensive income), the Cash Flow Statement and
the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(hereinafter referred to as “Standalone Ind AS Fina ncial Statement”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
atoresaid standalone Ind AS financial statement give the information required by the Act in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India of the state of affairs of the company as at 31st March 2019 and its losses,
cash flows and the change in equity for the year ended on that date.

Emphasis of Matters
wWe draw the attention to the following matters:

the conveyance of 130.606707 acres of freehold land valued at 41,47,60,274.84 is stil pending
or registration since long although validity period of agrecement for sale of land has expired,

Confirmation of some of the balances and /or statement of accounts in respect of “Other Advance
Capex {Gl. Code 1034106), Initial advance(s) construction (GL code -1034100}, Advances
contractors - 0 & M (GL Code-1101300), Railway Claim recoverable (GL Code-1100837), Other
Claims (G1. Code 1100822 and Advance against material (0 & M } (GL Code 1101300) etc. were not
aviailable. In view of above, authenticity of such balances remained unverified.

The confirmation of balances under head construction stores lying with the contractors could not
be verified in absence of joint verification statements in this regard.

ltowever, our report is not qualified in respect of the items as commented under the head of
"Emphasis of Matters” as above.

“her Shah Raoja Road, Sasaram, Rohtas, Bihar-B21115, Mi: 9431028035, 9661606060
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Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section
143(10) of the Companies Act 2013. Qur responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of aur report. We are
independent of the company in accordance with the code of ethics issued by the institute of chartered
accountant of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements under the provisions of the companies Act, 2013 and the rules there under, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

!nfqrmation Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other informations. The
ather information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis,
Board’s Report including Annexures to Board's Report and Shareholder’s information, but does not
include the standalone financial statement and our Auditors Report thereon.

Our Opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

[n connection with our Audit of the standalone financial statement, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the information materially inconsistent with the
standaione financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

tf, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’'s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Standalone Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including
cther comprehensive income and cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other trregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

!n preparmg the fmam:lal statements management is responmble for assessmg the company’s ablhty

Sher Shah Rauja Road, Sasaram, Rohtas, Bihar-821115. Mb: 9431028033, 9661606060
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the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those boards of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditors’ Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud and error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statement.

. Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report} Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section {11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
Annexure-1 a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order, to the
extent applicable.

2. We are enclosing our report in terms of Section 143 (5) of the Act, on the basis of such checks of
the books and records of the Company as we considered appropriate and according to the
information and explanations given to us, in the Annexure-2 on the directions and sub-directions
issued by Comptroller and Auditor General of India.

3. Asrequired by Section 143 {3) of the Act, we report that:

{a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
. far as it appears from our examination of those books;

(¢} The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement and the
statement of changes in equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of
account;

{d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the .
Companies {(Accounts) Rules, 2015 {As amended);

(e) Being a Government Company, pursuant to the Notification No. GSR 463(E) dated 5th June
2015 issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India, provisions of sub-section
{2} of Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013, are not applicable to the Company.

(f} With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to Annexure-3.

(g} With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:
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I. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
financial statements - Refer Note- 39 to the financial statements;

Il The company does not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts as at
31.03.2019 for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

fl.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investors and
Education and Protection Fund by the company during the year ended March 31, 2019.

For Chamaria & Co.

i
Chartered Accoy S o*
Firm Registrafi /514
irm Reﬁg!gtmmi}jgyiiél‘ic
. - O/

SuniTKirmar Chamaria
Partner
Membership No. 094316

Date: 21.05.2019
Place: New Delhi

Sher Shah Rauja Road, Sasaram, Rohtas, Bihar-821115, Mb: 9431028035, 9661606060
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ANNEXURE-1 TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

(Annexure referred to in our report of even date to the members of BHARTIYA RAIL BIJLEE
COMPANY LIMITED on the accaunts for the year ended 31stMarch, 2019)

1

Tem

fa) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including
yuantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b} A major portion of the fixed assets has been physically verified by the Management in
accordance with a phased programmed of verification once in two years adopted by the
company. In our opinion, the frequency of the verification is reasonable having regard to the
size of the company and the nature of its assets. To the best of our knowledge, no material
discrepancies have been noticed on such verification.

(c) As informed, the title deeds of all the immovable properties are held in the name of the
Company. '

As explained to us, the management during the year has physically verified inventories at
reasonable interval and in respect of stores and spares, there is a perpetual inventory system
and a substantial part of such stock has been verified during the year. However, stocks in the
possession and custody of third parties and stock in transit as at 31st March 2019 have been
verified by the management with reference to confirmation or statement of account or
correspondence of third parties or subsequent receipt of goods. In our opinion, the frequency

~of verification is reasonable. The discrepancies noticed during physical verification of

inventories as compared to book records were not material and the same have been preoperly
dealt within the books of accounts.

According to the information and the explanations given to us, the company has not granted
any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, limited liability partnership or other
parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act 2013,
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iii){a), 3(iii)(b) and 3(iii){c) of the order are not
applicable to the company and hence not commented upon.

The Company has not granted any loans or given any guarantee and security covered under
section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iv) of
the order are not applicable to the company and hence not commented upon.

According to the information given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits under
the provisions of section 73 to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013 or any other relevant provisions
of the companies Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits} Rules, 2014 as amended
from time to time. No order has been passed with respect to Section 73 to 76, by the Company
Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any Court or any
other tribunal.

L
e

."\,‘;f e
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Ster Shah Rauya Road, Sasaram, Roheas, Bihar-821115, Mb: 9431028035, 966 1606060

We have broadly reviewed the books of accounts and records maintained by the company
pursuant to the rules made by the central government for the maintenance of cost records
under section 148 (1) of the Companies Act 2013 in respect of the company’s products and are

~of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed records have been made and maintained. We

have, however, not made a detailed examination of records with a view to determine whether
they are accurate or complete.

(a) Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employee’ state insurance, income tax,
(ST, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax—cess and other
statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities and
there are no undisputed dues outstanding as at 315*March, 2019 for a period of more than six
months from the date they became payable.

{(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no material dues of
GST, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax and cess which have
not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute. However,
according to information and explanations given to us, the following dues of income tax and
entry tax have not been deposited by the Company on account of disputes:

'Name of the Nature of Amount(in?) | Period to | Forum where
_statute  dues | which the | dispute is pending
- amount

! | relates
' Bihar Entry Tax | VAT 590,29,995.00 | FY 2013-14to | Dy. Commissioner of
- Act . FY 2014-15 Commercial Tax,
L Aurangabad

_Income Tax Act. | Income Tax 11,004,319.00 § AY 2011-12 Income Tax Appellate
1961 - | Tribunal, New Delhi

Income Tax Act, | }ncome Tax 57,124,678.00 A AY 2012-13 Income Tax Appellate
£ 1961 - Tribunal, New Delhi
. Bihar Entry 'I‘ax VAT 48,27,518 | FY 2015-16 Dy. Commissicner of
- Act ! Comm, Tax,
- | Aurangabad
* Bthar Entry Tax | Entry Tax 16,55,089 . FY 2014-15 Dy. Commissioner of |
*Act Comm. Tax,
" Aurangabad

Rihar Entry Tax | Entry Tax 1,06,70,227 | FY 2013-14 Dy. Commissioner of
Act : j Comm. Tax,
| ' o Aurangabad
Bihar Entry 'I‘ax Entry Tax 42,56,582 - FY 20014-15 Dy. Commissioner of
CAct 5 Comm. Tax,
I 5 5 Aurangabad
. Bihar Entry Tax |  Entry Tax 55.597,176.00 | FY  2012-13/ | Dy. Commissioner of
Act ; ' FY  2015-16/ | Comm. Tax, |-

. FY 2016-17 & | Aurangabad
| FY 2017-18

\\u
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8. Based on our audit procedures and as per the information and explanations given by the
management, we are of the opinion that the company has not defaulted in repayment of dues
to financial institutions. There is no amount of dues to banks.

g. The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer or
debt instruments. According to the information and explanations given to us, the money raised
by the Company by way of term loans have been applied for the purpose for which they were
obtained.

10.  According to the information and explanations given to us and as represented by the
Management and based on our examination of the hooks and records of the Company and in
accordance with generally accepted auditing practices in India, we have been informed that no
case of frauds has been committed on or by the Company or by its officers or employees during
the year,

11.  As per notification n no. GSR 463(E) dated Sth June 2015 issued by the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs, Government of India, Section 197 is not applicable to the Government Companies.
Accordingly, provisions of clause 3 (xi} of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

12.  The company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xii) of the Order
are not applicable to the Company.

. 13. The Company has complied with the provisions of Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act,
2013 w.r.t. transactions with the related parties, where applicable. Details of the transactions
with the related parties have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the
applicable Indian accounting standards (Ind AS).

14, The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private allotment of shares or fully
or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, provisions of clause 3 {xiv) of
the Order are not applicable to the Company.

15.  The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with the directors or persons
connected with him as covered under Section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013.

16.  The company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India,
1934, Accordingly, pr(:/:/i;ions of clause 3 {xiv] of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

For Chamaria & Co. //
Chartered A )
Firm Rgg'r§tratio \)#31461‘%

~ rd
Py

Sunil Kuntar Chamaria
Partner
Membership No. 094316

Date: 21.05.2019
Place: New Delhi
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ANNEXURE-Z TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Annexure referred to in our report of even date to the members of BHARTIYA RAIL BIJLEE
COMPANY LIMITED on the accounts for the year ended 315t March, 2019

Report on the directions under section 143 (5} of Companies Act 2013 applicable from the
year 2018-19 and onwards

i} (1) Whether the company has system in place to process all the accounting transaction through IT
system? 1f yes, the implications of processing of accounting transactions outside IT system on the
integrity of the accounts along with the financial implications, if any, may be stated.

Reply: As per the information and explanations given 1o us, the Company has a system in place to process
aht the accounting transactions through IT sysiem. SAP-ERP has been implemented for all the processes like
IFmancial Accounting (FI), Conwolling (CO). Sales and Distribution (SD), Payroll / Human Capital
Management (HCM), Material Management (MM), Commercial billing / Industry Solution Utilities (ISU),

IS (o

Based on the audit procedures carried out and as per the information and explanations given to us, no
accounting transactions have been processed/carried ouiside the IT system. Accordingly, there are no
imphications on the integrity of the accounts.

( (2) Whether there is any restructuring of an existing loan or case of waiver/write off of
debts/loans/interest etc. made by a lender to the company due to the company’s inability to repay the
‘oan? if yes, the financial impact may be stated.

Reply: Based on the audit procedures carried out and as per the information and explanations given to us,
- there was no restructuring of existing loans or cases of waiver/write off of debts/ loans/interest etc. made by
the Jender 1o the company due to the company s inability to repay the loan.

1) (3) Whether funds received/receivable for specific schemes from central/ state agencies were
properly accounted for/ utilized as per its term and conditions? List the cases of deviation.

Reply: Based on the audit procedures carried out and as per the information and explanations given to us, no
such tunds has been granted to/ recejved by the company during the year.
/

For Chamaria & Co.
Chartered Accouy
¥irm Registration

Sunil Kumdr Chamaria
Partner
Moembership No. 094316

Date: 2+ o5 200

Place: Mo ofpldden”
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ANNEXURE-3 TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Annexure referred to in our report of even date to the members of BHARTIYA RAIL BIJLEE
COMPANY LIMITED on the accounts for the year ended 315t March, 2019

Reporton the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Bhartiya Rail Bijlee
Company Limited ("the Company”) as of 31tMarch, 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
and the components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI).
These respounsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
husiness, including adherence to Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as reguired under the Companies Act, 2613,

Auditors’ Responsibility

bur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note"} and the
Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable
to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the ICAL Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adeguacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting,

sEer Shah Reanga Road, Sasaram, Rohtas, Bihar-821115, Mb: 9431028035, 9661606060 |
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management
and directors of the Company; and (3} provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could
have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due
to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
tinancial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating eftectively as at 315tMarch, 2019, based on the internal contrel over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company and the components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAl

(¥

For Chamaria & Co.
Chartered A Ant
Firm Registrati¢ff No’514619C
o ya D
e o C/’
Su :Jii__&rﬁ{ar Chamaria

Partner

Membership No. (094316

Date: 27/. 05 2o/$
Place: Ay Podder
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA
UNDER SECTION 143(6)(b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF BHARTIYA RAIL BIJLEE COMPANY LIMITED FOR THE YEAR

ENDED 31 MARCH 2019.

The preparation of financial statements of Bhartiya Rail Bijlee Company Limited for the
year ended 31 March 2019 in accordance with the financial reporting framework prescribed
under the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) is the responsibility of the management of the company.
The Statutory Auditors appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under
Section 139(5) of the Act are responsible for expressing opinion on the financial statements
under Section 143 of the Act based on independent audit in accordance with the standards on
auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act. This is stated to have been done by them
vide their Audit Report dated 21 May 2019.

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a
supplementary audit of the financial statements of Bhartiya Rail Bijlee Company Limited for the
year ended 31 March 2019 under Section 143(6)(a) of the Act. This supplementary audit has
been carried out independently without access to the working papers of the Statutory Auditors
and is limited primarily to inquiries of the Statutory Auditors and company personnel and a

selective examination of some of the accounting records.

On the basis of my audit nothing significant has come to my knowledge which would
give rise to any comment upon or supplement to Statutory Auditors’ report under Section
143(6)(b) of the Act.

For and on behalf of the
Comptroller and Auditor General of India

| -1 h‘P’_A
(Indu Agrawal)
Principal Director of Commercial Audit &

Ex-officio Member, Audit Board, Ranchi.

Place: Ranchi
Date:15 July 2019

Scanned with CamScanner



Bhartiya Rail Bijlee Company Limited
Repd, Office: NTPC Bhawan, Scope Complex, 7, Institutional Area, Lodbi Road, New Dethi-110003

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2019

. ¥ Lakhs
Particulars Note No, As at Asat Asat
31 March 2019 31 Mazch 2018 * 1 Aoril 2017 *
ANSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 2 6,34.891.59 3,80,007.34 2.50.496.42
Capilal work-in-progress 3 1,56,598.54 © 3,62.158.44 43491565
Intangible wsses 4 28.63 1.52 3.9
{they son-cument asscts s 4.176.87 5,465.54 - 6,676.60
Deferved tax asset 17 - - 199.18
Totsl non-current assets 7.96.295.63 7.47.632.85 652.291.24
Carrent assels
Inventones [ AUR6.S] 288291 1,393 88
I'ancial asscls L
Trade receivables 7 24,93?.69 20,761.7 527798
Cash and cash equivalents 8 13.674.62 11,895.42 541.49
Bank batances ather than cash and cash equivalents 9 8273.t7 1006.0¢ -
{ther finoncial assels 11} 15,5570 8.771.01 1,408.69
Uther current assels " 16,029.23 14,1322 Y 9,562.96
Total currenl assets 75,958,22 58.485.27 28.185.00
Regulatory deferral nccount debit balances 12 - 3577156 -
TOTAL ASSETS B.72,153.85 Ml&lﬂ 79&76.24
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Fquiny
Eguily share capital 13 2.16,151.28 2,16,151.25 1.58,461.39
Uther equiy 14 2036876 7,166.36 29.238.02
Totat equity 4,36,514.01 2.23,315.61 1,87.699.41
Liabilities
Non-current liahifities
Financial labilitics
Borrowings 15 5.37.441.48 4.97,993.3t 447 491.58
Other finaneza) habalities 16 97300 1,201.25 377788
Drefermed tax lizbilities {ney) 17 - 35.495.51 -
‘Total non-current lsbilities 538.414.48 £,34,689.97 4,51,269.46
Current liahilities
Financial liahilities
Trade payables 1%
{A) wotal outstanding ducs of micro enterprises and small anterprises 348.67 90.04 223
(B total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 9307 .41 532675 2.950.14
ang small erterpriscs
her financial labilivies 14 70.630.69 66,362.17 56,865.73
Other carrent lisbibities 20 L0 E | 241.27 63079
-Provisions bd | 16.944.27 1186186 11,948.48
Current 1ax Jiabehires - - 191.36
Total current lishilities 9732075 81,8810 71.648.93
Regulstory deterraf account credit bakances 22 461 - 584
TOFAL EQUITY AND LIARILITIES 15.71,253.85 Ml&lﬂ 7.1&76,24
= iestaled (refer note 32)
Signifikant accouming pohcies 1
The accompanying nates | to 48 ?‘h integral part of these fmancial statements.
For C ‘hamaria & ( U P For and on hehalf of the Boand of Directors
Ciﬂncmd .
/ W
- / 4 (@«
Vi érg Manoj Srivas C. Sivakumar
Sugu}i(umar Chamaria Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer  Chief Executive Officer
HFNEr .

Membership No. - 094316
Firm Reg, No.: 5E4619C
Place : New Dethi
Duted : 2 L. May 2019

. Jhin
Birector
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Bhartiya Rail Bijlee Company Limited

Regd. Office: NTPC Bhawan, Scope Complex, 7, Institutional Area, Lodhi Road, New Delhi-110003
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3t MARCH 201%

. ¥ Lakhy
Particulars Note No. For the vear ended For the year ended
31 March 2019 a1 March 2018 *
Revenue
Revenue from operations 23 1,16.972.74 69.740).98
Other income 24 4,029 06 24283
Total revenue 1,21,001.80 69.983.81
Expenses
Fuul expense 52,231.39 18,088.49
Employee benefis expense 25 581310 4.581.14
Fmance cosis 26 31,790.60 23931.84
Deprecistion and amortisation expense 27 20,238.31 14,827 .80
Ocher uxpenses 28 9.756.21 6,030.13
Total expenses 1,19,831.61 67,461.40
Profit before tax L1719 25241
Tax expense
Current 1ax - $38.33
Dcterred 123 expense {35495.51) 35.894.90
Totat tax expense (35,495.51) 36,233.23
Frofit for the period before regulatory deferral acconnt halances 36,665.70 (33,710.82)
Net movements in regulatory deferral aceount balances- Incomed Expense? {35, 7718.17 36.632.01
Less: Tax expense {saving) pertaining to regulatory deferral account balances - 199.99
Profit for the yvear 887.53 5"!21.20
Other comprehensive income - -
Total comprehensive income for the year §87.53 721.20
* Reswted | refer note 32)
Significant accounting policies t
Earnings per equity share (Par vaiue T 10/- each) 44
Frem operations including regulatory deferral account balances
Busic Faming Fer Share (T) 0.05 0.5
Dituted Earning Per Share {T) 0.05 0.15
From operations excluding regulatory deferral account bafances
Basic Farning Per Share (%) 262 (1.85
Dilvted Earming Per Share (T) 102 {1.85)

The aceomprnying nokes | 1o 48 form an integral pan of tese financial statements.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

N, org e Vel

R.K. Jain upta

Vishal Garg Manoj Sri
3. CFO CEO
Place : New Delhi -

Dated: ..., May 20!9/"

For Chamaria & Co. 4_’,3'
(’hartdpﬂ'ﬁ”@n‘ta

s s 7
Quyﬂﬂluméf’('.*hamaria
Partner
Membership No. : 094316
Firm Reg. No.: 514619C
Place : New Delhi _
Dated : 2.1, May 2019

Reg No:
J14615C

C. Sivakumar

Brirector

Chairthan
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Bhartiva Rail Bijlee Company Limited
Regd. Office: NTPC Bhawan, Scope Complex, 7, Instifutional Area, Lodki Road, New Dethi-i10003

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

{A) Equity share capital

For the vear ended 31 March 201% 1 Lakhs
Balance as a1 | Apnl 2018 2,16,153.25

Changes in cquity share capital during the year

Balance as at 31 March 2019

2,16,133.25

Far the year ended 31 March 2018 ¥ Lakhs
Bulance as at | Aprit 2017 1,58.461.39
Changes in cquity share capital dusing the vear 57,691 86
Balance as at 3F March 2018 %153.25
{B) Other equity
For the year ended 31 March 2019 2 Lakhs
Particulars Resery Surplu Total
Share applicstion | Corporate social | Fly ash utilisation | Retained esrnings
money peading cesponsibiiiny reserve fund
sdlatmpnt KL,
Balance as af 1 Aoril 2018 0.14 6.39 - 7.15%.83 1,166.36
Profic (Loss ) for the vear - - - 487.53 #87.53
Juber comprehensive income for the vear . - . - =
Stare appheation moncey received 12,159,010 - . - t2,159.00
Transterred to fly ash reserve - Co- 147.87 . 14787
Transter feom retaingd caming - 2949 - {3949 -
Transler w rained caming - (0.61) - 0.61 :
Balasnce as at 31 March 2019 12.159.14 3527 147.87 8.018.48 20,360.76 |
For the vear ended 31 March 2018 T Lakhs
Particulars CEETY: S Total
Share application | Corporate social | Fly ash utilisation | Retained earnings
money pending respansibility reserve fund
b 1w
Balance as at 1 April 2017 24,793.60 - - 444582 25,238.02
Profit Loss) for the vear - . - 2,720.20 2,721.20
Other comprehensive inceme for the vear - - - - -
Share apphcalion noncy received 3289900 - - - 32,899.00
Sluares ablotted against share application money t57.691.86) - - . (57,691 86}
Transter from retained carning - §.39 - (6.39) -
Balance as at 31 March 2018 014 6.39 - 7.159.83 J.166.36
For and on behall of 1he Board of Directors
. . ‘\"\‘ ‘\“\-"v/'
-1 . (_?jg*' e
Manoj Srivagtava C. Sivakumar R.K. lain A K Gupa
CF.O CEQ Director Chpinmarn

Place : New Delhi
Dated: ... May 2019 .

For Chamarig &§o, 50
Chartered -A'l:'&.sa, ;

«( RegNo:

251::45198

Sunit §
Paptficr
“Mambership Na. - 094316

Fimm Reg. No.: 514619C
Place - New Delhi

Dawd ;2. 1., May 24119
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Bhartfya Rail Bijlee Company Limited
Regd. Oftice: NTPC Bhawan, Scope Complex, 7, Institutional Area, Lodhi Rond, New Delhi-110003

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

¥ Lakhs
Particolars For the year ended31 For the year ended3i
March 2019 March 2018
A. Cash Flow From Operating Activities
Profit before tax 1,170.19 252241
Add: Net movements in regulatory deferral account balances (35.718.17) 36,632.01
(34,607.58) 39.154.42
Adjustment for
Depreciation and amortisation expense 20,238.31 14,827.80
Finance costs 31,603.51 231931.84
Unwinding of discount on vendor liabilities ' 187.09
Provisions created during the year 563716 -
Fly ash wtilisation reserve fund 147 87 -
Net movements in regulatory deferrat account balances 35,778.17 {36,631 01)
Operating profit before working capital changes 58,984.13 41,282.05
Adjustment for -
Inventory - (20360 {!,4892.03)
Trade reccivable {4,235.98) (15,423.73)
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalent (8.173.1N0 (100.009
Other financial assets {7,185.99) {5,362.32)
(Other currens assets ' i (389.83) 128.63
Other non cusrent assets - 31311
Trade payables 433928 2,434.33
Other financial liabilities 6.569.24 143.28
Oter current liabilities (151.56} (389.32)
Provisions 1554.75) {86.62)
Cash gencrated from operasions 48,897.77 21.450.08
Less: Income laxes paid . (314,14 [,243.81
Net cash outflow from operating activities [A] 47,583.63 20,206.27
B. Cash Flow From Investment Actividies
Purchase of property plant and equipment and capital work-in-progress (66,307.64) (69,277.96)
Net cash outflow from investing activities [B) {6.307.64) : (63,227.96)
C. Cash Flow From Financing Activities
Proceeds from share application money 12,159.00 32,399.00
Proceeds from long term borrowings 39.448.27 50,501.63
Interest paid (3£,104.06) {23,025.01)
Net cash inflow from finsncing activities [C} ' 20,503.21 60,375.62
Net increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents |A+B+C| 1,779.20 11,353.93
Cash and Cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 11,895.42 541.49
Cash and Cash equivalents at the end of the year - 11,674.62 £1,895.42
2} Cash and cash equivalents consist of balances with banks and deposits with original maturity of upto three months.
b) Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivaleni as per note § : 13,674.62 11,895.42

¢} Refer note nio 31 for details of undrawn borrowing facifities that may be available for future operating activities and to settle capital

=% ~a (A
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9} Reconciliation between the opening and closing balances in the balance sheet for liabilities arising from financing activitics:

I Lakhs

Particulars Non-current Current Interest on )

borrowings  bhorvowings = borrowings .
For the ycar ended 31 March 2019
Balance as at § April 2018 4,97,993.21 - 7,362.95
Loan drawals (in cash) finterest accrued during the year 30.448.27 - 50,072.49
L.oan repaymentsiinterest payment during the year (in cash) - - 49,573.05
Balance as at 31 March 2019 537.441.48 - 7,862.39
For the year ended 31 March 2018
Balance as at | April 2017 4,47 491 .58 - 6,456.12
Loan drawals (in cash) /interest accrued during the year 30,501.63 20,017.62 48,483.85
Loan repayments’interest payment during the year (in cash) - 20017.62 47,577.02
Balance as at 3F March 2018 4,97,993.2] - 7.362.95

There are no non-cash changes on aceount of effect of changes in forcign exchange rates and fair values,

For and on behall of the Board of Directors

- ’Ivzj . (_Cﬁ““LﬁM

Vishal Garg Manoj Srivastava C. Sivakumar R.K. Jain A, pia
C5. CF.O C.EOD Drivector fhnan
Piace : New Delhi
Dated : ......... May 2019

For Chamaria & Ca.
Chartered Accgurlﬁm(s

-

Sdnil Kuy r(i._lyn(aria
Ga:m

Membership No. : 094316
Firm Reg. No.: 514619C
Place : New Debhi

Dated : 2.4 May 2019

FS-BRBCL-31.03.2019 (15/60)




Bhartiya Rail Bijlee Company Limited
Notes to financial statements

. Company Information and Significant Accounting Policies

A. Reporting entity

Bhartiya Rail Bijlee Company Limited (the “Company™} is a Company domiciled in india and
limited by shares (CIN: U40102DL200TPLCI70661). The address of the Company's registered
oftice is NTPC Bhawan, SCOPE Complex, 7 Institutional Area, Lodi Road, New Delhi - 110003.
The Company is involved in the generation and sale of bulk power to Indian Railways and State
Power Utilities.

Basis of preparation
[. Statement of Compliance

These financial statements are prepared on going concern basis following accrual system of
accounting and comply with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the
Compames (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and subsequent amendments thereto, the
Companies Act, 2013 (1o the extent notified and applicable), applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 1956, and the provisions of the Electricity Act, 2003 to the extent applicable.

These financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on 14™ May 2019.
2. Basis of measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost.

Historical cost is the amount of cash or cash equivalents paid or the fair value of the consideration
given 10 acquire assets at the time of their acquisition or the amount of proceeds received in
exchange for the obligation, or at the amounts of cash or cash equivalents expected to be paid to
satisfy the liability in the normal course of business. Fair value is the price that would be received
10 sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction hetween market participants
at the measurement date,

3. Functions] and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR). which is the Company’s
tunctional currency. All financial information presented in INR has been rounded to the nearest
laklt {upto two decimals), except as stated otherwise.

4. Current and non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non-current

classification.

An asset is current when it is:

» Expected 10 be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in nonnal operating cycle;

* Held primarily for the purpose of irading;

» Expected 10 be realized within twelve months after (he reporting period; or

+ Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for
at jeast twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

s [t is expeeted to be settled in normal operating cycie:

o [kt is held primarily for the parpose of trading;

+ Itis due to be sentled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

+  There is no unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
afier the reporting period.

1
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Bhartiva Rail Bijlee Company Limited
Notes to financial statements {continued)

All other habilities are classified as non-current.
Deferred tax assets/liabilities are classified as non-curreat.
C. Significant accounting policies

A summary of the significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of the financial
statements are as given below. These accounting policies have been applied consistently to all
periods presented in the financial statements.

Thie Company has elected to utilize the option under Ind AS 101 by not applying the pravisions of
Ind AS 16 & Ind AS 38 retrospectively and continue to use the previous GAAP carrying amount
as a deemed cost under Ind AS at the date of transition to Ind AS i.e. 1 Aprif 2015. Therefore. the
carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets as per the previous GAAP
asat | Aprif 2015, i.e; the Company’s date of transition to Ind AS, were maintained on transition
to lnd AS.

1. Praperty, plant and equipment
1.1. Initial recognition and measurement

Anitem of property. plant and equipment is recognized as an asset if and only if it is probable thal
future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the
itent can be measured reliably. '

hems of property, plant and equipment are initially recognized at cost. Subsequent measurement
is done at cost less accumulated depreciation/amortization and accumulated impairment losses,
Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have diffcrent useful lives, they are
recognized separately,

Deposits. payments/liabilities made provisionally towards compensation, rehabilitation and other
expenses relatable to laad in possession are treated as cost of fand.

In the case of assets put to use, where final settlement of bills with contractors is yet to be effected.
capitalization is done on provisional basis subject to necessary adjustment in the year of final
setilement,

Assets and systemis common 16 more than one generating unit are capitalized on the basis of
engineering estimates/assessments.

lteins of spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment which meet the definition of
property, plant and equipment are capitalized. Other spare parts are carried as inventory and
recognized in the statement of profit and loss on consumption.

1.2. Subsequent costs

Subsequent expenditure is recognized as an increase in the carrying amount of the asset when it is
probable that future economic benefits deriving from the cost incurred will flow to the enterprise
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Expenditure on major inspection and overhauls of generating unit is capitalized, when it meets the

asset recognition criteria..

The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in the
carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the:
part will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the




Bhartiya Rail Bijlee Company Limited
Nates to financial statements {continued)

cquipment are recognized in profit or loss as incurred.
1.3. Decommissioning costs

The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of the asset after its use is
included in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met.

1.4. De-recognition

Property, plant and equipment is derecognized when no future economic - benefits are expected
from their use or upon their disposal. Gains and losses on de-recognition of an item of property.
plant and equipment are deterined by comparing the proceeds from disposal, if any, with the
carrying amount of property, plant and equipment. and are recognized in the statement of profit
and ioss.

1.5. Depreciation/amortization

Depreciation is recognized in statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the
estimaled uselul lives of each part of an item of property, plant and equipment. Leased assets are
depreciated over the shoner of the lease torm und their useful lives unless it is reasonably certain
that the Company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease terim,

Depreciation on the assets of the generation of electricity business and on the assets of Corporate |
& other offices is charged on straight-line method following the rates and methodology notified |
by the CERC Tariff Regulations in accordance with Schedule 11 of the Companies Act. 2013.

Depreciation on the following assets is provided on their estimated useful life, which are difterent
from the useful life as prescribed under Schedule 11 to the Compdnms Act, 2013, ascertained on
the basis of technical evaluation:

g_u) Kutcha roads ' 2 years
b) Enabling works

m - residential buildings {5 years
' - internal electrification of residential buildings 10 years
3 - non-residential  buildings including their internal clectrification, water 3 years

supply. sewerage & drainage works. railway sidings. aerodromes, helipads
and airstrips.

- ¢} Personal computers & laptops inciuding peripherals 3 years
- ) Photocopiers, fax machines, water coolers and refrigerators 5 years
ey Temporary erections including wooden structures | vear
f') “[ ‘clephone exchange 15 years
! u) Wireless systems, VSAT equipments, display devices viz. projectors. screens, 6 years
CCTV, awdio video conferencing systems and other communication
equipments
It} Energy saving electrical appliances and fittings 2-7 years

Major overhaul and inspection costs which have been capitalized are depreciated over the period
until the next scheduled outage or actual major inspection/overhaul, whichever is earlier.

Leasehold land and buildings relating to generation of electricity business are fully amortized
over lease period or life of the refated plant whichever is lower following the rates and
nethodology notified by the CERC Tariff Regulations,

L.caschold land and buildings relating to corporate and other offices are fully amortized over lease
period or twenty-five years whichever is lower o
the CERC Tariff Regulations. 55

1
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Bhartiya Rail Bijlee Company Limited
Notes to financial statements {continued)

Depreciation on additions to/deductions from property, plant and equipment during the year is
charged on pro-rata basis from/up to the month in which the asset is available for use/disposed.

Where the cost of depreciable assets has undergone a change during the year due 1o
increase/decrease in long-term liabilities on account of exchange fluctuation, price adjustment,
change it duties or similar factors, the unamortized balance of such asset is charged off
prospectively over the remaining useful life determined following the applicable accoummg
pelicies relating to depreciation/amortization.

Where it is probable that future economic benefits deriving trom the cost incurred will flow to the
cerprise and the cost of the item can be measured reliably, subsequemt expenditure on a PPE
along-with its unamortized depreciable amount is charged off prospectively over the revised
useful life determined by technical assessment.

In circumslance, where a property is abandoned, the cumulative capitalized costs relating to the
property are written off in the same period.

The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation of assets other than the assets of
generation of electricity business are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted
prospectively, wherever required.

2. Capital work-in-progress

The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of materials & direct labour, any other costs
dircctly atiributable to bringing the assets to the location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner inlended by management and borrowing costs.

Expenses directly attributable to construction of property. plant and eyuipment incurred ull they
arc ready for their intended use are identified and allocated on a systematic basis on the cost of
related assets.

Deposit works/cost plus contracts are accounted for on the basis of statements of account received
froan the contractors.

Linsettled liabilities for price variation/exchange rate variation in case of contracts are accounted
for on estimated basis as per.terms of the contracts.

3. Intangible asscts and intangible assets under development
3.1, [Initial recognition and measurement

An intangible asset is recognized if and only if it is probable that the expected future economic
benclits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the Company and the cost of the asset can be
measured reliably.

Intangible assets that arc acquired by the Compainy, which have finite uscful lives, are recognized
at cost. Subsequent measurement is done at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated
impairment losses. Cost includes any directly attributable incidental expenses necessary to make
the assets ready for its intended use.

Expenditure on development activities is capitalized only if the expenditure can be measured
reliably, the product or process is technically and commercially feasible, future economic benefits
are probable and the Company intends to & has sufficient resources to complete development and
to use or sell the asset.

Expenditure incurred which are eligible for capitalizations under intangible assets are carried as
intangible assets under development till they are ready for their intended use.

3.2. Subsequent costs:

21
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Bhartiya Rail Bijlee Company Limited
Notes to financial statements (continued)

h

Subsequent expenditure is recognized as an increase in the carrying amount of the asset when it is
probabie that future economic benefits deriving from the cost incurred will flow to the enterprise
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

3.3.  De-recognition

-

An intangible asset is derecognized when no future economic benefits are expected from their usc
or upon their disposal. Gains & losses on de-recognition of an ifem of intangible assets are
determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal, if any. with the carrying amount of
intangible assets and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

34, Awmortization

Cost of software rceognized as intangible asset, is amortized on straight-line method over a period
of legal right to use or 3 years, whichever is less. Other intangible assets are amortized on
straight-line method over the period of legal right to use or life of the related plant, whichever is

less,

“The amortization period and the amortization method of intangible assets with a finite useful life

Is reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, wherever required.
Regulatory deferral account balances

Expense/income recognized in the statement of profit and foss to the extent recoverable from or
pavable to the beneficiaries in subsequent periods as per CERC Tariff Regulations are recognized
as “Regulatory deferral account balances”.

Regulatory deferral account balances are adjusted from the year in which the same become
recoverable from or payable to the beneficiaries.

Regulatory deferral account balances are evaluated at each balance sheet date to ensure that the
underlying activitics meet the recognition criteria and it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with such balances will flow to the entity. If these criteria are not met. the regulatory
deferral account balances are derecognized. '

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs consist of (a) interest expense calculated using the eflective interest method as
described in Ind AS 109 — ‘Financial Instruments’ (b) finance charges in respect of finance leases
recognized in accordance with Ind AS 17 ~ Leases’ and (c) exchange differences arising from
{oreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs.

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction/exploration/
development or erection of qualifying assets are capitalized as part of cost of such asset until such
time the assets are substantially ready for their intended use. Qualifying assets are assets which
necessarily take substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale.

When the Company borrows funds specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the
borrowing costs incurred are capitalized. When Company borrows tunds generally and uses them
tor the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset. the capitalization of the borrowing costs is
compited based on the weighted average cost of general borrowing that are outstanding during
the period and used for the acquisition, construction/exploration or erection of the qualifying asset.

[ncome earned on temporary investment of the borrowings pending their expenditure on the
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible tor capitalization,

Capitalization of borrowing costs ceases when substant ially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying assets for their intended uses are-sagplete.

il
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Bhartiya Rail Bijlee Company Limited
Notes to financial statements (continued)

6,
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Other borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the year in which they are incurred.
Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes cost of purchase.
cost of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition. Cost is determined on weighted average basis. Costs of purchased inventory are
determined. after deducting rebates and discounts. Net realizable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
pecessary 1o make the sale.

Fhe diminution in the value of obsolete, unserviceable, surplus and non-moving items of stores
utkl spares is ascertained on review and provided for.,

Steel scrap is valued at estimated realizable value,
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the batance sheet comprise cash at banks. cash on hand and short-
term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an
instanificant risk of changes in value,

Government grants

Governinent grants are recognized initially as deferred income when there is reasonable assurance
that they will be received and the Company will comply with the conditions associated with the
grant. Grants that compensate the Company for the cost of an asset are recognized in profit or loss
on a systematic basis over the useful life of the related asset. Grants that compensate the
Company for expenses incurred are recognized over the period in which the related costs are
mcurred and deducted from the related expenses.

Fiy ash utilization reserve fund

Proceeds from sale of ash/ash products along-with income on investment of such proceeds are
transtetred to "Fly ash utilization reserve fund’ in terms of provisions of gazette notification dated
3 November 2009 issued by Ministry of Environment and Forests. Government of India. The fund
ts utilized towards expenditure on development of infrastructure/facilities. promotion &
{acilitation activities for use of fly ash.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or
constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. If the effect of the time value of money
is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax
rale that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific o
the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recounized as a finance costs.

The mmount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required (o settle
the present obligation at reporting date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding
the obligation,

When some or all of the economic benefits required 1o settle a provision are expected to be
recovered from a third party, the receivable is recognized as an asset if it is virtually certain that
reunbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured refiably. The
expense relating to a provision is presented in_the statement of profit and loss net of any
reimbursenient.

o
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Contingent liabilities are possible obligations that arise from past events and whose existence wiif
ostly be confirmed by the oceurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events not whally
witltin the control of the Company. Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably. the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Contingent

Jiabilities are disclosed on the basis of judgment of the management/independent experts. These

are reviewed at each balance sheet date and are adjusted to reflect the current management
estimate.

Contingent assets are possible assets that arise from past events and whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the Company. Contingent assets are disclosed in the financial
statements when inflow of economic benefits is probable on the basis of judgment of management.
These are assessed continually to ensure that developments are appropriately reflected in the
financial statements.

- Foreign currency transactions and translation

Transactions in foreign currencics are initially recorded at the functional currency spot rates at the
date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Maonetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional
currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date. Exchange differences arising on settiement
or translation of monetary items are recognized in profit or loss in the year in which it arises with
the exception that exchange differences on long term monetarv items related to acquisition of
property. plant and equipment recognized upto 31 March 2016 are adjusted to the carrying cost of
property. plant and equipment.

Non-monetary items are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency and translated
using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. in case of advance consideration received or
paid in a foreign currency, the date of transaction for the purpose of determining the exchange
rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income (or part of it), is when the
Company initially recognizes the non-monetary asset or nov-imonetary liability arising from the
pavtient or receipt of advance consideration.

. Revenue

Company’s revenues arise from sale energy and other income. Revenue from other income
comprises interest from banks, emplovees, contractors etc.. sale of scrap, other miscellancous
ineome, etc.

FHective T April 2018, the Company has adopted Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers™ vsing the cumulative effect method, applied to the contracts that were not completed
as of 1 April 2018 and therefore the comparatives have not been restated and continues 1o be
reported as per Ind AS 18 “Revenue”. The details of accounting policies as per Ind AS (8 are
disclosed separately if they are different from those under Ind AS 115.

I12.1. Revenue from sale of energy

The majority of the Company’s operations in India are regulated under the Electricity Act, 2003,
Accordingly, the CERC determines the tariff for the Company’s power plants based on the norms
prescribed in the tariff regulations as applicable from time to time. Tariff is based on the capital
cost incurred for a specific power plant and primarily comprises two components: capacity charge
te. u fixed charge that includes depreciation, return on equity, interest on working capital,
operating & maintenance expenses, interest on loan and energy charge i.e. a variable charge
premarily based on fuel costs.
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Revenue is measured based on the consideration that is specified in a contract with a customer or
is expected to be received in exchange for the products or services and excludes amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. The Company recognizes revenue when (or as) the
performance obligation is satisfied, which typically occurs when (or as) control over the products
or services is transterred to a customer.

In the comparative period. revenue from the sale of energy was measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Revenue was recognized when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership had been transferred to the buyer, recovery of the consideration was
probable, the associated costs could be estimated reliably, there was no continuing management
involvement, and the amount of revenue could be measured reliably.

Revenue from sale of energy is accounted for based on tariff rates approved by the CERC {except
items indicated as provisional) as modified by the orders of Appellate Tribunal for Electricity to
the extent applicable. [n case of power stations where the tariff rates are yet to be approved/items
indicated provisional by the CERC in their orders, provisional rates are adopted considering the
applicable CERC Tariff Regulations. Revenue from sale of energy is recognized once the
¢lectricity has been delivered to the beneficiary and is measured through a regular review of usage
meters. Beneficiaries are billed on a periodic and regular basis. As at each reporting date, revenue
from sale of energy includes an accrual for sales delivered to beneficiaries but not yet billed i.e.
unhitled revenue.

The incentives/disincentives are accounted for based on the norms notified/approved by the
CERC as per principles enunciated in Ind AS 115. In cases of power stations where the same have
ot been notified/approved, incentives/disincentives are accounted for on provisional basis.

Rebates allowed to beneficiaries as early payment incentives are deducted from the amount of
reVenue.

Lxchange differences arising from settlement/translation of monetary items denominated in
foreign currency to the extent recoverable from or payable to the beneficiaries in subsequent
periods as per the CERC Tariff Regulations are accounted as ‘Regulatory deferred account
balances” and adjusted from the year in which the same becomes recoverable/payable.

Exchange differences on account of translation of foreign currency borrowings recognized upto
33 March 2016, recoverable from or payable to the beneficiaries in subsequent periods as per the
CLRC Tariff Regulations are accounted as ‘Deferred foreign currency fluctuation asset”. The
increase or decrease in depreciation for the vear due to the accounting of such exchange
differences as mentioned above is adjusted in depreciation. Fair value changes in respect ol
forward exchange contracts of derivative contracts recoverable from/payable to the beneficiaries
as per the CERC Tariff Regulations, are recognized in sales.

1

12.2. Other income

Interest income is recognized, when no significant uncertainty as to measurability or collectabitity
eXist. on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the applicable
utlerest rate. using the effective interest rale method (EIR).

Scrap other than steel scrap is accounted for as and when sold.

Insurance claims for loss of profit are accounted for in the year of acceptance. Other insurance
claims are accounted for based on certainty of realization.

Revenue from rentals and operating leases is recognized on an accrual basis in accordance with
the substance of the relevant agreement.

For debt imstruments measured either at igd cost or at fair value through other
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comprehensive income (OCY), inferest income is recorded using the EIR. EIR is the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the
financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset or to the amortized cost of a financial liability. When caiculating the EIR, the
Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the
tinancial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, calf and similar options) but does not

consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included in other income in the statement of

proli and loss.

The mterest/surcharge on late payment/overdue trade receivables for sale of energy is recognized
when no significant uncertainty as to measurability or cotlectability exists,

interestsurcharge recoverable on advances to suppliers as well as warranty claims wherever there
is uncertainty of realization/acceptance are not treated as accrued and arc therefore, accounted for
on receipt/acceptance.

Employee benefits

The employees of the company are on secondment from the parent company. Employee benefits
include provident fund, gratuity, post-retirement medical facilities. compensated absences, long
service award. economic rehabilitation scheme & other terminal benefits. In terms of arrangement

with the parent company, the company makes a fixed percentage contribution of the aggregate of

basic pay and dearness allowance for the period of service rendered in the company. Accordingly.
these employee benefits are treated as defined contribution schemes.

Other expenses

EXpenses on ex-gratia payments ander voluntary retirement scheme, training & recruitment and

voluntary community development are charged to statement of profit and loss in the year incurred.

Preliminary expenses on account of new projects incurred prior to approval of feasibility
report/techno economic clearance are charged to statement of profit and loss.

Net pre-conumissiening income/expenditure is adjusted directly in the cost of related assets and
sSYsIeims.

Transit and handling losses of coal as per Company's norms are included in cost of coal.
Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax expense is recognized in
profit or loss except to the extenl that it relates to items recognized directly in other
comprehensive income or equity, in which case it is recognized in QCI or equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted and as applicable at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable
in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet method, providing for temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to
be applied 1o temporary differences when they reverse. based on the laws that have been enacted
or subsiantively enacted by the reporting date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income
laxes levied by the same tax authority,

Deferred tax is recognized in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognized

directly in OCI or equity, m which case it is - gnized in OCI or equity, respectively.
* ]
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16.

17.

A deterred tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that fiture taxable profits will be
available against which the temporary difference can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed
at cach reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax
benefit will be realized.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of dividends are recognized at the same
time that the liability to pay the related dividend is recognized.

Deferred tax assets include Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax
laws in India. which is likely to give future economic benefits in the form of availability of set off
against future income tax liability. MAT is recognised as deferred (ax asset in the balance sheet
when the asset can be measured reliably and it is probable that the future economic benelit
assoviated with the asset will be realized. '

Leases
16.1. As lessee
Accounting for finance leases

l.eases of property, plant and equipment where the Company. as lessee has substantially all risks
and rewards of ownership are classified as finance lease. On initial recognition, assets held under
finance leases are recorded as property, plant and equipment and the refated liability is recognized
under borrowings. At inception of the lease, finance leases are recorded at amounts equal to the
fatrvalue of the leased asset or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments.
Minimum lease payments made under finance leases are apportioned between the finance cost
and the reduction of the outstanding liability. :

The finance cost is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

Accounting for operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to
the Company as lessee are classified as operating lease, Payments made under operating leases
are recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term unless the payments are
structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor's
expected inflationary cost increases. Lease incentives received are recognized as an integral part
of the total lease expense, over the term of the lease.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Company’s non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date
te determine whether there is any indication of impairment considering the provisions of Ind AS
36 - "Impairment of Assets’. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair value less costs
w disposal and its value in use, In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the lime value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the purpose of
impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the sinallest
group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the
cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets (the “cash-generating unit™, or “CGU™),

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an assel or its CGU exceeds its

estimated recoverable amount. Impairinen
<
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losses recognized in respect of CGUs are reduced from the carrving amounts of the assets of the
ol ) B

Impairment losses recognized in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any
indications that the loss has decreased or no fonger exists, An impairment loss is reversed if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss
is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment
loss had been recognized.

Operating segments

in accordance with Ind AS 108, the operating segments used to present segment information are
identified on the basis of internal reports used by the Company’s management to allocate
resources to the segments and assess their performance. The Board of Directors is collectively the
Company’s *Chief Operating Decision Maker” or *CODM" within the meaning of Ind AS 108.
‘Fhe indicators used for internal reporting purposes may evolve in connection with performance
assessment measures put in place. The Company has only one segment “Generation of energy”.

- Material prior period errors

20.

Material prior period errors are corrected retrospectively by restating the comparative amounts for
the prior periods presented in which the error occurred. If the error occurred before the earliest
period presented, the opening balances of assets, liabilities and equity for the earliest period
presended., are restated.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the financial year.

Diluted earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit or Joss attributable o
equity sharcholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares considered
tor deriving basic earnings per equity share and also the weighted average number of equity
shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

The number of equity shares and potentiaily dilutive equity shares are adjusted retrospectively for
all periods presented for any bonus shares issued during the financial vear.

Basic and diluted earnings per equity share are also computed using the earnings amounts
exchuding the novements in regulatory deferral account balances.

Statement of cash flows

Statement of cash flows is prepared in accordance with the indirect method prescribed in Ind AS 7
‘Statement of cash flows’.

. Financial instruments

A financial istrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

22.1. Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Fhe company recognizes financial assets when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of

the instrument. All financial assets are recogpized at fair value on initial recognition, except for
hRia &
NZ
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“trade receivables which are initially measured at transaction price. Transaction costs that are
directly atwributable to the acquisition of financial assets, which are not at fair value through profit
or loss. are added to the fair value on initial recognition.

Subsequent measurement
Debt instruments at amortized cost
A “debt mstrument” is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met:

{a} The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and

(b) Comractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates v cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPP1) on the principal amount outstanding.

After inittal measurement. such financial assets are subsequenthy measured at amortized cost
using the EIR method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortization is included in finance income in the profit or loss, The losses arising from
impairment are recognized in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other
receivables,

Debt instrument at FVTOCI (Fair value threugh OCI)
A “debt instrument” is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

(2) The abjective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and
scling the financial assets, and
{b} The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category arc measured initially as well as at each
reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the OCI. However, the
Company recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or
loss in the profit and loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously
recognized in OCI is reclassified from the equity to profit and loss. Interest earned whilst holding
FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

Debt instrument at FVTPL (Fair value through profit or loss)

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments, Any debt instrument. which does not meet the
criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCH, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to classify a debt instrument, which otherwise meots
amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However. such election is allowed only if doing
so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition tnconsistency (reterred to as ‘accounting
mismateh’). Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair valoe
with all changes recognized in the pmhl and loss.

De-recogaition

A tinancial asset (or, where applicable, & part of a financial asset or part of a Group of similar
{inancial assets) is primarily derecogniscd (i.c. removed from the Com pany’s balance sheet) when:

* The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

* The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash tlows in full without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the Company has iransferred substantially all the risks
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the rishs and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the assct.

The difference between the carrying amount and the amount of consideration received /
receivable is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109. the Company applies expected credit loss (ECLY model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk
CXPOSLPC:

{a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortized cost e.g.. loans, debt
secwrities, deposits and bank balance.

(b) Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOCL.

(c) Lease receivables under Ind AS 17.

(11} Trade receivables, unbilled revenue and contract assets under Ind AS Fi3.

(¢) Loan commitments which are not measured as at FVTPL.

(1 Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured as at FVTPL,

FFor trade receivables and unbilled revenue. the Company applies the simplified approach required
by Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, which requires expected liletime losses to be recognised
from initial recognition of the receivables.

For recognition of impainment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company
determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial
recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for
impairment loss, However, if credit risk has increased significantly. lifetime ECL is used. If, in a
subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognizing
impairment loss allowance based on 12 month ECL.

22.2, Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilitics at fair value through
prolit or loss. borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an
effective hedge. as appropriate. All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and. in
the vase of borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. The Company’s
financial labilities include trade and other payables, borrowings including bank overdrafts,
linancial guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments.

Subseguent measurentent
I he measurement of financial Habilities depends on their clussilication, as described below:
Financial liabilities at amortized cost

Alter initial measurement, such financial liabilities are subsequemtly measured at amortized cost
using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process Amortized cost is calculated by
taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in finance costs in the profit or loss. This

category generally applies to borrowings, tra s and other contractual liabilities.
W
<
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D.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading
and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as al fair value through profit or loss.
Financial labilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term. This category also inchudes derivative financial instruments entered
into by the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as
defined by Ind-AS {09, Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading
unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.

Ciains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Fmancial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are
designated at the initial date of recognition. and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satistied. For
liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/losses attributable to changes in own credit risk
are recognized in OCIL These gains/losses are not subsequently transferred to profit and loss,
However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes
in fair value of such liability are recognized in the statement of profit and loss. The Company has
not designated any financial lability as at fair value through protit and loss.

De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modifted. such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the originat liability
and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

22.3. Derivative financial instruments
inttial recognition and subsequent measurement.

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts and
interest rate swaps to hedge its foreign currency risks and interest rate risks of foreign currency
lvans. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognized at fair vatue on the date on
which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value.
Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities
when the fair value is negative. Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
derivatives are taken to statement of profit and loss.

22.4. Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is presented in the balance
sheet il there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an
imention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Use of estimates and management judgments

The preparation of financial statements requires management 10 make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that may impact the application of accounting policies and the reported value of
assets. liabilities, income, expenses and related disclosures concerning the items involved as well
as contingent assets and liabilities at the balance sheet date. The estimates and management’s
ludgments are based on previous experience & other factors considered reasonable and prudent in
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I:stimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periads
affecied.

In order to enhance understanding of the financial statements, information about significant areas
of estimation., uncertainty and critical judgments in applving accounting policies that have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements is as under:

{. Formulation of accounting policies .

The accounting policies are formulated in a manner that results in financial statements containing
relevant and reliable information about the transactions, other events and conditions.to which they
apply. Those policies need not be applied when the effect of applying them is immaterial.

2. Uscful life of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

The estimated useful life of property. plant and equipment and intangible assets is based on a
number of tactors including the effects of obsolescence, demand, competition and other econonic

lactors (such as the stability of the industry and known technological advances) and the level of

maintenance expenditures required to obtain the expected future cash flows from the asset.

Useful life of the assets of the generation of electricity business is determined by the CERC Tariff

Regulations in accordance with Schedule 1 of the Companies Act. 2013,
3. Recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets is based on
esttimates and assumptions regarding in particular the expected market outlook and future cash
flows associated with the power plants. Any changes in these assumptions may have a material
impact on the measurement of the recoverable amount and could result in impairment.

4. Revenues

The Company records revenue from sale of energy based on tarif{ rates approved by the CERC as
modified by the orders of Appellate Tribunal for Electricity. as per principles enunciated under
Ind AS [15. However, in cases where tariff rates are yet to be approved, provisional rates are
adopted considering the applicable CERC Tariff Regulations.

5. Leases not in legal form of lease

Nignificam judgment is required to apply lease accounting rules under Appendix C to Ind AS 17
"BDetermining whether an arrangement contains a lease’. In assessing the applicability to
arrangements entered into by the Company, management has cxercised judgment to evaluate the
right to use the underlying asset, substance of the transactions including legally enforceable
agreements and other significant terms and conditions of the arrangements to conclude whether
the arrangement needs the criteria under Appendix C to lnd AS 17.

6. Regulatory deferral account balances

Recognition of regulatory deferral account balances involves significant judgements including
about future tariff regulations since these are based on estimation of the amounts expected to be
recoverable/payable through taritf in future,

7. Provisions and contingencies

The assessments undertaken in recognizing provisions and contingencies have been made in
accordance with Ind AS 37, - *Provisions. contingent liabilities and contingent assets’. The

eviaheation of the likelihood of the contingent :‘ wRis 1as required best judgment by management
» 4
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regarding the probability of exposurc to potential loss. Should circumstances change following
unforeseeable developments, this likelihood could alter.

8. Income taxes

Sigmificant estimates are involved in determining the provision for income taxes, including

amount expected to be paid/recovered for uncertain tax positions.
21 ~5L
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Baartiya Rail Bijlee Company Limited
“waotes (o the Onancial <tatements (continoed)

5408w m-cnerens assets

“Lakhs

Particabars

As uf
31 March 2619

AN al
3i March 2018

¢ apitaladvances
Limsecured, constdered gooml

Covered by bank guaranies 63259 2501 68
COthers 21800410 e E N Iy
283300 4.835.80
Advanees iher than capical advances
Advance s and tax deducted al source 2HUS T 158004
CEess Provasion Tor tax 930,30 450.30
1,943.87 639,74
Favial 4,776.87 5465.54
st Breselosure with respeet to advances o related parties i miade in note 38.
i Invenories
e T i akhy
"P:u'litulars As g Asat
3 March 2019 31 March 2018
gl 14810 4304
Tact €oit ilo 3300
Spees gl Spares 1.6Rs R 2126
Chemieals & consumables 17713 3784
St 73,03 149 75
Fome wals 10,36 i
s 31309 RTINS
Foral 3,086.51 2,882.91
ab There is no maters in wansit s on reporting date.
by Otha deseludes Sectrical consumables.
¢i Reler note 12 or information on inventory pledged as security by the company,
- dy Iimveniue recognised os expense during the vear:
T Lukhs
Particulars For the year ended Faor the year ended
31 March 2019 3! March 2018
el Fxpense §2,233.39 H R R
Others Gecopnised in other expenses) 2514 83 36790
fotal 54,748.24 18,456.39
Frade receivahles
T Lakhs
Particokars As at As af

31 March 2019

31 March 2818

drigde receivables (unsecured. considered good)

24.937.09

700

Tolal 24,937.69 20,701.71
ab Flw compam's exposure e credit risk is disclosed in note 31,
b ilelen e X for eelated party disclosures.
B Cashoand cash equivalenis
T Lukhs
Particulars Asat As at

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

Babingws watly banks
U3rehn aeconnis
trepiatts w #h origimal mudarity upte three mon

Lleues en hand

(%4

Reg No:
£34619C

Tanl

gding interest accrucd)

A6 11 297124
G277.42 342381
L70 37
13,674.62 11,895.42
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Bhartiya Rail Bijlec Company Limited
Notes to the loancial statements {eontinued)

* o Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

¥ 1.akhs

Particaiars

Axal
31 March 201%

As at
31 Nureh 2018

Peposits sath origenal maturity of more than three mornths and maturing wilhin one 801381 -
seate fmchuding mierest acerived ) _
Margin mroney agoinst leiter of credd issued to vendor (ipchuding inierest acerued) 106,37 108,160
©rarmarhed balance Toe 11y ash utibization seserve fund 15299 -
Total 3.273.17 190,00
i Ouher linuncial assets
¥ Lakhs
Farticnlars Ay at Ax af
31 March 201% 31 Mareh 2008
Euballed revenne imnsecured, considered geod) 15.857.00 87711
Total 15,947.00 8.771.01
ar | nbifled revenue sepresents amewnt bitled o 1he benefictaries afier 31 Murch. for encry sabes.
2 Phe company's expusure to credit risk is disclosed in note 31
|
il Other curcentoassels !
¥ |.akhx
Particulars Asat Asat

31 Murch 2019

31 March 2018

Deposits with Govenunent Ambworitics 1.555.8t 831591
Cther recoserablhy 133495 £46,60
U iseeured Advanees :
Fiplosees 1884 2.4
Conhawtors & suppliers | 6,008 .40 4846 47
Others 446.23 6310
Fatal £0,029.23 14,134.22

#t Enher recoverable inclede amount recoverable from Railways and Nabinagar Power Cemerating Company | imited towards freight charpes,
spphy of steel ele.
b Other advimees eépresents insuranee premiem paid in advance.

11 Reguhiory deferrdd account debil badances

T Lukhs
Particulacs . ' As nt © Asat
~ 31 March 201% 3k March 2013
Omccvounl of
xchange dillveences - 27805
Dsberred Ly ' . 354953
Ental - 35,771.56

2y CERC Taeifl Regulotions. 2014 provide for grassing-up the rate of retum on equity based on effective (as rale for the financial year based on
fhe autual tay putd during the year on the generstion income. Accordingly. delerred tax linbility will be reversed in futare years when the
relawed 1YL Tormes part of current tax,
Hithero the Company was disclosing tax oxpense recoverable from the bengficiaries a5 u deduction from the rekptedd @ expense. Turlher,
‘Beterred asset for deferred tax liability™ was hitherto disclosed as a deduction fom e [¥(] {net) of the Company.
During the year, the EAC of the ICAL has issued an opinion with regard 1o presentution of “Deferred asset for the deferred tox Jabilin.
wherem it has opined that Deferred wiset for DTL i in the natare of Regulstory Delerral Account Batance” and should he shown as
TRegulstony delerral occoum balance”,
Constdering the AC opinion. “Deferred asset for the deferred 1ax liabikily™ which was kitherto shown as o deduction from “deferred tax
liabilives {net) has been transferred 1o *Regulatory deferral account debit balance”.

by Regulatons defeeral accoum balances have been accounted in line with Accounting policy nu. "4 (Nete 1) Reler Noe 42 for derailed

Jischosupes,
: 1 ?
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Bhartiva Hail Bijlee Company Limited
Notes to the financial statements {continued}

b} Equity share capital

% |ukhs
Partivalars As at 31 March 249 As a2t 3 March 2008
Number of Shares Amount Number of Shares Amounl
Authorised
Lyty shares of gar valee T104- cach 2,500,000, 004 250,000,010 2,500,60M),600 250,500.60
Ivsieed. subscribed and fully paid up
{ ey shares of par value THY- cach 2,161,532.490 216,153,258 2,161,532, 490 216,153,235
a0 Slnements in equity share capital:
¥iakhs
Particulars For the year ended 31 March 2819 Fur the year ended 31 March 2018
Number of Shares Amount Number of Shares Amount
Cipening balance 2,161,532.400 216,133 1.584.613 850 158,161 39

Shares issued during the vear

370.918.040

3601RG

L losing halanee 2,161,532,49

216,153.28

2,161,532,4%4

216,153.25

o Tevms and rinbts attached to cguity sharves:

e Company has oaly one ¢lass of equity shares baving 4 par value * 10/- per share. The equity sharcholders ave entitled to receive dividends
i declured from tme e time and are entitled to voling, rights proportionate to their share holding at the meetings of shoarcholders. In the
evanl of hyuidation of the Compamy, the holders of the cquity shares will be entitled 1o reveive remaining assets of the Company, aficr

distribation of all preferential amounts. The distribution wilk b in proportion to the number of couiny shares beld by the sharebolders.

<1 Detaids of shareholders holding more than 5% sharey in the Company: ¥ [Laklis
Iarticulars As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2018
) Number of Shares Amount Number of Shares Ameunt
NP Lad, 1,59.95,33 644 7440 1,59,95,33.644 7400
Amstn of Ralways 56,1998 316 2640 36, 19.98.846 26.00
14 Other equity

¥ Lakhs
-Particalars Ax at As at

3 ,\iarcla 2819 3§ March 2018

Share application money pending allotment 13,159 4 014
Lorporale social respensibiity reserve crcker note 37) 3327 .39
U1y ash utilisation rescrve Tund 147.87 -
Retmned camings KU1848 715983
Totad 20,360.76 7,166.36

Share application money pending allatmens

Uhe shazes are Tikely to be allotted in the nest financiat year. The authorized share capital of the compuny is suflicient 10 cover te share
capital smount o alloikent of shares owt of the above shaee appliction money. No amount is refundable out of above share spplication
maoney and poe mterest is payable. Share application money has been reeeived rom NTPC Limited 3 12,159.02 1 akhs (Previous vear ¥ 0,02

Lakhs) and Ministry of Railways T0.12 Lakhbs (3| March 2008 0,12 Lakhs).

T Lakhs

Reennciliation of share application money penading allotment

Far the year ended
31 Murch 2019

Foer the yeur ended
31 March 20)8

Openimg halunee 014 2479300
Add Shaee applbication money received during the year 12,159.64) 3239900
i vs: Shares allotied against share application money - 37.691 86
¢ losing bzalance 12,859, 14 0.14
b1 Corperate socisl responsikility reserve T Lakhs

Reconciliation ul corpurate sociaf responsibility reserve

For the year ended
31 March 21y

For the vear ended
31 March 2018

fapenim Bikioce 6.39 -
Add Transder Trom retuined caming, 20.49 6.39
Tuna: Prunsier to retained canung 0.61 -
Chning balance 35.27 6.39

S-BRBCL-31.063'261 9 (40/60)



dhartiva Rail Biflee Company Limited
Nates 1o the Financial statemenis (continued)

14 {Hher cquity {continued)

<3 Fhy ash utifisation reserve fund
Prrsuant to Gagelie Notificotion dated 3 November 2009, issued by die Mimstry of Environment aml Farest (MOER, Government of India
10CH R The amount cotheeed from sale of Ay ash and ily ash based products shoah) be kept in a separate account head and shall be wilized
unly dur the deselopnient of infrasinuewure ur facility, promation & Eaciitation aclivities [or wse ol fy wsh until 100 percent fly ash wiilization
bevel 15 awchieved. The fund badanee has been kept in "Bank balsnces other than cash & cash equivalents’ (Nete 9. .
¥ Lakhs

Reeoncilistion of Ny ash otitisation reserve furd : : For the year ended For the year cnded
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Operng batimee - -
Wkl Franslorred during the yeas
Resenae frons operations 154 81 -
Fovs e during the year:
Fuployee beneliss expunse ' 694 -
Closing habanee 147.87 -
D Relained carnings ’ ¥ Lakhs
Reconciliatinn of retained earnings For the year ended For the year ended
3 March 209 31 March 28
Oapeng balanee 715983 444502
Add. Prohie (Loss) for Uwe year fron Statenient of Profit and Loss ER7.53 1IN0
I ess: Trumsder o corporate social responsibility reserve ’ 2949 639
Luss: Tramsber [rom comorate sovial responsibilily reserve 0.61 -
Clusing halance - 8,018.48 7.159.83
15 Borrewings
£ Lukhs
Particubass As at Axal
31 March 2tH9 31 March 2018
Seeured term loans |
Frem bank |
Hupee ks i49 475.00 -
I'ream fingncizl institation
Rupee hoans 395.428.87 5053.556.10
545,303.87 5065,356.16
besss Infenest Acgrued 7,862 39 7.362.495
Togal 537,441.48 497,993.21

The company bad an initial tenm koan {acility of $3.74.675.00 Lakhs (PFC @ T 224 800.00 Lakhs + REC: T 1.49,875.00 Lukhs). The
cumpany has fully uiilised the borrowing limit. Interest on initisl ferm loun is payuble at the apphicable three year "AAA” Bond yield rate
plus agreed nuargin, ‘The Moratorium period Tor the project is up (o 6 months from the COL of the sttion. The facility ¥s available for o
period of 48 months from the dofe of documentation or &l the acual completion of the proect plus 06 months (moraioriom period),
whichever is ewrdier. The repayment schedule is for o perivd ol 13 years, beginning after 06 months fram COE of the stativn. in 68 quanerly
nstalments. The tenm loan was secured by cquitable mortgage/hy pothecation of @l present and Futare Gixed and nrovable assets of Nalkinagar
PP 4250 MW, us tirst charge, ranking pard pasu with clsarze created with FFU and witl REC

During the year. entire lerm Jown rem REC of T 1.49.875.00 Lakhs has been (ramsfeered 0 Vijuya Bank. The leem loan is secured on pari
st basis on Bhe project assets (Units + 1 to IV). The tenn loan is sepayable in 60 cyual guartedy installments with cHfeed from 30
Seplendher 2018

i

h

e company bas 2ad term {oan ageeement of T 25,325.00 Lakbs from PRC. The company Ias fully wilised the borsowing timit, The interest
rale on this faeility is 4 9.36% p.a. with repayment schedule of 15 years, beginning aicr 06 wonths from COL ol the station, in 60
‘guanerhy mstidments.

e company has taken 3rd termn bows of T 1.59.860.00 Lakhs from PEC. The company has drawa T 1.37.401.48 Lakhs (31 March 2318
TO7993 21 Lukhs) from this facitity of loun titl 1he reporting date. The interest rate on Whis Gieibily is 7 9.36% P wilh repayment scheduic
wl 15 veary. begitming after o months froen COE of the station. in 60 quanerty instubments,

Canmars limk ha sunctiened a borowing limit of ¥ 30,000,600 Lakhs (fund based Timit including non-fund based sub limit of & 10,000.00
bakhis) (31 March 2018 ¥ 75.000,00 Lakhs (% 60.000.00 Lakhs fund bas) and T 15.000400 [kl von-lund basedd). There is no balanee
subslusting on reporting dute. The sanctioned limil is secunad by way of first charge on trade receivables and inventories and seeond charge
an tpible lixed assets,

[y

i

1 Here has deen no delaults in ecpaynrent of the loan or inteeest thereon as an the end of the veat,

ey
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Bhargiva Rail Bijlee Compuny Limited
Notes to the linancizl ststements (continued)

10 Ohey Anancial Habilities

‘X Lakhs
Particulars : As at Asat
3 March 2019 31 March 2018
Niaible for capatal expenditure
Total vistnding dues of micro and small enterprises 1.5 1.59
vl aatstmding dues of creditors ather than micro and small coleeprises 97141 b 1499.66
Togul 973.00 1,201.25

Pavable for capitel expenditure represemts liability towards equipment supplier and erection venders peading evajuation ol performance and
guarantee test resules,

Dt Beler moe 3% for eclated party disclosures,

1 Be comspanny's exposure e cuerency and liquidiny risks retated 10 above financial liability is disclesed in nowe 31.

st Detinled disclosures as required under MSMED Act, 2006 s madue in note 0.

PY Deferred tuy liabilities (net)

“Lukhs
I"articubars Asat - As at
3 March 2019 31 March 2008
Deterred tax Habiluy
[ifference in honk depreciution and tox depreciation . : 3527 306 36.433.21
Dess Deferred tas asa
| nishsusrdved depreciation 34335206 -
Iference in tax profit and prolit as per MAT 937.70 Y3770
Tatal - 35, 495588

Reler note 36 for disclosure related to income ax.
© b Deferred tiss assets and deferred tax lisbilities have been ofTset as they relate to 1he same governng knvs.
¢k bhe Company has reslated s financial sitements op the hasis of FAC opinion pronounced by 1CAL Refer note 32 for details on

reNEIRHeL
dt Mosenwentin deferred s batances % Lakhs
Particubars Opening balance Recognised in profit Closing balance
or luss
For the year ended 31 March 2069
Dreferred tax Habiliy . .
Difference in book depreciation and tax depreciation 36.43320 18.837.16 55,270.36
Less Deterred tax assel
| nabsurhed depreciation - 54.332.00 54.332.66
Ditlerence m1 tax profit and profit as per MAT 93710 - 937.70
' 35,495,540 (35.495.50} -
For the vear ended 31 Aacch 2018
Dleterrad sax Habifity
Infterence in baok depreciation ang tax depreciation - 3643320 36,433.20
{ess Dlelerred Lax asset
Phifterence in tax prolic and profi as per MAT 199 38 73832 937,70
{199,348} 35.694.88 35,495.50
18 Frade payvables
¥ Lukhs
Particelars As al As at
31 March 261% 31 Murch 2088
Trade payable lor pomds and services
Tonal satstanding dues ol aricro and snsall emerprises 34867 gL
Torl outstnding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprives G307.4 532076
Forad . 9.656.08 5,416.80

i Reter note 3R for eelated party disclosures,
b Itailed disclosures as required under MSMED Act,_2006 is made in note 40
<} Fie company’s expussure Te Jiquidity risks relateg e is disclosed innote 34

1
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ihartiva Kaif Bijlce Company Limited
M\ates to the lfnancial stalements {continued)

1% {rther finzncial HabHities

T Lokhs

Particukie

As at
31 March 2819

Axat
31 Marsh 2018

Pasabic for capnd espenditure

- migre und smill enterprises 35941 421.96

- athier tham miero and smal enlerprises 162502 5641100
Inlerest averied bul not dug on horrowings 786239 7.362.95
by pan ahbes

Dreposits {ront comriclons 37.52 SLot

NI L 7474 17 1.038.27

Mable to emphuyiees LIS 97012

Others 181,30 R6.27
Toral TH.630.69 66.362.17

i Pinahle for capial expendiure represents Hability towards equipment suppher and erectron vendars pending evaluation of performance and
suaraatee west resulls '

{retanded disclosures as requited undey MSMELD Act, 2006 is mides in note ),

1 CHber pan ables - sthers include stake chegue. admbnistration expenses paynhle ele,

s Hwe company s exposure 0 curreney amd lguiddty nisks selated fo above financial lishiliny s disclosed o nete 31

Redur note 38 For religed party disclasurs.

o

Hy {Mher enrreent liabilities

31 March 2019

¥ Lakhs
Particalars As at . As at
3t March 2019 31 March 2038
Fax dedueted at souree and ofher staory dues LI 17507
Cithers dincludes mailerial reccived on loany 68.20 68.20
Lotal 89.71 241.27
U Provisions
T okhs
Partienbars Asut Asat
31 March 2014 31 March 2018
Preny s for oblizations incidental ont aoguisition . 16,943 25 11.861.86
| Peeny tsson for leave encashment 1.02 -
Tuotal 16,944.27 11.861.86
i Reler mote 39 for disclosure as per ind AN 37 on Provisions, Contirgent Linbilities and Congingent Assets’,
27 Regulators deferral aceount credit bilances
T 1akhs
Particulars As st AS at

31 March 2418

i aecount of
nchange defferences

Teatal

4.6l

4.6 1

ay Regulatone defermal sccound batanees have been aeeounted in ling with Accouming polivy no. €4 (Note 1), Refer Note 42 for detafled
Jiselusures.

D'I“C"]L_
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Bhartiva Rail Bijlee Compary Limited
Nodes to the financial statements (continued)

24 KHesenue from sperativns

T Lakhs

Particulars

Far the year ended
3t Mareh 2019

Fer the year ended
31 March 2058

I oierey sirbes 11697274 6.739.92
Sabe of Hy ash 154.8¢ -
Pass: Franstereed to fly ash uridisation reserve lund 154.81 -
Other operating income
Interest Irom customers - 1.06
Fotal 116,972.74 69,740.98
inl Frergs sules are net of rebate 40 bereliciaries amounting 10 ¥ 342,17 Lakhs (31 March 2018: 163,72 Lakhs),
by Refee note 35 Jor detailed disclosure in respect of revenue from contract with customers,
X Other ncome
T Lakhs
Partiendurs For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2HY

31 March 2018

Iaterest from

Fimncial assets measured at amortised cost- Bank deposils 589.53 219.50
Ach anee 1o contractors 5109 352
Ineome s refunds - 2.79
Uther non-operating income
Lk s it sarcharge (rom beseliciaries 323344 -
Protiv on disposal of property, plant and equipment ' - -
Nut guin in [oreign cureency ransactions and trnslations 129.46 -
Prow isione writien back - 0.50
Miseellaneous income (refer note below) B9 16.52
4,029.06 24283
Luesst Pranslerred 1o expenditure during construction period (neti- note 29 - -
Foral ) - 242,83

14,029.06

at Miscelluneess ncome includes income from Hire Charges, rent received, risk & cost recovery ete.
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Rivartiva Rail Bijlee Company Liunited
“otes (o the financial siatements {continued)

23 kmployee henefits expense

_ : T Lakis
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2619 31 Mnrch 2018
Nitlaries and waoges . 5.619.8) - 489479
Contribution to provident and other Funds _ 1.325.99 902 63
Sl wellar: cxpenses 763.23 395.54
7,709.03 6,192,776
L Adlucated 1o Tugl cost 76.94 3623
Foast Teansivreed to 91y ush utitisation reserve fund 6.94 -
baosst Transterred w expenditure during construction period {net)- note 29 1.812,03 ' 1.573.37
Petal : 581310 4,583.44

In aecordance with Accounting Pelicy no. C1E (note 1), an amount of T 76997 Lakhs (31 March 2018 € 7EE92 Lakbhs) wwands
providuil tund, pensien, gratuity, post reticement medicad fucilities & wther wermingd benefits and T 55401 Lakhs (31 Mareh 2018: £
189.00 Lakhn) owards Teave & other benefits, are paid /payable to the holding company (NTPC Lid) and included in 'Employee Benefits'.

Is

In aceosdunce with Accounting Policy no. C.11 {note 1), an amount of T 2,00 Lokhs (31 March 2018: £ 1,10 Lakhs) towards providen
fund. pension. gratuity, post retirement medical Macilitics & other terminal benelits and TN (31 March 2018: T 0,48 Lakhs) towards leave
& anher benefits. ane paid ipayable to the other promoting partner Indian Railway <) and included in 'Fmplovee Benefits’,

2 Finance cosfs
T Lakhs
Particabim For the year ended For the year ended
3t March 2019 31 March 2018
Imerest on Hnancial liabilities messured a1 amortised cost
Rupes termn ks 5007175 48.369.77
Uassinding of discount o vendor liabilities 187,09 64129
Cash eredil qweount : .74 114,08
lterest o Income Tax 001 -
. 54,259.5% $9.125.14
Onher srrowing cost {refer pote a below) 5,305.58% -
48,563.17 49,125.14
Lessy Jrmnsterred Lo expenditure during construction period {net)- note 29 2377457 2519534
Total 31, 790,60 23.931.84

3 Lerm Joan from REC amounting to T 14987500 Lakhs Ius been transterred to Vijaye Bank The Company has paid prepayment clarges
ol T 530558 Laukhs,

27 Depreciation and amortisation expense

T Lakhs i

Particalars ' For the yeur crded For the yeur ended

31 March 2019 3t March 2013
i propery, phogt and equipment- Note 2 21.359.02 14.8X5.61
O intangible sssets- Note 4 ' 3.12 Lo6
26.362.14 ' 14.8%87.27
Dessz Mlociued 1o lued cost L5885 2090
Lz Prunaterred (o expenditure during construction period (nel)- note 29 64.98 37.57
Total . 20,238.31 14,8278

g




Bbaviiva Rail Bijlee Company Limited
Nuges to {he financial statements (continued)

2R (rthier expenses

T Lakbs
Furticulars "~ For the year ended Fur the year ended
31 March 2iHY9 31 March 2018
Power charges (el ol regoveries) 257.64 401,63
Waler charges 537.62 9.62
Sares cumsinmed 5719 15,22
Hent 1.90 28.23
Repairs und imaintenones:
Buildings 192 93 23704
Machinery 358414 123041
hibers 1.728.0i6 T09.044
{oand dispistch conter charpes 39.71 18.05
s 768.34 340,49
Livense bow 971 13.56
Praining & recruitment expenses 123.55 13.02
Commmnication expenses 184.11 12517
inland sl 110.71 2782
. Foreien b 1.39 433
Pender expenses (net of regoserios) (0.4} 3084
Haay ement o sauditors 307 BN
Aalvertisement and publicity 2.7 346
SCCHFHY UNPOBISeS L430.12 1.047.31
Entertainment expenses 65.52 2148
Fxpenses tor guest house (net of recoveries) - {1}
Brokerage and commission .41 -
Bouks and pericdicals .04 123
Prolessionad charges und consultancy Fee 22694 010t
Eozal uspenses 84.49 7208
E Y hige and other charges 7.18 699
Printing and stationery 13.10 121
Hire chiarge of vehigles 247.06 23274
lank charges 31.34 22.88
Nut loss in Torciyir corrency fransactions and translations - 937.11
Uorporaie sociil responsibility expense L1 .
Miscellaneos eapunses 268.81 21311
19,272.24 7.210.717
Tesst Allucuted w fuel cost 282.78 0.1
Lesst Transterred to expenditure during construction period (net)- pole 29 233.25 L1803
‘ Natal 9,756.21 6,030.13
.t Miseeliacous expenses includes Horticuiture expenses, hiring of DG set ete,
t el B respedt ol payiment 1o anditoes:
Ntalutors audit foe 1.96 222
| FARTT I 1 0.36 .30
t iher services (eertificttion fee) 0.28 0.20
Riimbursement of expenses . 0.65
Reimbursenrent of GST/scrvice 1ax n.47 0.31
Total 347 3.68

Dq&_
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Bhartiya Rail Hijlee Company Limited
Noetes 1o the financial statements (continued)

2% Fapenditure during construction period (net)

¥ Lukhs

Particulurs

For the year eaded
31 March 2019

For the year ended
31 March 2018

\. Laplos ec henefits expense
Sabaries aad wiges
Contriburion e provident and other Tunds
Sttt s elfine evpupses

Total ()

B. Finanee costs
Interest on
Hupwew lerm loans

Unwinding of discount on account of vendor liabilitics

Fatad (8
C. Nepreciation 2nd amortisation

8. Generation, administration & other expenses
Povver charges
Warer charges
Rent
Huputirs & wasintenate:
Brzhdings
Machtiers
rthers
Eicense Lo
Communicition expenses
Iravelling expenses
Sechiriss expenses
Fnerainment ¢xpenses
Books amd perindicals
Professional charges and consultancy fee
Leuad eNpenses
L1 Hire und other charges
Printing and stotionery
Hiring af vehicles
Bank chorges
Miscetlaseons expenses
Totalidh

Grand wiad (A+B+C+D)

“ Carried to Capital work-in-progress - (note 3)

N

1.292.32 1.263.69
3120 22545
208,53 86.23

1,812.05 1,573.37

23.387.48 24.5352.08
187.09 641,29
23,774.57 25.193.30
64,98 3757
63.95 327.82
- 130.60
- 2296
- 3159
.68 372
18088 131.3)
- 572
- 0.5
(10.43) 40,66
- 369.61
- 014
- 0.14
- 970
0.40 33.24
- .36
0.03 L.76

- 44,04
- by
{2.24) 23.51
233.25 118043

2588485 * 27.984.647

‘:)"l-a
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Blurtisn Kait Bijlee Company Limited
Notes tu the financial statements {eontinued)

i Fair salue measurements

a) Financial instruments by category

AH financiad assets and liabilities viz. cash and cash equivalents, bank balances other than cash and cash cquivalents, trade reccivables.
unbilld rescnue. term loars, payable for capital expenditure, trade pavahles, interest acerued onr borrowings. employves refated liubitites.
passathle we refinedd parties. deposits [Tom contractors and suppliers and payable for expenses are measused at amortized cost.

h

Fair value hicrarchy

Fins section explains the judgentents and estintates made in determining 1he (air values of the financial instruments that are (a) recognised
and neasured st Bie vidoe and (h) measured at amertised cost and lor which fair vaties are dischsed in the Timencial skiements,

Level 2 ¥ Lukhs
Fisanciul instraments which are measured at amertized cost for which fair As at As ut
vitlues are disclosed 3 March 20119 31 March 20138
Financial labilities:
R Teom Loan 347.689.15 318.330.70
*av abbe Tor capitad eapenditure 33.157.51 57,037.940
fotul 6(I2!846.66 575g97.6ll

Covel 20 The tair value of financia) instruments that are not traded in an active market is deiermined using valuation weohisiques which
manimise the use of observable market data and rely as linle as possible on entity specilic estimates. B all significunt inpuls reguired to Fair
vadue an instrmem are observable. the instrument is included in bevel 2.

¢y Fair value of fisaneial assets and liabilides measurcd at amartised cast

% Lukbs
Fair value of linancial linbilities As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2018
measured wl amortized cost Carrying amount Fair value Carryving amount Fair value
Rupree wrm hss 537,441 48 $47.689.15 . 447,993 21 518.339.70
s oble for capital expenditure 55.15743 55.157.54 5803431 7.057.9i
Taral 592,598.91 602,8-46.66 §56,027.52 §75,397.60

The currsing mmounts of shoet term cash and cush equivalems, bank balances otber than cash and Gsh equivalents, tride seecivables,
unbified revenue, trade payables, interest acerued on borrowings, emplovee reluted Hobilities, payvable to related paniies. deposits from
conlractors and suppliers and payable for expenses are considered to be the same as their $air vafues, due to their short-term nature.

he fuir values Bir Rupee term Ioans and payable for capital cxpenditure were caleulnied bised on cash {lows discounted using o curreni
lending rate. |hey ave classitied as level 2 fair values in the fair vabue hierarchy due to e inclusion of unchservable inputs,
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Bhartiva Rail Biflee Company Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

3t Financizl risk management

Fie Comspans s principal financial liabilities comprise loans in domestic eurtency and payables for capital expenditure, The main purpose of
Usese financial Babilities is 1o finance the Company’s operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include cash at bank and deposits
with hamk.

T he Company is expased to the folkwing risks from its use of tinancial instruments:

- Market rish

- Creddit risk

- Laquidity risk

[ s note presents infermation about the Company s exposure 1 cach o the ubave rishs. the Company’s objectives, policics and processes
For measuring and mansgiong fisk,

Risk masagement framework

Hhw Compaiy s avtisitics makes it suseeptible 1o various risks, The Company has aken adequate memsires o address such eoncerns by
dueloping adequate systess and practices, The Company s wverall risk management pragean: focises on the anprediciubtlity of niarkees
atnd seehs o munage the impact ol hese risks on the Company™s {inancial performance.

Fiie Huard of Directars s overal) responsibility for (b establishrient and oversipht of the Computy's risk management framework.

Fie Campans s risk management policics are established 1o ddentify and analyse the risks fwed by the Company. 0 sol appropriate rish

limits and controds, and 1o monitor sisks and adherence to limits. Risk management polisies and systems are reviewed regidarly to reflect

changes in macket conditions and the Company s activities.

Market risk

Marhet wish iy the risk that changes in market prices, such as forcipn exchange rates and interest rtes will affect the Company™s income or
the value ol it holdings of fnancial instruments. The objective of market sk manggement is W manage aad control murkel risk exposures
within aceeplable parameters, while optimising the return, The Board of dircclors is responsibie for setting ap of policies and procedures Lo
nrnige markel risks of the compuny., )

Interest rate risk

the Compamy s exposed (o interest ete risk wrising ftom long torm borrowing with Oouling intorest rate. The Company is exposed (o
Hsterest e ish because the cash fows associated with {loating rute bormowing will Huctuale with changes in interest rate.

Keter aele 13 tor intercst mate profile of the Compuny s interest-bearing tinancial instrument at the reporting date.

~Cash flow sensitivity anatysis for vaviable-rate instruments

% change al 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting dute would huve increased {decrensed) equity and prodit or loss by the amounts
shivsn bekore. This analvis assumes that all other varisbles remain constant. The analysis is performued on the sanwe basis for the previous
Lyl

T 1.akhx
Farticulars Profit (Luss)
144} bp increase 100 hp decrease
Rupee term logns .
iFor the year eaded 31 March 2019 ' (3.069.93) 5.069.93
For the year ended 31 March 2018 (4.814.19) 4.814.09

{ arrency risk

The Company exceuwes import agreements for the purpose of purchase of capital goods. As per the CERC regubtions, the gaiidliss on
acvotml oF exchange mite vasiations on all foag term and short lerm Roreipn currency monetary items (up o CODY is recovernble from
hepetiviaries Mence. the impact of sirengthening or weekening of Indian rapee iguinst USD and Eore on the staternent of prolil and koss
wotld ot be very significant,

I he currency prolile of financial fiabilitics as at 31 March 2619 and 31 March 2018 are as below:

T Lakhs
Particulars ) As ot Asat
31 March 2089 31 March 2018
Pavable for capital expenditure
LS 128.95 110.54
FURO H.685.3¢ 11,424,253
Fostad B,814.25 11,534.79

21 n—a
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Bhurtiva Raii Bijlce Company Limited
Nates t1 the financial statements (continued)

3 Financial risk managenient icontinued)

i Credit risk
Lredit risk s the risk of financial loss to the Company i o customer or counterparty ta a Financial instrument Faits to meet f1s contractual
aldigationy resulting in a financial loss o the Company, Credit risk arises principally from trade receivables, loans & advances, cash & cush
aguivalents and deposits with banks and Hinsncial institutions.

Frade reveivabdes and unbilled revenuc

Liw Company primurily sells electricity o bulk customers comprising. mainly mifnays owned by centrad government and state electricad
utilities owned by Stae Government. FThe risk of default in case of power supplied to these stale owned companies is considered 10 be
invignificant. Cabified revenue primarily relates 1o the Company’s right to considerstion for work completed but not billed s the reponing
dhate umd have sisbstamiatly the same risk eharacteristics as the teade receivubles for the sams 1y pe of contracts,

Akl oveurs when in abe view of management there is no sigaificant possibilinn of recovery of receivables atter considering afl available

ptions (B oL,

Canh and cash cejuivaients and Deposits with banks
[ vompany has bunking saperations with State Bank of India. Canarat 13ank and [CICH Bank which are scheduled banks, These banks have
izl eredit sating and risk of default with these bunks is considered 10 be insignificoas,

1i) Eipusure to credit pisk
e carry ing amount of financial nssels represents the maximwm credit exposure. The maximum exposure o credit risk ai the reporting dite

RATL
T Lukhx

artivalars As at As at

' 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Financial assets for which luss slowance is measured using Lifetime Expected
Credit Lasses (ECL)- Simplified approach .
Trule Recgivable 24.937.69 207017
Odser financial wssets (Unbitled Revenue) 15.957.00 377101
Finaacial assets for which loss allowance is measured vsing 2 months Expeeted
{ redin Losses (FCLS
Lanhanad cash equis slent [3.674.62 LILRYS 42
Ol Bomb bidanees B.213.07 11000
Fotal 62,842.48 4146814

(i Provision for expected credit losses

Finuncisl assets for which loss aewance is measured using §2 month expected credii losses

Fhe compimy D assets wheee the counter- parties have sulficient capacity 1 mect the obligmions and where the risk of defaolt is very low.
Huner bused oo historic default raes. the Company believes that, no impairment aliowance is necessary in respeet of above mentioned
Tinancial assets,

Financial assets for which lass allowanec is measured using tife time expected credit losses

Ihe Company las costomers (Raitways and state government utitities) with capacity 1o mcet the obligations and thetetore the risk ol default
B> negligible or nil. Further, managemoent befieves that the unimpuired smounts that ar past due by more thim 30 days are still collectible in
fudl. based on historical puyment behaviour aad extensive analysis o’ custonter enedit fisk. [Tence. ne impairment foss has heen recognised
duting the repurting: periods in respeet of rade receivables,

{ii) Ageing analyvsis of trade receivables

. T Lakis
Puarticulais As at Asar
. 3J Murch 2019 31 Mareh 2018
B=0d) davs past due ' 13.522.27 6.486.32
bt divs past due V41542 203865
Y1120 day s past due - RAF133
1200 v - [[IE ]
Total 24,937.69 20,741.71
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Bhartiva Rail Bijlee Company Limited -
N otes to the financial statements (contioued)

A4 Fimancial risk sranagement {continued}

wi Liguidits risk

Liguidily rish i~ the risk thar the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obfigatioms associated with its financial liabitities that e
settled b delis ering ash or another financial asset, The Company's approach to maniging Jiquidity is to ensure, as fur as possible, that 21 will
abvan s e slicient liguidity so meet its liabilities when due, under both nornal and stressed condiions, wilhaut incurring unaceeplable
lsecs ior visking danvage o the Compariy”s repataticon.
Ehe Company Bas an approprizie Hyuidity risk managemnent framewark for the masagement ol short, medium and long terns Fanding and
fiquidiny management requirenients. The Company mignages liguidity risk by maintaining sdequate cash reserves, banking facilitios and reserve
borrowing facilities by comtinuously monitoring forecast and setual cash Rows und matching the matarity profiles of financial assets wad

Jizibiltius.

e Company s reasury department is responsible for managing the shor enn and lang oo liyuidity requirements of the Company. Short
ter liquidinn . situgion s reviewed daily by Treasury, The Bourd of directors has estoblishiad policies {0 manage liquidity risk wnd the
Cumpany s ressun departinen operates in fine with such policivs. Any breaches of these policics are feported 1 the Board ol Directors. Tong
term Jguidiiy position ks reviewed on arepudar basis by the Board ol Direetors and appropeiute Jecisions are taken according o the situiion.

Pypicithy the Compary ensures that it bas suficient cash on demund w meet expected operational expenses lor a period of 60 days. including
the servicing ol fnancial obligations, this excludes the potential bopact of extreme circumstunces that cannot reasonably be predicted. such as

nularal disssters.

(i) Finsncing sreangements

Hie compatiy had uccess to Lhe following undrawn borrowing Tacititios s the end of the reporting period:

T Lakhs

Particulars

Asat
31 March 2019 31 March 2048

As at

Fhrating-rate borrowings

“ Puyable for Capital Expenditure is inclusive of finance cosl on e

Lenm loans 22418.52 61.866.79
Working capitad Himit RURL LR RO (HY
1ii) Maturitics of finunciai lisbifitics .
e foliow g are the contraciual manirities of non-derivative linancial liubilities, bused on contractzal cash flows:
Ax at 31 March 2019 .akbs
Particulars I months or | 3-i2 months [-2 yeary 2.5 years More than 5 Tosal
less YeRME
Rupwee Term Loan . 13,953.19 3582044 107.448.30 380,170,535 33744148
Irinde s ubles 4.656.08 . - - - 963008
IR able o Capital Sxpenditure® 34.184.43 - L1598 - . 35290410
Inerest acerued bl not due on T.862.39 - - - - 788230
oo i
Pleposits trom contractors and others 37.32 - - - - 3752
Pux ably w0 related partics TATANT - - - “ 747447
{ray ible b emplovees sun 88 - - - - 890.8%
Oilwrs 181.30 - - - - 181.30
Flaryl 80,286.77 13,953.19 36,935.42 1)7,488.30 380,179.558 618,8434.23
As a0 31 March 2018 T Lukh-
Particulars 3 months ov | 3-12 months -2 years 2-5 yvears More than § Totai
. _less years
Rupee Term Luan - - 145.007.64 99.598.64 379.296.88 497,993,271
frade Payables 541680 - - : . - 5.416.80
Purable for Capit] Cxpendinure® 34.812.39 202067 146545 . - 58.298.5]
Interest acenicd bu not due on J1.362.95 - - - - 7.362.95
Brorromy Ings
Drepamits Irom contragiurs and others 51.60 - . - - 3100
Pavabte W related partics ' 1.058.27 - - - - L5827
P able to cnployees 970.02 - - - - 97002
Urthers 86.27 - - - - %627
 Totai 69,758.30 2.020.67 63.14 99,598.64 379.296.88 §71,237.63

—
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Bleartiya Rail Bijlee Compaay Limited
Notes 1 the financiat statements {continued)

32 Hestatement for the vear ended 31 March 2018 and as at 1 April 2017 (continued)

d) Nates on restatement

33

34

35

Rl

i

d

e CERC Re gul.muns 204, the Company is entitled 10 o 115ed retum on its investmenl, sict of tax, Consequently, la is o p.m-!hmuz_h
vast e Company Tollows a practioe of recognising Habikity (Deterred liabifity for Deferred tax asset’) for the deferred tax asset recognised
e Gnancial statements which is payable w the beneficiaries. The Company used 0 oftsel deferred asset For deferred tax Habiliny with
deterred tx liability snd expense on aceount of deferred lability for deferred ax assel was also adjusted with the tax expense recognised in
the Statement of I'rofit and Loss,

During the sear, as per o opinion pronounced by Expert Advisony (omnuucc (EAC) of the Inslitwte of Chartered Accountams of India
(UAD the Company has recognised Deferred liability for Defomed tax asset as o repulatory deferml account debitieredie balance in
awvordunee with Ind A8 114, Regubatory Deferral Acconnis,

Axu sl regabatory defereal account debit’eredit balance has increused with a corespanding inerease in detirred tax usset ns under:

At 1A 20017 % 199 38 |akhs

A 31 Mareh 2008: € 3549551 Lakhs

fhe Company has  system of obtaining periodic confinmation ol balanees from hanks and other panies. There are no unconfirmed bakances
it respeet af bank accounts and borrowings from banks & financial instittions. [n addition, reconciliation with bencficiaries and olher
custerers s generudly donean quarterly basis. $o far as trade/other payables and Joans and advances are coneerned. the badunce confirmalion
betters it the negative assertion as relerred in the Standard on Auditing (SA)Y 503 (Revised) “External Confirmations”. were sem 10 the
paeties. Nome of such balances are subject jo  confirmation/reconciliation.  Adjustments. i any  will be accounted for on
conlismdion reconciliation of the sume. which in the opinion of the management will nol have a muterial impact, I the opision of the
wankigenient. e value ol assets, other than property, plunt and equipment. on realisotion in the ordinary cutirse of business, will not e less
thzn thie s adue ok swhich these are sisted in the Bakanoe Sheet.

The amount of exchange differences (net) eecognised as incorwe in the Statement of Peodit & Loss is T 129,46 Lukhs (31 Murch 2018: - %
G371 Lakhs).

Borrowing costs capitalised during the vear is ¥ 23,774.57 Lakhs {31 March 2018:  23,192.30 Lakls).
Income taves
{ceme tax expense
" Lakhs
Partivutars For the year ended Eor the vear ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2818
Current tax cxpense
Crrrent sar - 538,33
Pernining tu repubsory deferral accoutis - 199,94
- 73832
Deterred tax expense (MAT Credit entitfement)
Crighimnion of wmporan: differences (35.495.51) -
o ’ (35.195.51) -
Total income fax expense {33AFT 1) 73532
Reconciliation of tax expense and the aceounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate
' " Lakhs
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
3 March 2019 31 March 2018
Profin before tax including muvement in regutated deferral account batunces ] 134.607.98) 305442
Fax at Company s domestic tax rate ol §% (31 March 2018; 21.3416%) - %.350.1%
MA T fability - R.356.1%
femporars differences ol previous yeor recognised in current year ) 135.495.51) -
Tax expiense (35A495,5]) 8,356.18

Phe company has recognized deferred fux labitity afler adjustment of depreciation difterence likely to be reversed during the tax holiduy as
Vit | of the company is eligible For tax holiday w/'s 80IA of Income Tax Act. 1961,

Vi Company has not recognised deferred 1ax asset of T 402.20 Lakhs, considering uncertainty of fulure taxable protit against which such
dheterrald Ty wsset can be wilised on unabsorbed depreciation o ¥ 1,150.98 Lakhs, Unabsorbed deprecition can be carried forward
indulinitely tor set off as per income tax laws.

/60)



Bhartiva Rail Bijlee Company Limited
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A per Section FRS of the Companies Act. 2003 read with guidelines issued by Departwent of Public Enterprises, GOLL the Company is
rauired 1o spend. inevery financial year. # least two per cent of the average net profits oi the {empany made during the three immediniely
preceding linaneial vears in gecordance with ds CSR Policy. Fhe details of CSR expenses for the vear are as under:

T1ukhy

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2019

For the year ended
31 March 2018

Amount reguired o be spent during the year
Amcnnk spent Juring the year®

“ Anount spent on gilting eveles and blind sticks to villagers
Related party disclosures

List of related purties:
(1} Purent company:
NI Linsited

(i) Lotien hasing signiticant influenge:
Smistry el Rt

tiint Key managerial personnet (KMP):
M Sagevta Bhatia

Shri 5.0 Pasdes (upto 31-Aug-17)

Shr Sudhir Garg (uplo 9-T'eh-18)

Sbri 8, Narendra tw e SL 23-May- 183

Shri R K. Juin fw .t 16-Jul-18)

shri Shalabh Goel Gepeo 13-June-18)
shri K3, Garbsal Gupro 3 E-Jan-18)

Shei KUK Sharma (w 2.8, 22-8ep-17 10 31-Oct-17)
shrk ALK Gupta (w.e .l 18-Nov-17)

Sbri MLP. Sinba qupto 27-April-18)

Shrj O Sk akumar

Shn Dipankar Nandy (upto 2-Nov-17)
Khrd ?\i:mu‘ 1 Srivastava {w.el 3Now-17)
Shri Vishad Garg fwe F 30-Oct-17)

(iv ). dnint venture of parent company:
1 titits Powgrteeh Lid

(3) Entities under the control of the same governmend:

29.4%
ihal

Non-executive Director
Non-exceutive Lireetor
Non-exegilive Thrector
Non-cxccutive Thrector
Non-cxveutive Dhrector
Non-uvxecttive Dircetor
Nom-cxegutive Director
Non-gxecutive Director
Non-exceutive Dircctor
Non-executive Director
Chief Fxecutive CiTicer
Chief Finanee OfTicer
Chict Finanee Offwcer
Company Secretary

6.39

Ihe Compuny is u subsidiary of Centrat Public Sector Undertuking (CPSU) conrobted by Central Government by halding majority of shares
{refer nele 135 Pursuand to Paragraph 25 & 26 of indian Accounting Standard 24, entities over which the same government has control of
fomt contral of. or significunt influenge, then the reporting entity and other entities shal! be reparded as related parties. The Company has
applivd the exemption available for government related entities and have made limited disclosures in g financial stalemems, Such enlitios
wilh which the Company has significont transoctions include but not limitd o Comral Coalficlds 1id. BHEL Lid. SAIL Lid.. tndiun 08!
Corporation 1., Bharat Petroleum Corporation Lid., NBCC Lid, ERLDC, PGCIL. Rashiriva Ispat Nigam Lid. Rites Limited. Durgnpur
Chemivals Lid. Bridge And Roaf Co. {India) Lik., Central Industrial Security Forees, gte. -

b} Yransactiens with the related purties ave ag follows:

T Lakhy

“For the year ended
31 March 2018

Farticulars Fur the year ended

31 March 2619

(i) Fransaction with pareat company NTPC Limited

Coaseltaney services eecived 30223 428.27
Faguity contribution received 12,139.00 17.8699.00
Faguity shares issued - 12,691 98
Ereputation of Employees 1.671.25 236844
(i} Transaction with entity having significant influence- Ministry of Railways
Nabe of enwern t42,325.21 60.236.63
Faaits comtribution received ! - 13.000.00)
Fyanity shares issued 14.999.R8%
Prepuiations of Enplovees ) 2402 3061
(i) Compensation to key managerial peryo,
Nhort lerm emiployee benefits 123,49 112.63
Postgspiovment benetlits 2904 17.064
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Redatett party disclosusres (continued)

1 akhs

Particukrs

For the year ended
31 March 2019

For the year ended
31 March 2018

(i) Uransactions with joint veature of parent company

Faility Poweriech Lad (Operation and maintenance services) 1.33195 L.I61.534
(v} Transaciions with the related partics under the controt of the same government
BHED Lud (Procurement & crection of plant & machinery) 11.101.35 | 586404
Riles Limited ideposit Work For Coal tronsporlation system) 2.798.05 4.183.77
Pover Grisl Corpoetion OF [ndia Lid {iransmission charges paid) 34.46 258.12
National Buildings Construction Corporation Ead ¢eivil construction) 2.932.61 515285
I'he Oricntal Ensurance Company Lid (nsurancee services) - 16381
Lol Coallields Lad (purchase of coal ) 2R, 10919 12.361.73
Lindustan Petralevm Corporatios Lid {purchase of fuel) 3h7.11 86197
SAIL Lid ¢ purchase of capital goods) 647.77 3300
REAE | d purchase of capital goods) 54.01 259
Indian Ol Corpuration Limited {purchase of tuelh) 2435 .
HATT Machine Toods Limited (purchuse of capital goods) 5146 -
Bharat Petroleum Corparittion Limited {purchase of fuel) 1.303.82 -
Gutstanding balances with related partics are as follows:
T Lakhs
Purticulars As at As at

31 March 2019

31 March 2014

Ainacant pasable (e parent company- NTPC Ltd 748379 1.338.80
Amoeat pay able 30 joinl venture of parent company- Utility Powertech Lid 36817 17.26
Aot receis ahle Trom Ministry of Railways for sake of encrgy 2147388 3348183

‘Ferms und conditions of transactions with the related parties

i) Irumsactions with the relied parties are made on normal commerciad terms and conditions and at market rates.

th) The Company is assigning jobs on contraet basis, for sundrny work in plant to M/s Litility Powerlech Luk (UPL). a 50:50 joint venturc
between NTPC Limited and Relianee Infrastructure Lid. GPL inter-alia undertakes jobs such as overhauling, repair. refurbishiment of variows

©mvetmnica! and electrival equipments of plant. The Compuny has entered into Power Station Maintenance Agreement with UPE from tine to

39
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Cl

trme Fhe rales are fined on cost plus basis afler mutunl discussion and after taking into account the prevatling market conditions.

uii) NIPC Limited is seconding its personnel 1o the company as per the terms and conditions agreed between the companics. whicl are
simifir to hose applicable for secondment of employees to other comparties and institutions. The cost incurred by NTPC Limited towards
superannuation and employee benefits are revovered from the company,

Disclosure us per Ind AS 37 *Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets®

Movements in provisions:

T Lakhs

Particubsrs

Faor the year ended
3t March 2019

For the year ended
31 March 2618

Provisions For obligations incidental on land atquisitiun

Cierry ing umovint 2t the beginning of the year 11.861.86 11.947 .68
Add: Additions Juring the vear 5.636.14 B
Lass: Amaimnts used during the vear 554,75 8382
Carrying smount at the end of the year 16,943.25 11,561.86

Prowision ur obligations incidental 10 land acyuisition ncludes expenditure on rehabilisation & resettiement (R&R) including the amoms
pavable o the project aftected peesons {(PAPs) towards land. expenditune for providing community facitities and expenditure in connectivn
with enviromineatal aspects of the project. Company has estimated the provision based on the Rehabilitation Action Plan {RAF) approved by
the board-compelent authority. The outflow of said provision is expected 0 be incurred immediately on fullilment of conditions by the lund
oistees” receipls of directions of the local/govemment authoritics. ,
seasitivity of provisions

The ussumptivns made for provisions relating to current period are consisient with those in the carlier years. The ussumptions and estimetes
used for recugnition af such provisions are qualitative in natre and theisditihiqod couid atrer in next financial yeas, It is impracticable for
ihe eompiany 1o compule the possible cifect of assumprions and estingdgy w'er- ggnizing these provisions.

1.03.2079 (33/60)
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isclasere as per ind AS 37 ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilitics and Contingent Assets’ (continucd)

Contingent Habilities

Fhe Assessing officer of income tax had made an addition of T 1.0UZ.75 lukhs as [ncome from other sozrees for the assessment yeur 2012-13,
I the appead (iled by the compony. the Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeal)-V had, in te order. deketed the addition made by assessing
witieer. The wssessing officer has. however, filed appeal with the Appellate Tribunal against the deletion by the CIT Appesi. Income Tax
whund of T 18,00 lakbs off AY 2013-16 & T 20,61 kkhs of AY 2016-17 was adjusted with Income tax liability. The total demond on
awzount o deletion {net of Ineome Tax refund adjustment) amount 1o ® 571.25 fakhs cluding interest up o 31 March 2019,

Fhe Axsessing officer of income tax had made an addition of ¥ 22547 lnkhs as income from oher sources for the assessment year 2011(-12,
In the uppead Niled by the company, the Commissioner of income Tax (Appeali-V had. in the wrder. deleted the addition made by assessing
ulfive. Fhe assessing olficer has, however, filal appeal with the Appeliate Tribunal ugainst the deletion by the CET Append, The tomal
demand on aceount of deletion amow e T E10.04 Takis including imterest up w 31 March 2014,

The work "Conte Jor residentisl guarter cie was awarded ¢ o contractor Tl contract was lerminated due to poor progress in job. Fhe
fniractor i gone in arbitration invoking arbitration under general condition contraet tor losses incurmed by them, A claim has been
~umbiftad By the contractor amouniing T 5.442.01 Lakhs before Leamed sole Arbitrator on 30 November 2016, BRBCL. has also sumbitted
vornier claim wnounting 1o 3 8.608.94 Lakhs, :

Five work "Contraet for civil work and ash dyke’ was awarded 10 a contructor, The contract was erninated due o poor progress in job. Fhe
Contructar hias gone in arbitration with a claim of T 15,043 89 Lakhs invoking arbitration under general condition contract tor Josses ineurred
P them during strike period. Award has been pronounced by arhitrmor, Award has been challunged by contractor and Company . As per the
wompany s conterition clabm is oot tenable.

vidhe work “Comtruer for Electrical equipments supply & ereclion piacksge’ was awarded 10 9 cotiractor, The Comtractor demanded

compensution o I 329.58 lakhs on account of exiendul sty overhead expenses and reimbursement of expenses incurred tor establishing
Femiporary structure Tor heyvond ihe origieg] contract peried. As per the company™s contention claim is not fenable.

emand notice received for VAT from the Commercial Tax Office. Aurangabad, Bihar for T 590.30 kikhs on account of tax. penalty and
inlerest under the Bihar VAT Act. 2005 for the FY 2043-14 & 2014-15. [n the uppesl fikd by the company, the Commissioner of
Congmurcial Taxes. Patna , in the order dated 17 March 2007, has given stay with diseetion to deposit the amount of ¥ 300.00 iakhs on or
Belore 23 March 2017, The same was deposited on time by the company and the case is under consideration.

Denand natice recetved for VAT from the Commercial Tax Office, Aurangabud, Bibur for T 4828 lukhs on account of ax. pepalty and
interest mder the Bilar VAT Act, 2005 for the FY 201516 on 25 April 2017, Memorandum of appeal {illed by company on 14 Novembr
2017 with JOCT {Appenl) Gaya & the case is under consideration.

Domind Netice received for entry @x from the Commercial Tax Office. Aurangabud, Bifwr on 22nd August 2017 for € 16.35 lakhs on
aceount ot penalty and interest under the Bikar VAT Act. 2005 tor the FY 2014-15, Memerundum of Appeal filed by Company on 27
December 2007 with JCCT (Appealy Gaya & the demand has not yet been withdrawn,

Demand notice received for entey tox from the Commercial Tux Office. Aurangabad, Bihar on 20 July 2017 for T 106.70 lakhs on account of
L. penally wed interest under the Bihar VAT Act. 2005 for the FY 2013145ty petition filed by company on 3 February 2008 with
I3 CT. Aurangabig, '

Demamd aice received Tor entry tax from the Commercial Tax Office. Aurangabad, Bibars on 24 Aupest 2017 for T 42,57 lakhs on account
of tin. petaley and interest onder the Bihar VAT A1, 2005 for the FY  2014-15. Sty petition Tied by company on 3 February 2018 witli
DUCE Auringabag.

Netige Teceived Tor entry tax trom the Commercial Tax Office, Aurangabad, Bibar by which department claimed that company has purchased
Iran & steel from vutside the state using D-IX form of total ¥ 77.82 fakhs for financial vear 2002-13.2015-16.2016-17 & 2017-18. Whik:
comgany i paid eatry tax 465% on iron & steet purchased of total ¥ 26,314.33 lakhs. notice as been served 1o consider enfry ik i 8% s
per rube 17 of eniny 1ax acltax payable on electrical goods.implements.appartus and applianey inchuding elecirical fittings and all other
navhineries.device used i generation of electricity Considering all the aforesaid notices. Continget liabitity for differentinl erine tax work
eul (o he ¥ $55.97 lukhs. This matter is pending af DCCT, Avrangabad.

Phe wendk "Conlraet for Air Conditioning System Package’ was awarded 10 a contractor, The Contractor demanded compensation of ¥ 53695
Iakhs from BRBCIL on secount of supply of material /Ercction & Instatlation / Escalation wwards supply works carried out turther afler
expiny of contracteal period. Additional ost incared during pratongation period of more than 4 years and Invocation and cncashment of
perfenmiance Bank Guarantees and intercst there on for bevond the original contract period, As per the BREBCL conterion claim is na
enible.
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Bhartiva Rail Bijlee Company Limited
Nntes to the Tingncial statements (continped)

i Ieformuaion insespeet of micro and smast enterprises as requined by Micro, Soral) and Medivm Esterprises Development Agt, 2006
- T Lakhs
Partivulars As ail Axat
31 March 2019 31 March 2418
ad Amount rangining uipaid 1w any supplier: -
Principal imaunt Qou67 3135
hnerest due thereon - .
fr Amount ol interest paid in terms of Scetion 16 of the MSMIEL Act along-yith the ' - -
armeunt pxid 10 the suppliers bevond the appointed day.
¢t vmowst of ingrest due and payuble tor the period of debay in making puyment - -
G hich e been puid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without
ackding the fmterest specilied under the MSMED Act,
) Amount of interest acerued and remyining unpaid - -
w1 Anonnt of further interest remaming due and pavable oven in the succeeding years, “ -

4

n

9]

3}

usthif such dinle when 1w interest dues ay above are actusdly paid 1o the small
valerprises. for fhwe purpose of disallowances as ¢ deductible expenditure under
Sevtion 23 ol MSMED Act

Uperating leases

T Company "s significant Jeasing arrsngements are in respeet of aperating leases of premises [or residentiad use of employees, offices and
euest houses fransit camps for & period of one fo three years, Thuese leasing arrangements are ususlly renewable on mutually apreed (cems bul
are tesl non-ganeetable,

ey (net) on operating lease of the premises for residential use of the emplovees anwsmting o~ 29.87 Lakhs (31 March 2018: 7 0137
Eikbay are inclded in employee benefits expense.,

Reaudators deferral accounts

Nature of rare regulated uctivities

The Company is mainly engaged in generation and sale of cledtricity. The prive 1o be charged by the Company for alectricity sold o s
customery is determined by the CERC which provides extensive guidance on the principies and methodologies for detenmination of the sari(l
fur the purpese of sale of electricity. The taritl is based on allowable vosts like interest. depreciation, cperntion & mointenance expenses, Cie.
will a stipulated resuen, :

Hiis Torm of rute regudation is known as cost-ol-service regulations which provide the Company 10 recover its costs of providing the goods or
sery ees plus  fidr resurn.

Hie Company is cligible 1o apply Ind AS 114, Regulatory Delierral Accounts. The standard permits an eligible entily o continue previous
GAAT (Guhbinee note on accounting for rate regulnted sctivities) accounting policy for its repulatory deterral aveoumt balances. Henee.
Company has opted ta continae with its previous GAAP accounting pulicy for such balunces.

Recognition and measarement

As per the CERC TarifT Regulutions, any gain o loss on sceount of cxchange risk variation dusing the construction period shall form pur of
the capital cost 1l the declaration of Commercial Operation Date (COD) to be considered for caleulation of trill. Aceordingly, exchan pe
differenee arising during the construction period is within the scope of Ind AS 114,

b viesw ol the above, exehanpe differences arising from settlementaransiation of monetary iiven denominated in foreign currency to the extent
recenerablbe frem or payable fo the beneficiaries in subsequuent periods as per CERC TanifT Regulations are recognized on an undiscounted
buesit~ a “Reyudutory deferral account debiveredit balunce’ by credit/debit teo “Movements in Regulaiony deferra) account balunces” during
canstruction period and udjusted from the year in which the same becomes recoverable from vr payabie 1o the beneticiaries.

Risks associated with future recovery of rate regulnted asscts:
11 demimd risk due ta changes in consumer attitudes, the availability of alternative sources of supply
ii} reculnors sisk on account of changes in regulations and submission or appraval of' s sae-setting application or the entity’s assessment of
the expected itnure regulatory agtions
tii) other risks including currency or other marked risks. it any.
Reconciliation of the carrving amounts:
Regulatory asset/Uiahilityy recognized in the books 1o be recovened from or payable 10 beneliciaries in future periods are as fellow:
T Lakhs

Particulars As at : As af
31 March 2019 31 March 2013

Opening regulatons deferrsl avecount debiv(eredit balance 35.775.57 (838.44;
Adddition durimg the year (3577817 30,6324
Reconeny © payment during the year

Clasing, repulatory deferral aceount debitf{credit) balance

(4.660) 35,773.57

*Above baluncees have nat bevn discounted.




Bhartiva Rail Bijlee Company Limited
Naotes i the financial statentents (continued)

42 Regulatory deferral accounts (continued)

d Bus expense (saning) peraining 1o regutatory delerral account balanues

{19999,

v The Company expects i recover the camying amount of regulatory deferral account debit batance over a periad of H) years.

i Reler nole 12 dar tmpacts on restailement on previcus year wmounls.

43 Cupita) management
The Compamy 's vhjectives when munaging capind are 1o safeguard its ability o continue 25 a going concern. so that it can contine lo
providu retums Bor sharcholders and benelits for other stakeholders and maintain sn apprapriste capital structure of debt and equtity.

Pine Bosrd o Birectors has the primary responsibilits 1o maintain a strong capital base and reduve the cost of cupitsl through prudent
manggenent of depluyed funds and leveraging opportunities in domestic and intgrnationid linancial markets so ax 10 maiptiin investor,
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di Neninal vulse per share (in ¥)

)

ereditor iand marker contidence and to susiain fature development of the business.

-

Fiw Company monitors capital. asing a mwedium win view of theee to five vears, on the basis of 4 number of finaneial ratios generally used
P dusiy and by the raing apencies. The Company is not subject w extemully imposed capital reqeirenrents.
The Company monitors capital using gearing ratio which is net debt divided by toal cquity. Net debt comprises of kg term and shart tens

borrons s loss cash and cash equivalent, Equity includes equity share capitat and reserves that are managed a3 capital, The gearing ratio at
(e end of 1he reporting periods was as liows:
T Lakhs
Iarticulars As at Axat
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
(ot Tiahilines 345,303.87 N5.356.16
Fess s Cashoand cash eguivalent 13.674.62 11.893.42
et debt 53162925 493,460.74
Totaf cquity 236.514.01 223.319.61
Net debt ta eqnity ratio .25 2.21
Faraings per share
¥ Lakhs
Particufurs For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2019 3& March 28
Erofit attrihutable io equity sharcholders |A]

From operations including regulatory deterral account badmrees
sz Frony regaladory deferrul secount halances
I ronm operastions excluding regulatory deferral account balances

Biasic curnings per share

Weighted sverage aumber of equity shares for basic carnings per share B3]
Opuning balinee of Bssucd equity shares

Fitect of shares issued during the year. i any

Weighted average number of equity shares

Banic curnings per share A 1 B]

Irimroperions including regulatory deferrad account balurces
Laoss: From regalatory deterral account balances

I rone operativns escluding regulatory deferrat account balunces

iluted earnings per share

Weighted average number of equity shaves for diluted carninps per share i
Opering bakmee of isseed equity shares

L:MTeet o shares issued during the vear. it any

Weighted sverage number of equity shares

Diluted earnings per share JA 7 C)
Iron opeeations including repulatory deferral account balances
[ css: From repulinory deterral account batances
I yom opermions excluding regubary defisrral accouf

887.53 272120
{35.778.17) 36.432.02
36,665.7¢ {33,710.82)

[.584.613.850

1.380.613.850

$3.988.648 233.022.940
1.817,636,790 £,817,636.790
0.05 015

{1.97) 200

2402 {1.85)
1.584,613.850 [584.613.850
33,988,648 233.023.763
1,.817.637.613 1817637613
0.05 015

(.97 2.00
2.02 (1.85)

10,00 10,00
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Bhartiya Rail Bijlee Company Limited
Naites to the financial statements (eontinued)

45 Hevenue from contracts with customers

iy Natture of goods and services i
The Campany is invobved in the peneration and sale of bulk power 10 Railways and suste poswer tifitics. In the opinion of the munagement.
there is only one seportable segment (“Generation of Electricity ™). Sale of electricity is generally made pursuant to long-term Power Purchase
Azreements | PPAs) entered into with the beneficiarics.
“ature, timing of satisfaction of performance obligations and sigaificant payment terins
The Company recnpniises revenue from contracts Tor enuegy sades over Lime as the customens sinaglseously receive and consume the benlits
prov e by the Company. The tarit? for computing revenue from energy sales is determined i wrms of CERC Regaitions as notilicd from
time o e, Lhe amuunt of revense recugnised for enorgy sales is adjusied for variable considuration, whergver applicable, which are
estinmated bascd on the hiswrical daa available with the Company. The amounts are bijled on 2 monthly basis and inveives are payable
wihin contrachslhy agreed eredit period.

b} Phsaparegation of revenue

I the ollowing 1abke, revenue is disagpregated by customer and timing of revenue recognifion:

T Lakhs
Particniare For the ycar ended Far the vear ended

31 March 2019 31 March 2018

{ ustomer
Ruibways 102,325.21 (6,236,653
Uithers 14.647.53 3,303,217
Tutal 116972.74 69.739.92
Timing of revenue recognition
Ohver pime F16.972.74 69.730.42
A1 poii il B -
Total 116,972.74 - 69,739.92

* The Company has inktially nd AS 113 using the cumulative effect method, Under this method. the comparative information is not restated.

Cuntract balanees

" Cenlract ieels wre recognised when there is excess of revenue cumed over billings on contracts. Contragl assets sre ehussitied as onhbilled
roverue (onhy st of imvoicing is pending) when there is unvonditionat right 1o receive cash, aind ooly passage of time is required. as per
vamtsicingl ternts. The contraet liabilities primarily relate 1 the advapee considenation reecived tram the custemers which are referred as
whvanees from custemers’, v

r

e following table provides information about trade receivables and unbilled revenue [rom contracts with customers;

T Lakhs
Particubars - : As at. AS ot -
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Traske reveivubles 24,937.69 01T
I nbitled revenoe . 15,957.00 8.771.01

* The Company recognised the cumulative effect of applying Ind AS 115 us an adjusbucnt to the opening balance as at 1 April 201%.

|)ll|’i;'lg the scar ended 31 March 20109, T 8,771.01 Lakhs of wnhilled revenue as of | April 2018 has been veclassified to trade receivables
upan hilfing 1o customers as per pavment terms defined in respective agreements. Fhere is no other significant change e the contract balance
iluring 1he vear ended 31 March 2H9 |

i Reconcifiztion of revenue recognised with contraet prive:
T Lakhs

Particulars . For the year ended -

' 31 March 2018
Ciantraet price 173149
Adliustments tor;
Rubates 32T
Revenuve recognised 116,972.74

¢

Applving the practical expedicats as given in Ind AS 1 15:

i The Company does nal expect to have sy contraets where the period between the transter of the promised goods or services 1o the
custover anxd payment by the customer exceeds one year. As a consequence, the Company docs not udjust any of the trapsaetion prices for
153 The Contprms i not disclosed the remaining performanee abligation related disehssures for contenets where the revenue resognized
curresponds direetly with the value to the cusiomer of the entity’s performance completed to date.

N e Company has not ingurred any ineremental costs of obtaining comrpefi stomner und therefore, not recognised an asset for such
capitadised costs, . :

Laollod AS 18

.03'.'20191(59160)

#) There is ne impng on account of adoption ol ind AN 115 by the Con

FS-B



Bharya Rail Biflee Company Limited
Nartes lir the finuncial statements {continued}

<t Operating sezment

d

¢

14

A

Iy

the Company’s Bieard of Directors have been identificd as the Chie! Operating Decision Maker CCODMY. In the opinion of the
mnagement. there is ondy one reportahle segmient (“Generation of Electricity™). Accordingiyv. no separate disclosire for segnwent reporting is
reuired to b made it the Enancin) statements of the Company. Further, the Company operates only in one gengraphical segment which is
badia

Entiny wide disclosures
Informativn about products and services
Fhe Company is invab.ed in the generation and sale of bulk power 1w Indiap Railways and State Power tilities,

lnlurmstion ahout geographics areas
Fhe entare sules of the Company are made to customers which are domsicited in ndia, Also. all the non-cureent assets ol the anpam are
lovaged i India,

Information shout major customers (from external custimers)
Revenue of upproximately T £02.325.21 Lakhs (31 March 2018: % 66.236.65 Lukhs) are desived from single external customer {Ministry of’
Raibways) accounting lor more thar 10 per eent of total revenue of e Company.

Curtain comtracts of the company for construction of pever plamis with vendors awarded trough 103 (Imernativnal competitive bidding)
whnch are depominatee in third currency {i.e. a currency which is sot the Fanctional arreney of any of (he parties 1o the contrsct} ams Balting
et the puns wow of guidance provided as per Ind AS 109, "Financial instruments” on deris atives and embedded derivatives, NTPC Eimited
Mooty Compiny ) has sought opision From the Expert Advisory Commitice (13AC) constituted by ustitute of Chantered Accountunls of
bclia o the wbave matter. On receipt of opmmnf clarification from FAC, company will aceount (or such comracts.

Standards issued but pat yet effective
On 30 March 2019. Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has notificd the fallowing standtards’ appendis/ amendments which will come into
farce trom | April 2019:

Ined AN TEG, “Leasey’

Phe ew keasing standard will replace the existing leases standard. Iid AS 17 Leases, and refated Interpretations. Fhe standard sets out the
principles [or the recognition. measurement, presentation and disclosure of feases Tor hoth pariics 1o a contract ig., the lessee and the lessor.
ind A% 110 introduces a single lessee accounting modet und requires » lessee to recognize o right-of-use assel representing is right 1o use the
unherbying asset and a kease linbility representing its obligation o make lease puviments. There are reeognition exemptions for short-term
beases sl Teases of dowsvalug items. Currently. operating kease expenses are charged to the statement of profis and foss on a straight line
bais. Lessor accounting remains similar o the corrent standard ~ i.e. lessors continue 10 classify leases as finance or opersting lepses.
Further, the new stundurd contains entianced diselosure requirements o Jessees. Ind AS 116 substantially carries forward 1he lessor
secounhing sequiremestts in d AS 17,

The standard permiits twae possible methods of ransétion:
* Retraspective approach - Under this approach the. standard will be applicd retrospectively 1o cach prior reporting period presenied in

avcordance with Ind AN & - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

* Retrospectis ely with cumulative effect of initially applying the standard recognized at the date of initial application (modified retrospective
approcch)

Under modilied retrospective approach, the lessee records the fease liabitity as the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted
at the incremental botrowing rate and the right of use asset cither as:

» s careyving amound as if the stundard had been applied since the commencement date. but discounted at lessee™s incremental borrowing rate
al the dute ot initial application or

*An amauot equat 16 the fease liability. adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relaled io that kease recopnized
unider Ind A% 17 imimedistety betore the date of initial upplication. Certain practival expedicnts are available under hoth the methods.

Certain praglival expedients are available ander both the mscthods.

Ve Comypany will adopt the standard on | April 2019 by using the modilied retrospeciive approuch and accordingly comparatives for the
rear ending or ended 31 March 2019 will not be retrospectively adjusted.

inct AR 12 Appendis C, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

Appendin C ol Ind AS 12 Uncerainty over Income Tax Freatments' is to be applivd while performing the determination of taxubie prafit for
fnssd. i bases. unnsed sax losses, unused tax credits and fax rates, when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments under Ind AS 12,
Avvording to the appendix. eompanies meed to determine the probahiflity of the relevant tax suthority: aceepting cach (ax treatment. or group
ol s treaiments, that the companics have used or plan 10 use in their income tax 1iing which his to be considered 1o compute the most likely
mmount of the expected value of the 1ax treatment when determining taxable profis (1ax Joss). tax hoses. unused tax Tosses, unused 13y credits
and Ly rfes,

e standard permits iwo possible methads of transition:

* Full retrospectise appruach - Under this approach. Appendix C wntl b nppl:cd retrospeelively 1o each prios reporting period presented in
iceordanee wills Ind AS 8 - Aceounting Policies, Changes in Accow pates and Frrors,

* Retrospectively with cumulative effect of initially applying App Ixed by wdjusting equity on initisl application.

(e Company will adopt the standard on 1 April 2019 and st the cumblative effect in equity on the date of initinf
application L.e. 1 April 2019 withows adjusting comparatives,

v 31.03.2019:(59?0)
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Bhartiva Rail Bijlee Company Limited
Notes to the finaacial statements (continaed)

48 Standards issued but not vet effective (continued)

¢} Amendment to tnd AS [2 'Income taxes'
The amendments to the guidance in Ind AS 12, ‘Income Taxes", clarifies that an entity shall recognize the income tax consequences of
dividends in profit or loss, other comprehensive income or equity according to where the past transactions or events that generated
distributable profits were onginally recognized.

&) Amendiment to {nd AS 19 ‘Employee benefits'
The amendments w the guidance in ind AS 19, ‘Employee Benefits®, in connection with accounting for plan amendments, curtailments and
settlements roquire an entity: '
* to usy updated assumptions 10 determine current service cost and net interest for the sumainder of the period after a plan amendment,
curtathnent or setilement:; and

* to recognize in profit or loss as pant of past service cost, or a gain or loss on settlement, any reduction in a sutplus, even if that surplus was
not previously recognised because of the impact of the asset ceifing.

el Amendment {0 Ind AS 23, ‘Borrawing Costs’
The amendiments to the guidance in Ind AS 23, *Borrowing Costs”, clarifies the following:
* while computing the capialisation rate for funds borrowed generally, borrowing costs applicable 10 borrowings made specifically for
uohtaining a qualified asset should be excluded, only until the asset is ready for its intended usc or sale.

» berrowing casts {related to specific borrowings) that remain outstanding after the related qualifying asset is ready for its interdled use or sale
would subsequently be considered as part of the general borrowing costs.

N Amendment to Ind AS 109 'Financial Instruments’
The: amendments relate to the cxisting requirements in Ind AS 109, 'Financial lnstruments' regarding terrnination rights in order to allow

measurement ar amortised cost (or. depending on the business model, at fair value through other vomprehensive income) even in the case of
NCEAtive compensation payments.

The Company is evaluating the requirements of the above amendments and the effact on ihe financial statements is being evaluated.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
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Vishal Garg Manoj S ava C. Sivakumar R.KY Jain
C.S. CFO C.EOQ Director
Place : New Delhi ’;/
Dated : .. ...... May 2019 -
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For Chamaria & Co.
Chartered Accountants
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(;Syi}'f(umar Chamaria
Partnee
Membership No. : 094316
Firm Reg. No.: 5145619C
Place : New Delhi
Dated : 2. 1. May 2019
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